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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of E-Rental Car Company
Limited (“E-Rental Car” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”), | am pleased to present
the Group’s final results for the year ended 31 December 2015
(the “Year”).

The Group expedited its strategic transformation and actively
implemented its business reorganization. The Company
also constantly evaluated its business strategies and the
performance of the business operations of the Group. We
are dedicated not only to developing the Group’s existing
businesses but also actively pursuing business diversification
to generate new avenues for growth and to improve the
overall financial profile of the Group in the long run. To
achieve this objective, the Company continued to venture
into the car rental business and officially changed its name to
“E-Rental Car Company Limited” in June 2015. Furthermore,
the Group also diversified into the financing services business
in Hong Kong and has, through a wholly-owned subsidiary,
successfully applied and obtained a money lenders licence
under the money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) in October 2015 and commenced the provision
of financing services during the Year.

We believe that sophistication is one of the cores of business
success. To optimize the value of the Group and its existing
assets, the Group disposed of part of its consumer electronic
devices/platforms and related solution/services business during
the Year (through the disposal of its entire interests in two
subsidiaries engaged in the sales of digital signal processing
based consumer electronic devices/platforms (including
embedded firmware)) which had been sustaining losses over
the past few years.

During the Year, to strengthen the Group’s financial capability
and flexibility and to facilitate our business expansion,
the Company raised funds in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$533 million, through placing of new shares
of the Company. Apart from diversifying into the financing
services business as mentioned above, the Group further
expanded its electronic components/materials business during
the Year.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to further invest and
expand its existing businesses while simultaneously, explore
the possibility of entry into different potential subjects of
“Internet Plus”, in order to build a diversified business portfolio
for widening its revenue streams and allow for a smooth future
development.

Lastly, | would like to take this opportunity to extend my
sincere gratitude to our management and staff for their
unwavering dedication and contribution to the Group’s
development. | would also like to express my gratitude to all
shareholders, directors and business partners for their ongoing
support. We will continue to strive for excellence with a view
to generating sustainable returns to our shareholders.

Ms. Deng Shufen
Chairman and Executive Director

24 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW
Car rental business

During the Year, the Company continued to venture into
the car rental business which is considered to be always
in demand and have growth potential. Amidst the existing
fleet size of bRz &L ABEHEHF R & £ 2 A (Beijing Tu An
Car Rental Services Limited*) (“Beijing Tu An”), an indirect,
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in the PRC and is
principally engaged in car rental services business, reaching
its full utilization, the Group had further invested approximately
HK$20 million in Beijing Tu An to expand its fleet size,
network coverage and services. For the year ended 31
December 2015, revenue from the Group’s car rental segment
recorded approximately HK$24.6 million. The Group had
successfully completed a subscription transaction of US$5
million (approximately HK$39 million) for approximately 10%
of the equity interest in Prime Elite Ventures Limited (“Prime
Elite”) during the Year. “AATAE " (AA Car Rental*), an online
car rental application of Prime Elite launched in 2013, is a
mobile internet-based intelligent car rental platform, which
provides users with chauffeured car services anytime and
anywhere. With its headquarters in Beijing, the “AA Car Rental”
service network covers sixteen cities which include Beijing,
Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Shanghai, Dalian and Shijiazhuang.
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s strategic
investment in Prime Elite had provided the Group with (i) fair
value gain of approximately HK$1.2 million recognised as
other comprehensive income; as well as (ii) business synergies
whereby, as at 31 December 2015, a total of 29 vehicles
operated by Beijing Tu An were rented to “AA Car Rental”
under long term rental contracts which provided stable returns
to the Group.

*

For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWR O

Electronic components/materials business

Since the electronic components/materials business has
been a stable income source, the Group had allocated more
resources and investment for the expansion in this segment.
For the year ended 31 December 2015, revenue from the
Group’s trading of electronic components/materials segment
increased from approximately HK$193.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014, to approximately HK$240.4 million.
The Group also recorded gross profit and gross profit margin
from this segment of approximately HK$10.8 million and 4.5%
respectively.

Consumer electronic devices/platforms and
related solutions/services business

The consumer electronic devices/platforms and related
solutions/services business continued to make a loss during
the Year. To optimise the value of the Group and its assets,
the Company had commenced streamlining and reorganising
its existing assets and disposed of its entire interests in
two operating subsidiaries engaged in the research, design,
development and sale of digital signal processing based
consumer electronic devices/platforms on 29 April 2015. For
the year ended 31 December 2015, revenue from this segment
decreased by 85% to approximately HK$4.1 million, from
approximately HK$28.1 million in 2014.

Financing services business

The Company had, through a wholly-owned subsidiary,
applied for and in October 2015 successfully obtained a
money lenders licence under the Money Lenders Ordinance
(Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to conduct money
lending business in Hong Kong through the provision of loans.
The Company will strive to gain position in the financing
services market by providing flexible, convenient and tailor-
made services to raise accessibility to the Group’s financing
services. As the provision of financing services was still in early
stage, revenue generated from this segment only contributed
approximately 2% to the Group’s total revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE OUTLOOK

With an increasing growth in the tourism industry in China and
the benefits that car rental services can offer, including greater
mobility without the need to pay the relatively higher costs
associated with car ownership and the freedom to choose
cars based on requirements and budget, the use of car rental
services is expected to become more and more popular and
a rise in demand is anticipated. The Group will continue to
explore the development of its online car rental business in the
car rental market. As access to financing services is crucial
to business and economic growth, the provision of financing
services has potential for high growth and can be sustainable.
The Group seeks to grasp on potential business opportunities
by strategically tapping into the financial services industry. The
Group looks forward to further expanding its income streams
and smoothing the road for future development through the
provision of a wider array of comprehensive services.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results of the Group
Revenue

The revenue of the Group increased by approximately 24%
from approximately HK$222.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 to approximately HK$275.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015. As mentioned in the section
headed “BUSINESS REVIEW”, the increase was mainly resulted
from (i) the increase in sales of goods from approximately
HK$205.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2014
to approximately HK$242.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2015, due to the shift of business focus to the
trading of electronic components/materials; (ii) the full year
results from the car rental business which contributed revenue
of approximately HK$24.6 million; and (iii) the decrease in
revenue from the consumer electronic devices/platforms and
related solution/services segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWR O

Cost of sales

Cost of sales of the Group increased by approximately 22%
from approximately HK$205.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 to approximately HK$251.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in sales of electronic components/
materials during the Year.

Gross profit and margin

The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately HK$23.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2015, representing
an increase of approximately 41% as compared to the gross
profit recorded in the prior year. The gross profit margin
increased slightly by approximately 1.1 percentage points from
7.6% in 2014 to 8.7% in the Year. The increase was resulted
from the financing services business, which had higher profit
margin.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains of the Group increased by
approximately 273%, from approximately HK$8.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014 to approximately HK$29.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The increase
was mainly resulted from the income in relation to certain
procurement/credit/investment arrangements as well as
waivers of other borrowings recognised during the Year.

Research and development costs

Research and development costs decreased by approximately
42% from approximately HK$2.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2014 to approximately HK$1.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015, mainly due to the disposal of
certain subsidiaries under the consumer electronic devices/
platforms segment and related solution/services segment,
coupled with the decrease in the number of research and
development projects after the implementation of the cost-
saving measures during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWE DN

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately
55% from approximately HK$14.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2014 to approximately HK$6.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015, mainly due to the cost saving
effect from the disposal of certain subsidiaries under the
consumer electronic devices/platforms and related solution/
services segment.

General and administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses increased by
approximately 56% from approximately HK$25.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014 to approximately HK$39.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2015, mainly due

to the extra cost incurred as a result of business expansion
during the Year.

Other expenses, net

Other expenses, net, decreased by approximately 96% from
approximately HK$26 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 to approximately HK$0.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 mainly due to the reduction of impairment/
write-off of trade and other receivables.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased from approximately HK$0.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014 to approximately HK$1.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2015, mainly due to
the drawdown of certain new interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings utilised to finance the purchase of certain motor
vehicles for the car rental business during the Year.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense decreased from approximately HK$3.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to approximately
HK$2.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2015, mainly
due to the reversal of deferred tax asset in the prior year.
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Liquidity and financial resources RBESRMBEER
2015 2014
—E-HF —F—NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(&E7))
Current assets mENEE 848,271,180 309,959,152
Current liabilities MENEE 80,401,723 131,845,443
Current ratio BN 10.55 2.35

As at 31 December 2015, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$5.1 million (2014:
HK$8.1 million).

In view of the Group’s current level of cash and cash
equivalents, funds generated internally from our operations
and from the corporate actions completed during the Year, the
Board is confident that the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to meet its debt repayment and financing needs for
its operations for the foreseeable future.

N-ZE—RE+-_A=+—H A£EEHNRS
LR 4&EEWL A5,100,0008 T(=ZF —
£ 18,100,000 7T) °

ERIAKERERE KRS FEWHKFE
REBRMEEARRAFEE KM A RTT
BENES  ESQREAKEERMNME
BRNENBRZEREREMRKEBERD

REBE -

Gearing ratio EXEEHLER
2015 2014
—E—-EfF —ET—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Total interest-bearing bank and FTERITREMEER

other borrowings FEEE 31,513,733 13,697,445
Equity M 930,867,080 301,941,139
Gearing ratio BEARGELE 3.4% 4.5%

As at 31 December 2015, the gearing ratio is 3.4% (2014:
4.5%). As at 31 December 2015, the maturity profile of the
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of the Group falling
due within one year, and the second year, inclusive, amounted
to approximately HK$26.1 million (2014: HK$8.4 million) and
HK$5.4 million (2014: HK$5.3 million), respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital structure

The capital of the Company comprises only ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each (the “Shares”). As at 31 December 2015,
the total number of issued Shares was 6,481,375,000 (with
an aggregate nominal value of HK$64,813,750). The total
number of issued Shares had been changed during the Year
as follows:

EEENWmE DN

BEXRE

AABNEAEBREEROOIBTZERK
(T®RB) - R=—F—RF+=-A=+—R" B
BEITRR D 4285 6,481,375,000 A% (EIE 4258 A&
64,813,750 70) - BETRHODBENAFE
ZEEBIT

No. of Shares
R H

1 January 2015

Add: (1)
(In

an ()
(1

Connected Placing
Exercise of Options granted pursuant to
the Connected Placing

2015 Placing

(I11) (I11)

—E—RF—HA—H

4,081,375,000

B il &S I8 1,500,000,000
TEREEEREEE

= B 400,000,000
—E-hFREEE 500,000,000

31 December 2015

—E—HAF¥+-A=+—H

6,481,375,000

() On 26 March 2015, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (the “Connected Placing Agreement”) with
Sheng Yuan Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”)
pursuant to which the Company agreed to (i) place,
through the Placing Agent, an aggregate of up to
1,500,000,000 new ordinary shares (the “Connected
Placing Shares”) of HK$0.01 each in the Company
at the placing price of HK$0.26 per Connected
Placing Share to Sino Merchant Car Rental Limited
(“Sino Merchant”) (the controlling shareholder and a
connected person of the Company); and (i) grant to
Sino Merchant, at an aggregate nominal consideration
of HK$1, options (the “Options”) which carry rights to
subscribe for up to a total of 800,000,000 new ordinary
shares (the “Option Shares”) of HK$0.01 each in
the Company at the initial exercise price of HK$0.26
per Option Share (subject to adjustments) upon the
terms and conditions contained in the Connected
Placing Agreement (the “Connected Placing”). The
completion of the Connected Placing Agreement
took place on 15 June 2015 which resulted in (i) an
aggregate of 1,500,000,000 Connected Placing Shares
(with aggregate nominal value of HK$15,000,000)
being allotted and issued to Sino Merchant; and (i) the
Options being granted to Sino Merchant. The closing
price of each Share as quoted on 26 March 2015 (being
the date of the Connected Placing Agreement) was
HK$0.305 and the net proceeds raised per Share was
approximately HK$0.257.
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(1) On 2 July 2015, Sino Merchant partially exercised the
Options granted pursuant to the Connected Placing
Agreement to subscribe for 400,000,000 Option Shares
(with aggregate nominal value of HK$4,000,000). As
at 31 December 2015, Sino Merchant had remaining
Options which carry rights to subscribe for up to a total
of 400,000,000 Option Shares.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 26 March 2015, 18 May 2015, 15 June 2015 and
2 July 2015 and the circular of the Company dated 28
April 2015 for details.

(1 On 7 July 2015, the Company entered into a conditional
placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with
an independent placing agent whereby the Company
conditionally agreed to place, through the placing
agent, on a best effort basis, up to 500,000,000 placing
shares to not less than six independent placees at a
price of HK$0.3 per placing share (the “2015 Placing”).
The maximum number of 500,000,000 placing shares
(with aggregate nominal value of HK$5,000,000) were
successfully placed upon completion of the 2015
Placing on 3 August 2015.

The closing price of each Share as quoted on 7 July
2015 (being the date of the Placing Agreement) was
HK$0.330 and the net proceeds raised per Share was
approximately HK$0.296.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 10 July 2015 and 3 August 2015 for details.

Disposal of subsidiaries

On 29 April 2015, the Company, Perception Digital
Technology (BVI) Limited (“PDT”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and Atom Xquare Corporation Limited (the
“Purchaser”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the
“Disposal Agreement”), pursuant to which (i) the Purchaser
agreed to purchase and the Company agreed to sell the entire
issued share capital of Ace Legend International Limited (the
“First Target Company”) for a consideration of US$1.00;
and (i) the Purchaser agreed to purchase and PDT agreed
to sell the entire issued share capital of Perception Digital
Limited (the “Second Target Company”) for a consideration
of HK$67,690 (collectively, the “Disposals”). The Disposals,
which constituted discloseable transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
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of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), were
completed simultaneously upon the signing of the Disposal
Agreement on 29 April 2015. Upon completion of the Disposal
Agreement, the First Target Company and the Second
Target Company (collectively, the “Disposed Subsidiaries”)
ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company. Please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 29 April 2015 for
details.

On the financial effect of the Disposals on the Group, the
Group at the time of the Disposals expected to record a gain
on disposal of the Disposed Subsidiaries of approximately
HK$0.2 million (as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company on 29 April 2015), representing the estimated
difference between the total consideration for the Disposals
and the aggregate net asset value of the Disposed
Subsidiaries at the date of the Disposals. As a supplement
to the information disclosed on 29 April 2015, following the
Disposals, an exchange reserve arising from the Disposals of
approximately HK$2.8 million was released by the Group to its
profit or loss. As a result, the Group recognised and recorded
a total gain on disposal of the Disposed Subsidiaries of
approximately HK$3.0 million to its profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Save as the Disposals as disclosed above, there were no
material acquisitions or disposals of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Use of proceeds from financing activities
during the Year

BEENWNE D

—HERARAKE_MERAR(GHIEHE
WEAT ) TEARARNMBAR - HER
SMARAARMA=E - AFNA=TABMH
INGE

REEFHEUAEE I MBRENS - A5H
RETHESFERERESHERLENB R
7 2 Y %5 47200,000 8 TT(H AR R R - F
—HEFOAZTAANRMAEE)  REE
FHZBREERNEEFEARKLENBER
FZREEFECHEEZR HW_T—AF
MAZ+HhBEMEEZMAER  BHESRE
% ARFEREBEREA ARLEEE &
2 HME 7% #5 492,800,000 7T © E UL - KNE&
EEREEBZE _ZE—AF+-_A=+—HIF
BEZBRENERRESHERHENB AR
#BUER £ 3,000,000 7T ©

BREXHBEZ HEEEN  ARERE-T
—RE+=A=+— B FEEEA KR
i o

REAFERMETBHFRERERERE
Actual use of

proceeds as at
31 December

Net proceeds 2015
Date of the Fund raising raised R-BE—RE+=
announcement  activity EECFB Intended use of proceeds B=+—HFBXR
A A £EEH MIEFH FBREZRERZ B EBBRAZ
26 March 2015 Connected Approximately (i) approximately HK$250.25 Fully applied as
—E—hF=A Placing HK$385 million million to expand the car intended
—+XH BBl EEIR #9385,000,000 & rental business; T AR TEEE

7T () #1250,250,000 B THEER R

EEE A

(i) approximately HK$96.25
million to expand the trading
of electronic components/
materials business; and

(i) #996,250,000 T AEERE
FEH MHESEL &
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Actual use of
proceeds as at
31 December

Net proceeds 2015
Date of the Fund raising raised RZEBE-HE+=
announcement  activity EE2PB Intended use of proceeds B=+—HBMBX
AfEEE £EES MR FBREZRERR BeERRR
(i) approximately HK$38.50
million for general working
capital
(i) #938,500,000 & TTAIE— K&
EE®
2 July 2015 Exercise of Approximately To improve working capital of Fully applied as
—T—HF Options by Sino  HK$104 million the Group intended
+A=H Merchant #1104,000,000 HEAEEZ -—RLEED R TE RS BBIE
ERHEBTEER BT A
1
10 July 2015 2015 Placing Approximately (i) approximately HK$135 million Fully applied as
—ZT—hHE —ARFRESE HK$148 million to further expand the trading intended
+A+H 18 #3148,000,000 of the electronic components/ 1%t A& B EUE
BT materials business; and =5

(if)
(if)

Foreign currency exposure

The foreign currency exposure of the Group primarily arises
from revenue or income generated, cost and expenses
incurred, and certain bank and other borrowings denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the Group’s
operating units. For the Group’s operating units that have
United States dollar (“US$”) and Renminbi (‘RMB”) as their
functional currency, their foreign currency transactions and the
units’ monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that were translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling as at 31 December 2015 were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group expected that
the exposure to exchange rates fluctuation was not significant
and therefore had not engaged in any hedging activities.
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Charges on the Group’s assets

As at 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s bank loan
and other borrowings were secured by the pledge of the
Group's time deposit of approximately HK$18.8 million (2014:
Nil) and certain of the Group’s motor vehicles of approximately
HK$21.4 million (2014: HK$15.8 million (restated)),
respectively. As at 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s
other payable were also secured by the pledge of the Group’s
motor vehicles of approximately HK$8.4 million (restated).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2014: Nil).

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

It is proposed that the annual general meeting of the Company
will be held on Friday, 3 June 2016 (the “AGM”). The notice
of the AGM will be despatched to the shareholders of the
Company and available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 1 June 2016 to Friday, 3 June 2016, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfers of shares shall
be effected. In order to qualify for attending the forthcoming
AGM, all transfer of shares, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms, must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 31 May 2016.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed a total of 28
(2014: 53) employees. Total staff costs, including Directors’
emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$21 million for the
Year (2014: approximately HK$14 million).
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Executive Directors

Ms. Deng Shufen, aged 51, has been appointed as an
Executive Director since 16 July 2014. She is also the
Chairman and an Authorised Representative of the Company.
She has served as the general manager and the vice-chairman
of the board of directors of Huashang Group Company Limited
(ZEmE®EBEMRAA) since 1993 and the deputy general
manager of China Wood (Group) Company Limited* (FEIK
#(&EB)ARAT) since 2006. Ms. Deng was also appointed
as the general manager of the legal department of China
Leasing Company Limited* (FREMEARAR]) in 2003 and
the vice-chairman of the board of directors of Jiangxi Juye
Asset Management Company Limited* IR %(&EEIER
FfR/A 7)) in 2006. She graduated from Jiangxi University (later
reorganized as Nanchang University) with a bachelor degree of
Law. Ms. Deng is the spouse of Mr. Dai Yumin, an Executive
Director and the President of the Company. Ms. Deng is also
one of the controlling shareholders of the Company by virtue
of (i) the equity interest held by her in Sino Merchant Car
Rental Limited (“Sino Merchant”), the entire issued share
capital of which is owned as to 60% by Ms. Deng and 40% by
Ms. Liu Jiangyuan (an Executive Director); and (ii) her deemed
interests in certain issued shares in the Company held by
her spouse, Mr. Dai Yumin (an Executive Director) under the
provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”).

Mr. Dai Yumin, aged 55, has been appointed as an Executive
Director since 16 July 2014 and is the President of the
Company. He has also served as the director, chairman of
the board of directors and the group president of Zhongjing
Holdings Company Limited* (fF & 4Z i B [R A &) ) since 1993
and the executive director and the compliance officer of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (FF B & 4 % 2
B AR AT), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange, since 2009. He is currently
the chairman of the board of directors of Shaanxi Ruisheng
Biological Technology Company Limited* ([ 78 ¥ &% 4 ¥ &
AR A7) and Shenzhen Ainier Cornea Engineering Co., Ltd.*
CRYINERARE TRABR A F)and the legal representative
of China Wood (Group) Company Limited* (ff B AR+ (£ 2 )
ARRAR). Mr. Dai also served as the director, the head of
reorganization management committee and the president
of China Leasing Company Limited* (T B E B R A 7 ).
He graduated from Beijing Youth Enterprise Management
College (4t RE F ¥ B R & E 7 ) with a bachelor degree

*

For identification purpose only
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of Finance. Mr. Dai is the spouse of Ms. Deng Shufen, the
Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Dai
is also one of the controlling shareholders of the Company by
virtue of (i) the equity interests held by his spouse, Ms Deng
Shufen, in Sino Merchant; and (i) his personal interests held in
certain issued shares in the Company under the provisions of
Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Gui Bin, aged 51, had been appointed an Executive
Director of the Company since 16 July 2014. He is currently
the chairman of board of directors of Shenzhen Jinkunda
Investment Company Limited* G & tHE1 & AR A A)) and
Shenzhen Hengtairui Industrial Company Limited* GEIIITH = 2=

mEXARRF]).

Ms. Liu Jiangyuan, aged 35, has been appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company since 16 July 2014. Ms.
Liu also assumed various positions such as the executive
director of Chenxin Asset Management Company Limited”
(BRFEBEEEIEAMR AR )and the assistant to the president of
China Aviation Finance Limited (FEfiZ= & /AR A 7). She
graduated from Dalian University of Foreign Language with a
bachelor degree of English.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Jun, aged 53, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
16 July 2014. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He has also served
as the executive member and the executive vice-chairman
of the Cross-straits Medicine Exchange Association of the
National Health and Family Planning Commission of the PRC*
(PEARKNMBBERGEENAEEEFZESBRMEEEEE
TmthE ), the executive member and the vice-chairman of
China Sexology Association (R B|1££2& ), the publisher and
the executive chief editor of the China Sexology Journal* ({
TERIZ)) and the deputy head of the Sexology Research Center
of Peking University Health Science Center* (it ;i A 2258 E2 &R
BistH D). Mr. Fang also assumed various positions such as
the executive member and the secretary general of Wu Jieping
Medical Foundation(REFEEEEZ). He graduated from
Peking University Health Science Center with a master degree
of Social Medicine and Health Service Management and a
doctor degree of Epidemiology and Health Statistics.

*

For identification purpose only
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Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest, aged 48, has been appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
16 July 2014. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He has served as the
president and the group chief financial officer of KVB Kunlun
Holdings Limited (its subsidiary, KVB Kunlun Financial Group
Limited, is listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange) since 2011. Mr. Wong has also served as
the independent non-executive director of Renheng Enterprise
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange) since 2011 and the non-executive director
of Adamas Finance Asia Ltd (formerly known as China Private
Equity Investment Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Alternative Investment Market of London Stock Exchange Plc.
and Frankfurt Stock Exchange) since 2014. He also assumed
various positions such as the executive director and the chief
financial officer of China Private Equity Investment Holdings
Limited, the chief financial officer of Hong Kong Applied Science
and Technology Research Institute Company Limited, the vice-
president of Vertex Management (HK)., the manager and head
of supervision of the business department of Guangdong
Investment Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange) and the portfolio manager of Transpac Capital
Ltd. Mr. Wong graduated from the University of Hong Kong with
a bachelor degree of Business Administration. He also obtained
a master degree of Science in Investment Management from
the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and a
master degree of Science in Electronic Engineering from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Mr. Wong is also a charter-holder of
Chartered Financial Analyst and a member of Hong Kong
Securities Institute.

Mr. Zhao Xianming, aged 39, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 16
July 2014. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He assumed various
positions such as the supervisor of the legal and auditorial
center of Fanhua Construction Group Limited* (ZEZERXREEAF
R/ @]), the general legal counsel, the vice-president and the
board secretary of China Agritech Inc. (a company listed on
the NASDAQ Stock Market). He graduated from China Foreign
Affairs University with a master degree of International Law and
is a certified enterprise risk manager.

*

For identification purpose only
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance
report for the year ended 31 December 2015. This report
highlights the key corporate governance practices of the
Company.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company acknowledges the importance of good
corporate governance practices and procedures and regards
a pre-eminent board of directors, sound internal controls and
accountability to all shareholders as the core elements of its
corporate governance principles. The Company endeavours
to ensure that its businesses are conducted in accordance
with rules and regulations, and applicable codes and
standards. The Company has adopted the Code Provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

The Board reviews at least annually the corporate governance
practices of the Company to ensure its continuous compliance
with the Code, and make appropriate changes if considered
necessary. The Company was in compliance with the
applicable code provisions in the Code (the “Code Provision”)
for the year ended 31 December 2015. The following sections
set out the principles in the Code as they have been applied
by the Company, including any deviations therefrom, for the
year under review.

Board

The Company is governed by the Board, which is responsible
for overseeing the overall strategy and development of the
Company, as well as monitoring the internal control policies
and evaluating the financial performance of the Group. The
Board sets the overall strategies and directions for the Group
with a view to developing its business and enhancing the
shareholders’ value.

As at 31 December 2015, the Board comprises four executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors (the
“INEDs”). During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Board held a total of 5 meetings.
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During the Year, the attendance of each Director is set out

TR BEFHHEBEROT

below:

Attendance
Directors £E HEER
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Deng Shufen (Chairman) BOmS () 5/5
Mr. Dai Yumin (President) BT E(ER) 5/5
Mr. Gui Bin b 3/5
Ms. Liu Jiangyuan B TELZ+ 5/5
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Wang Yongbin (retired on 26 June 2015) TRWAE(R_T—RAF A=+ BEME) 0/3
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. Fang Jun 7B AE 5/5
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest IR E 5/5
Mr. Zhao Xianming BT A 5/5

Ms. Deng Shufen (the Chairman of the Group and an Executive
Director) is the spouse of Mr. Dai Yumin (the President of
the Group and an Executive Director). Save as disclosed, the
members of the Board have no financial, business, family or
other relationships with each other.

During the Year, the INEDs provided the Company with a
wide range of expertise and a balance of skills and brought
independent judgment on issues of strategic direction,
development, performance and risk management through their
contribution at Board meetings and Committee meetings.
Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has complied with the requirements under Rules
3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules. The former Rule requires
that every board of directors of a listed issuer must include at
least three INEDs and the latter Rule requires that at least one
of the INEDs must have appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
All INEDs also meet the guidelines for assessment of their
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Further, up to the date of this report, the Board has not been
aware of the occurrence of any events which would cause it to
believe that their independence has been impaired.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company still considers such Directors
to be independent. The INEDs are explicitly identified in all
corporate communications. The day-to-day running of the
Company is delegated to the management.

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual
operating budget, annual and interim results, recommendations
on Directors’ appointment or re-appointment, material
contracts and transactions as well as other significant policy
and financial matters. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
responsibility to the executive management. The respective
functions of the Board and management of the Company have
been formalised and set out in writing and will be reviewed by
the Board from time to time to ensure that they are consistent
with the existing rules and regulations.

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance
to facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. At least 14
days’ notice of a Board meeting is normally given to all
Directors who are given an opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures
that all applicable rules and regulations are complied with.
The agenda and the accompanying Board papers are normally
sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended date
of a regular Board meeting (and so far as practicable for such
other Board meetings). Draft minutes of each Board meeting
are circulated to all Directors for their comments before
being tabled at the following Board meeting for approval. All
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.
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Directors’ Induction and Continuous
Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives
a comprehensive induction package covering business
operations, policy and procedures of the Company as well
as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being
a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/
her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to
or updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In
addition, the Company has been encouraging the Directors
and senior executives to enroll in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars relating to the Listing
Rules, companies ordinance/act and corporate governance
practices organised by professional bodies, independent
auditors and/or chambers in Hong Kong so that they can
continuously update and further improve their relevant
knowledge and skills. From time to time, Directors are
provided with written training materials to develop and refresh
their professional skills.
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Corporate Governance Report

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received the following training with an emphasis
on the roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed
company in compliance with the requirement of the Code on
continuous professional development during the year ended 31
December 2015:

iz fie N/ +
ﬁ'_\ E/ﬁ#&%

REARFFENCTE  BETETRENEE
BEXZEROAE  EFRBE_T-OF 1+
A=+ —HLEFEEXATAER EHRFE
FNAE  BRERBEMNEI

Corporate
Governance,
Regulatory
Development
and Trainings
or other
relevant topics
hEES -

EERRER
IR H A
Directors 2= MHEEE
Executive Directors HITESE
Ms. Deng Shufen B 22+ v
Mr. Dai Yumin MEHELE v
Mr. Gui Bin E Vs v
Ms. Liu Jiangyuan 2IELZ L v/
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. Fang Jun B fEEE v
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest \mIRLESL A v
Mr. Zhao Xianming HERALE v/

Independent Non-executive Directors

All the INEDs were appointed for a specific term but are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meetings in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

BYFUTES
FEBLFRTEESURREMEET 1

BARBARFRABERZMANNBRBFEAS®H
BERENREE -
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Committees

As part of the corporate governance practices, the Board
has established the remuneration committee, nomination
committee, and audit committee. All of the committees are
chaired by and composed of INEDs with terms of reference in
accordance with the principles set out in the Code.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) on 27 November 2009
with written terms of reference. As at 31 December 2015, the
Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr.
Fang Jun, Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest and Mr. Zhao Xianming.
The committee is chaired by Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are
formulating remuneration policies, determining the specific
remuneration packages of Executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed and made recommendation
on the remuneration packages of the existing Directors.

Eg
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Details of the remuneration paid to members of the senior AEEENAEBSREREBKE(RIEEE)
management of the Group (including the Directors) by band for ZEMEEMT ¢
the Year are set out below:
Number of

senior management
Remuneration band it o &6 SREBEAY
Below HK$1,000,000 £ 1,000,000 7 7T —
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T = 1,500,000 %8 7T 4
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During the Year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was FR - FME %@ T7—RE&% - TXET
held and the attendance of each member is set out below: %EJZE\E‘\]tlj}*IE/

Attendance
Committee Member ZE8 HEBR
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest (Chairman) ERGEE(EE) 1/1
Mr. Fang Jun 7oREE 11
Mr. Zhao Xianming HEEA LA 1/1

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) on 27 November 2009 with
written terms of reference. As at 31 December 2015, the
Nomination Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr.
Fang Jun, Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest and Mr. Zhao Xianming.
The committee is chaired by Mr. Fang Jun.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, formulating
relevant procedures for nomination of directors, identifying
qualified individuals to become members of the Board and
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors. During the year ended 31
December 2015,
composition of the Board and made recommendation to the

Board.

the Nomination Committee reviewed the

REZEE

ARAR_ZFZNF+—A-+LAKIEE
EHREREMNREEZER((RBEEEE®) -
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BEERBERELE - TERELERZEZEEN
ESE

m
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T-A=1t—HLHFE REZEERIES
AR RAEETSREES

>~_

IR

During the Year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held  FR - REZZE&8RTT —X&% 0 T
and the attendance of each member is set out below: EREMLEBR

Attendance
Committee Member Z8 HERER
Mr. Fang Jun (Chairman) 5 OEBEEERE) 11
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest =RGER A 1/1
Mr. Zhao Xianming HEEA LA 1/1
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Audit committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
comprises all the three INEDs, namely Mr. Zhao Xianming
(chairman), Mr. Fang Jun and Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to supervise the
internal control policies, the financial reporting systems and
procedures of the Company, to review the financial statements
and reports of the Group, and to review the terms of
engagement and scope of audit work of the external auditors.
The audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee has met the external auditors of the
Company, Messrs. Ernst & Young, and reviewed the Group’s
results for the year ended 31 December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit
Committee reviewed the internal control system, as well as the
interim and annual results of the Group, which, in the opinion
of the audit committee, were prepared in compliance with the
applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules.

During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were held and
the attendance of each member is set out below:

BEREEE

ARAEZZES([BREEGDEE =4
BIYFATEFTHEERALLE(EZE)  FTkE
ERERGERE BERZEENIZRBRE
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Attendance
Committee Member £8 HEBR
Mr. Zhao Xianming (Chairman) HEERALEERE) 2/2
Mr. Fang Jun 7o ERE 2/2
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest =RE A 2/2
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board does not have a corporate governance committee.
The functions that would be carried out by a corporate
governance committee are performed by the Board as a whole
and are as follows:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The corporate governance policy is formulated with an
emphasis on the Board’s quality, effective internal control,
stringent disclosure practices and transparency and
accountability to all shareholders of the Company. The Board
strives to comply with the code provisions and reviews its
corporate governance policy regularly in order to maintain high
standards of business ethics and corporate governance, and
to ensure the full compliance of our operations with applicable
laws and regulations.

During the Year, members of the Board have reviewed and
discussed, among other things, the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance at regular board meetings.
They have also reviewed and monitored the training and
continuous professional development of directors, and the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements as well as its disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report. The Board has reviewed the
code of conduct applicable to employees and directors setting
out the standards of behavior that the Company expects from
them and the guidelines on how they should handle different
situations in business dealings with the Group.

E-Rental Car Company Limited = %8 & B
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Compliance with the Model Code Set
Out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). The Company
periodically issues notices to the Directors reminding them
of the general prohibition on dealing in the Company’s listed
securities during the blackout periods before the publication
of announcements of results. The Company has confirmed,
having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all the Directors
have complied with the Model Code throughout the period
under review.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for overseeing
the preparation of the accounts of the Company. The Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out
in the section “Independent Auditors’ Report” of this annual
report.

The Group’s external auditors provided the following services
to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015:
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HK$
BT
Audit services ZE AR TS 1,300,000
Non-audit services* FEIZEAR TS~ 378,000
& The non-audit services mainly comprised review of interim * IEZERTE L E 61T R FE B R R B

financial information and agreed-upon procedure work for a
placing transaction conducted during the Year.
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining an effective
internal control system in order to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders and the assets of the Company against
unauthorized use or disposition, ensuring maintenance of
proper books and records for the provision of reliable financial
information, and ensuring compliance with the relevant rules
and regulations.

The audit committee reviewed the overall effectiveness of the
internal control system and reported its findings and made
recommendations to the Board. The Directors have conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system for the year ended 31 December 2015. The Board will
continue to assess the effectiveness of internal controls by
considering reviews performed by the audit committee and
executive management.

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”)

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, any
one or more members of the Company holding at the date of
the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such
of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and the meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board will be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the

Company.
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Communication with Shareholders and
Procedures for Putting forward Proposals at a
General Meeting

All published information, including all the statutory
announcements and press releases, is promptly posted on the
Group’s website at www.erentalcar.com.hk. Shareholders can
also send enquiries to the Board or the Company Secretary,
and/or proposals to be put forward at shareholders’ meeting
for shareholders’ consideration by email at ir@erentalcar.
com.hk or directly by raising questions at the annual general
meeting of the Company.

Investor Relations

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhancing investor relations. It
is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of
corporate information to its shareholders and investment
public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual
and interim reports, announcements and circulars. The
corporate website of the Company (www.erentalcar.com.hk)
has provided an effective communication platform to the public
and the shareholders.

Constitutional Documents

During the Year, there were no changes to the Company’s
constitutional documents.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary of the Company, Mr. Leung Cho Tak,
Joseph, was appointed on 30 August 2014. He is a full time
employee of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge
of the Company. The Company Secretary is responsible for
advising the Board on corporate governance matters. The
Company Secretary has confirmed that he has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in the year
under review.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the
“Board”) hereby present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 5 to 6 of this
annual report and in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 7 to 17 of this annual report. Description of the
financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
can be found in Note 39 to the financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 51 to 190.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total number of issued shares were held by the
public as at the date of this annual report.

Share Capital, Share Options and
Warrants

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital,
warrants, and share options during the Year are set out in
notes 28 and 29 to the financial statements.

Report of the Directors
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the Year.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the audited financial statements, is set out on pages 191 to
192. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Distributable Reserves

The Company’s distributable reserves comprise the share
premium, other reserves and accumulated losses. As at 31
December 2015, the Company had distributable reserves of
HK$867,125,857 (2014: HK$269,506,383).

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 90% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 67%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 92% of the total purchases for the year and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted
to 41%.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interests in the Group’s five largest customers
and suppliers.
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Directors
The Directors during the Year were:
Executive Directors:

Ms. Deng Shufen (Chairman)
Mr. Dai Yumin (President)
Mr. Gui Bin

Ms. Liu Jiangyuan

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Wang Yongbin (retired on 26 June 2015)
Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Fang Jun
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest
Mr. Zhao Xianming

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Ms. Deng Shufen, Mr. Dai Yumin and Mr. Gui
Bin will retire from office. Ms. Deng Shufen, being eligible,
will offer herself for re-election, while Mr. Dai Yumin and Mr.
Gui Bin will, due to their respective intention to devote more
time to their personal affairs and commitments, not seek for
re-election, at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

Furthermore, in accordance with article 83 of the Company’s
articles of association, the office of Mr. Ho Kin Cheong Kelvin
(who has been appointed by the Directors for serving as non-
executive Director with effect from 11 April 2016) will end at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
he, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers the INEDs to be
independent as at the date of this annual report.
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Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 18 to 20 of
this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Contract of Significance

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, no
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing
Rules.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the Group is determined with
reference to the performance, qualifications and experience
of individual employees (including Directors), as well as the
results of the Group and the market conditions. The Group
provides discretionary bonus, medical insurance, provident
fund, education subsidy and training to its employees. The
Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to eligible participants, details of which are set out below in
the section “Share Option Scheme”.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest

paid individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements, respectively.
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions
of the Directors in the share capital of the Company and
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules adopted
by the Company, were as follows:
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Percentage
of the
Company’s
issued share

Number of capital
Shares (Note 2)
Name of interested HARATE BT
Substantial Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interests EEERN BANE DL
FTERRHES B EmtE BRoEA (Htit2)
Ms. Deng Shufen Interests of controlled corporation 3,499,233,889 53.99%
BOM S 22+ ZPEHIA R R (Note 1)
(HtaE1)
Interests of spouse 24,300,000 0.37%
P (B 4 o
Mr. Dai Yumin Interests of spouse 3,499,233,889 53.99%
BEHEE P (B 4 2 (Note 1)
(K15E 1)
Beneficial owner 24,300,000 0.37%
BEnfaE
Ms. Liu Jiangyuan Interests of controlled corporation 3,499,233,889 53.99%
BN =g = e NG Op - (Note 1)
(K1t 1)
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Notes:

These 3,499,233,889 Shares are registered in the name of
Sino Merchant, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, the entire issued share capital of which is owned as
to 60% by Ms. Deng Shufen (the chairman and an Executive
Director of the Company) and 40% by Ms. Liu Jiangyuan (an
Executive Director of the Company).* Ms. Deng Shufen and Ms.
Liu Jiangyuan are deemed to be interested in all the Shares in
which Sino Merchant is interested by virtue of the SFO. As Mr.
Dai Yumin is the spouse of Ms. Deng Shufen, he is deemed to
be interested in the Shares which Ms. Deng Shufen is deemed
to be interested in for the purposes of the SFO.

In addition, Options were granted by the Company to Sino
Merchant pursuant to and upon completion of the Connected
Placing on 15 June 2015, which entitled it to subscribe for
up to 800,000,000 Option Shares (representing approximately
12.34% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
31 December 2015) during the period of 24 months from 15
June 2015 to 14 June 2017 at the exercise price of HK$0.26
per Option Share (subject to adjustment). On 2 July 2015,
Sino Merchant partially exercised the Options to subscribe
for 400,000,000 new Shares. As at 31 December 2015, Sino
Merchant remains the beneficial owner of, and was interested
in, 400,000,000 Option Shares. Accordingly, each of Ms. Deng
Shufen, Ms. Liu Jiangyuan and Mr. Dai Yumin is also deemed
to be interested in these underlying Shares held by Sino
Merchant for the purposes of the SFO.

* During the Year and up to 24 March 2016, the entire
issued share capital of Sino Merchant was owned as to
60% by Ms. Deng Shufen, 20% by Ms. Liu Jiangyuan
and 20% by Mr. Gui Bin (an Executive Director of the
Company). On 25 March 2016, Mr. Gui Bin transferred
his entire interests in Sino Merchant to Ms. Liu
Jiangyuan.

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of
6,481,375,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of

the Directors of the Company or their respective associates

had registered any interests or short position in the shares,

underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified

to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code adopted by the Company.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2015, so far as is known to the Directors,
the following persons (other than the Directors of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company, being 5% or more of the
total issued share capital of the Company, as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

(1) Long position in the Shares:
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(1) EBROWHER:

Percentage
of the
Company’s
issued share

Number of capital
Shares (Note 3)
Name of Capacity/Nature interested HARRD T E BT
Substantial Shareholders of interests BEEZN BABNE DL
TERRER B 5% EEME RHAEE (H53)
Sino Merchant Car Rental Limited Beneficial owner 3,499,233,889 53.99%
(Note 1) EnERE
EPHEBERAA
(Htet 1)
Dundee Greentech Limited Beneficial owner 789,500,000 12.18%
(Note 2) (f15#2) EnEEE
China Orient Asset Management Person having security 2,261,473,889 34.89%
Corporation interests in shares
FERSEEEENA RN BB SR AT
Sheng Yuan Securities Limited Person having security 1,100,000,000 16.97%

BIREHBRAT

interests in shares
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Interests in share options of the Company

In addition, Options were granted by the Company to
Sino Merchant pursuant to and upon completion of the
Connected Placing on 15 June 2015, which entitled
it to subscribe for up to 800,000,000 Option Shares
(representing approximately 12.34% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2015) during
the period of 24 months from 15 June 2015 to 14
June 2017 at the exercise price of HK$0.26 per Option
Share (subject to adjustment). On 2 July 2015, Sino
Merchant partially exercised the Options to subscribe
for 400,000,000 new Shares. As at 31 December 2015,
Sino Merchant remains the beneficial owner of, and was
interested in, 400,000,000 Option Shares.

Notes:

(1) These 3,499,2383,889 Shares and the underlying
Shares referred to in the paragraph headed “Interests
in share options of the Company” above are registered
in the name of Sino Merchant, the entire issued share
capital of which is owned as to 60% by Ms. Deng
Shufen (the chairman and an executive director of the
Company) and 40% by Ms. Liu Jiangyuan (an executive
director of the Company)*. Ms. Deng Shufen and Ms.
Liu Jiangyuan are deemed to be interested in all the
Shares and underlying Shares in which Sino Merchant
is interested by virtue of the SFO. As Mr. Dai Yumin
is the spouse of Ms. Deng Shufen, he is deemed to
be interested in the Shares and the underlying Shares
which Ms. Deng Shufen is deemed to be interested in
for the purposes of the SFO.

* During the Year and up to 24 March 2016, the
entire issued share capital of Sino Merchant was
owned as to 60% by Ms. Deng Shufen, 20%
by Ms. Liu Jiangyuan and 20% by Mr. Gui Bin
(an executive director of the Company). On 25
March 2016, Mr. Gui Bin transferred his entire
interests in Sino Merchant to Ms. Liu Jiangyuan.

2) These 789,500,000 Shares are registered in the name
of Dundee Greentech Limited (a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands), the entire issued share
capital of which is held Mr Liu Hailong.

(3) The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the

basis of 6,481,375,000 Shares in issue as at 31
December 2015.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, no
person (other than the Directors whose interests are set
out in the section headed “Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company” above) had registered an interest or a
short position in the Shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded in the register
of the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”), which was approved by a written resolution of the
shareholders of the Company and adopted by the Board on
27 November 2009, for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group. The terms of the Scheme comply with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer option (the
“Options”) to subscribe for such number of shares in the
Company (the “Shares”) in accordance with the terms set
out in the Scheme to any proposed or existing director,
manager or other employee of the Group; any shareholder
of the Company; any supplier of goods or services to the
Group; any customer, consultant, business or joint venture
partner, franchisee, contractor, or agent of any member of the
Group; any person or entity that provides design, research,
development or other support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to any member of the Group;
and any associate of any of the foregoing persons.

The total number of securities available for issue under the
Scheme shall not exceed 60,000,000 Shares, being 10% of
total issued Shares as at the date of listing.

An offer of the grant of an Option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 28 days from the date of offer.
A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an Option. The maximum entitlement of each
participant shall not in any 12-month period exceed 1% of the
Company’s issued share capital from time to time.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in
the offer to a grantee, there is no minimum period under the
Scheme for holding an Option before it can be exercised.
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The exercise price is determined based on the higher of (i)
the nominal value of the Shares; (ii) the closing price of the
Shares on the date of offer; or (iii) the average closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of offer.

The Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on 26
November 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, no Option was granted
under the Scheme. In addition, there were no outstanding
Options under the Scheme as at 31 December 2015.

Share Options Under a Supply Chain
Management Agreement

On 11 August 2011, Perception Digital Technology (BVI)
Ltd. (“PDBVI"),
Company, entered into a supply chain management agreement

an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the

(the “Supply Chain Agreement”) with Teleepoch Limited
(“Teleepoch”) pursuant to which PDBVI, together with its
subsidiaries, will act as the exclusive supply chain partner
of Teleepoch for a term of three years. In consideration of
Teleepoch entering into the Supply Chain Agreement, the
Company entered into an option agreement with Teleepoch,
pursuant to which the Company granted an option to
Teleepoch, entitling Teleepoch to subscribe for a maximum of
15,500,000 shares of the Company (the “Upfront Option”),
representing approximately 2.5% of the then existing issued
share capital of the Company, at the exercisable price of
HK$0.38 per share. The Upfront Option was vested on
11 November 2011 and is exercisable in whole or in part
during the period from 11 November 2011 to 10 August
2016. In 2013, the Company completed an open offer
whereby the exercise price and the number of shares that
may be subscribed under the Upfront Option were adjusted
to HK$0.351 and 16,800,450, respectively. In 2014, the
Company completed another open offer whereby the exercise
price and the number of shares that may be subscribed under
the Upfront Option were further adjusted to HK$0.233 and
25,277,957, respectively.
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In addition to the Up Front Option, the Company also
conditionally granted to Teleepoch an option to subscribe for
0.285 shares of the Company (the “Performance Option”)
at the exercise price of HK$0.38 for every HK$1.0 of net
profit to the Company generated from sales orders placed
by the clients of Teleepoch (“Performance Benchmark”),
subject to a maximum of 46,750,000 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 7.5% of the then existing issued
share capital of the Company. On each anniversary date
during the term of the Supply Chain Management Agreement,
a portion of the Performance Option shall be vested and
become exercisable. The number of shares which Teleepoch
will be entitled to subscribe for pursuant to such vested
portion of the Performance Option shall be determined by
reference to the Performance Benchmark for the previous year
(the “Vesting Condition”). Subject to such Vesting Condition,
the Performance Option may be exercised in whole or in part
at any time during the period from 11 August 2012 to 10
August 2016. In 2013, the Company completed an open offer
whereby the exercise price and the number of shares that
may be subscribed under the Performance Option, subject
to the Vesting Condition, were adjusted to HK$0.351 and
50,672,325,
another open offer whereby the exercise price and the number

respectively. In 2014, the Company completed
of shares that may be subscribed under the Performance
Option, subject to the Vesting Condition, were further adjusted
to HK$0.233 and 76,241,580, respectively.

Details of the share options outstanding as at 31 December
2015 granted pursuant to the Supply Chain Agreement are as

follows:
Number of
share options
BREHE
At
31 December
2015
M=-Z—HE  Exercise price* Date of grant
+=A=+—H THEE* BHAH
25,277,957 HK$0.233 11 August 2011
02337 Z—T——F/\A+—H
76,241,580" HK$0.233 11 August 2011

0233%nx —ET—FN\A+—H
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G e N NN ) W = I e A )
Teleepoch#® ) B8 W # - 7] 5t &~ & A E
Teleepoch W% 2 M SHE ] E MBI & 1.0
BTN REER] - ®ITEE0.38E T
REC2BRARNA RN ([ RBBRE]) - L
IR 546,750,000 KRB 5 - HERAR

AERRACETRANTSN RN ERE
BHEnFHASER —F2B  —BOoHEK

WEREEEHFEE LA T171F - Teleepoch iR
BERABBRENZEZBI S BB ERENR

NEE  S2RE-FHXRREEMEE (B
B4 - EREREGREARRT - RIRE

RN —E——FNA+—HBHE-_ZT—RF
NAT+BHERERE2TSTDTE - RZF
—=F EBEBBRUEOHART AABTHA
FREE - Bt BERRERETTRENR
BITFEERENEEC DB AEZ0.351 8T
% 50,672,325 ik fn c RZT—MF - £H B
BHERBRRT ARRIEKS —HARBE -
Bt BBERAEREN TRENROITEE
EBROBEEDRE—FRHEE0.233F TR
76,241,580 BEA% (7 o

R-ZZE-—RF+-R=+—8 BEZHERE
e M RITRE RO IE AT -

Exercise period

TEER

11 November 2011 to 10 August 2016
—T——F+—A+t—-HBE-_E—X"ENA+H

11 November 2011 to 10 August 2016~
—Z——F+—At+t—HE-ZE—XENATE*
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Notes:

* The exercise price is subject to adjustment in case of rights or
bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share
capital.

N The number of Performance Option and the period that the

Performance Option become vested and exercisable are
subject to the achievement of the Performance Benchmark.

Other Share Options

Pursuant to the completion of the Connected Placing on 15
June 2015, the Company has granted to Sino Merchant the
Options which carry rights to subscribe for up to 800,000,000
Option Shares at the initial exercise price of HK$0.26 per
Option Share upon exercise of such Options within the
exercise period commencing on 15 June 2015 (the “Initial
Issue Date”) and ending on the last day of the twenty-fourth
(24th) months from the Initial Issue Date (both days inclusive).
For more details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 27 March 2015 and 15 June 2015 and the
circular of the Company dated 28 April 2015.

Details of the Options outstanding as at 31 December 2015
are as follows:

Number of
Options
BREHA
At

31 December
2015
R=-ZB—-E1F
+=ZB=+—H

Date of grant
RHBH

Exercise price

T

HK$0.26
0.26 7T

15 June 2015
“ZE—HFA+HH

400,000,000

Warrants

The subscription price of the outstanding warrants was
adjusted from HK$0.12 per share to HK$0.11 per share as a
result of the Connected Placing. Details of which are set out in
the announcement dated 15 June 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, the subscription price of the

outstanding 152,795,454 warrants would be HK$0.11 per
share.
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“t+tHE-_E—RAFAAA+THREBHZAMEAR
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RZZE-—AF+ZRA=+—H " HARTEBER

Exercise period

T

16 June 2015 to 15 June 2017
ZE-AERNATAHEZZ—tEXATAA

o I R

HMATTERAREZRE 2 RBED ARERLESFE
MAEKR0A2ETABRESR011ET - &#15
HRABMR-_T—RFAAATRRAZRM -

RZTE—RAF+ZA=+—H 152,795,454
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Other than option holdings disclosed above, at no time during
the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Directors or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

There has been no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director of the Company or an entity connected with
the Director is or was materially interested, either directly or
indirectly, subsisting during or at the end of the year.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, subject
to the applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may
incur or sustain in or about the execution of their duty in their
offices. Such permitted indemnity provision had been in force
throughout the Year and up to the date of this report. The
Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the
Group.
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Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the share option scheme of the Company as
disclosed below, no equity-linked agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares or that require
the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the
Company during the Year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Related Party Transactions

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2015 is disclosed in Note
36 to the financial statements.

None of the “Related Party Transactions” as disclosed in
note 36 to the financial statements for the Year constituted
discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-
exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing
Rules.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Board believes that conserving the environment is
an important corporate duty. The Group commits to the
principle and practice of reducing, recycling and re-using. To
help conserve the environment, it implements green office
practices such as re-deployment of office furniture as far as
possible, encouraging the use of recycled paper for printing
and copying, double-sided printing and copying, setting up
recycling bins, reducing energy consumption by switching off
idle lightings, air conditioning and electrical appliances. The
Group also strives to maintain an eco-friendly fleet of vehicles

for its car rental business.

The Group will review its environmental policies and practices
from time to time and consider implementing further eco-
friendly measures, sustainability targets and practices in the
operation of the Group’s businesses to embrace the principles
of reducing, recycling and re-using, and further minimize our
already low impact on the natural environment.
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Compliance with laws, rules and

regulations

The Company encourages its employees to understand,
comply with and keep themselves abreast of the laws,
rules and regulations applicable to their positions and the
operation of the businesses of the Group as any violation
could jeopardize the integrity of the Group. The Company
has employed suitable personnel and engaged professional
advisers as and when appropriate to provide legal advice on
the applicability, existence or interpretation of any laws, rules
and regulations. The Board is not aware of any violation of the
applicable laws, rules and regulations that had a significant
impact on the business and/or operation of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2015.

Relationship with employees,
customers, suppliers and business
partners

The Board recognizes the importance of fostering loyalty
and mutual trust with the Group’s employees, customers,
suppliers and business partners as this creates immense
long-term benefits for the Group. To achieve the above
purpose, the Board strives to promote constant and effective
communication, and resolve any issues efficiently. The
Board considers that the Group has overall maintained
good relationship with employees, customers, suppliers and
business partners for the operation of its businesses.

Corporate Governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 21 to 32 of this
annual report.
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Auditors

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 have been audited by Ernst & Young, the auditors of
the Company. A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst
& Young as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. There has been no
change in the auditors of the Company in any of the preceding
years since the Listing.

On behalf of the Board

Ms. Deng Shufen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report

e
EY::

To the shareholders of E-Rental Car Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
E-Rental Car Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries set out on pages 51 to 190, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
Our
report is made solely to you, and for no other purpose. We

consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
18 M A% 2R

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBEmEk

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE_ZT—hF+-A=+—HItFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —F-F
Notes HK$ HK$
B o BT BT
REVENUE W 25 5 275,308,719 222,255,924
Cost of sales SHE AR (251,468,283) (205,345,437)
Gross profit EF 23,840,436 16,910,487
Other income and gains, net H At Ug A R W25 5 58 5 29,843,171 8,008,214
Research and development costs 3% K B B AR AR (1,507,783) (2,618,224)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R D HAX (6,526,902) (14,613,513)
General and administrative expenses —mRRITHEA (39,680,435) (25,413,974)
Other expenses, net R (929,141)  (26,033,043)
Finance costs BhE A AR 6 (1,900,535) (118,608)
Share of loss of a joint venture Bl —REERAIEE (7,854,777) (2,154,466)
LOSS BEFORE TAX RREL AT BT R 7 (4,715,966)  (46,033,127)
Income tax expense Frisfim st 10 (2,862,369) (3,551,925)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FRER (7,578,335)  (49,585,052)
Attributable to: AR & 75 MG -
Owners of the parent HRRER A (7,578,335)  (49,585,052)
(Restated)
(#EE )
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BAREERBRESEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EhERER
OF THE PARENT 11
Basic and diluted - YINE HK(0.14) cent HK(1.56) cents

AL

gl
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Consolidated Statement
mEZTHEWAE

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE_T—hF+-_A=+—HI&FE

of Comprehensive Income

2015 2014
—B-EHF —F-0F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREE (7,578,335)  (49,585,052)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Hith2mBA
(LOSS) (B#8)
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified HiEA[peEFHHDETIBR Y
to profit or loss: HHE :
Available-for-sale investment AEHERE
Change in fair value NEEEE) 1,187,400 =
Income tax effect Fristis & (118,740) —
1,068,660 —
Exchange differences on translation of RINETHIE H Z 58
foreign operations (282,671) 80,397
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal  H & [1/& 2 7] 8 B [& 5 5
of subsidiaries (2,797,029) —
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FREMZERA(BE)
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX R & (2,011,040) 80,397
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR FARAEEERESE
THE YEAR (9,589,375)  (49,504,655)
Attributable to: AT %75 P4
Owners of the parent ISINEIEZZEPN (9,589,375)  (49,504,655)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

E B AR IR

31 December 2015

—F-AF+_HA=+—8

2015 2014
—E-EHF —ET—F
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5E BT BT
(Restated)
(&=75)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment =N 12 37,870,159 35,659,030
Goodwill EES 13 26,210,338 26,210,338
Intangible assets EWEE 14 68,670,000 68,670,000
Interest in a joint venture R—REERAMNER 15 10,163,742 7,845,534
Deferred development costs iR FE 5 B A AN 17 - 2,498,264
Long term deposits K 21 3,095,346 6,166,396
Available-for-sale investment AR ERE 16 39,987,400 —
Total non-current assets EMEBEELE 185,996,985 147,049,562
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 18 1,293,115 2,479,162
Trade receivables FEWLAR SR 19 250,161,834 212,973,874
Loan receivables FEUE 5k 20 111,835,710 =
Prepayments, deposits and TENRIE - Z2 Kk
other receivables H e IR RIR 21 460,929,350 79,312,367
Amount due from a joint venture FE—KE & QA FIRIB 15 - 5,842,767
Available-for-sale investment Al ERE 16 - 1,260,000
Tax recoverable Al iR [B] £ 18 206,638 —
Pledged bank deposit B RITER 23 18,794,078 —
Cash and cash equivalents HeMIREEEY 23 5,050,455 8,090,982
Total current assets MENE EBE 848,271,180 309,959,152
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables FETRR SR 24 34,305,597 34,801,378
Other payables and accruals H A & 5 508 I FE T RIR 25 15,583,694 86,048,115
Interest-bearing bank and other SRR REMEER
borrowings 26 26,109,159 8,386,341
Tax payable FERHIE 4,403,273 2,609,609
Total current liabilities BB EAE 80,401,723 131,845,443
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 767,869,457 178,113,709
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBARS
LIABILITIES 953,866,442 325,163,271

E-Rental Car Company Limited EfA BB 4FHESR A 7



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE B AR R 3R
31 December 2015
—2-AF+-A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-EHF —E—FE
Notes HK$ HK$
M= BT BT
(Restated)
(#==51)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Interest-bearing other borrowings STEHMEE 26 5,404,574 5,311,104
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBAE 27 17,594,788 17,911,028
Total non-current liabilities EmB B EE 22,999,362 23,222,132
Net assets BEFE 930,867,080 301,941,139
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BARER AEGER
of the parent
Issued capital B 21T AR 28 64,813,750 40,813,750
Reserves i 30 866,053,330 261,127,389
Total equity AR 930,867,080 301,941,139
Deng Shufen Dai Yumin
M HEH
Director Director
EE EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

I—\/

mEEmEER

Year ended 31 December 2015

HE_Z—RF+_A=+—HLFE
Available-
for-sale
Share Share investment  Exchange

Issued  premium Capital Warrant option revaluation fluctuation Accumulated Total

capital  account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses equity

. y L ERE . 3

BRfRE  RORER ﬁmﬁﬁ %Eﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁé BRERE  EMRG ENRBRE  ZiA LiEs

Notes HKS$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS

fisk B B B B B B B B B

(note 30) note 28)  [note 29)
(Was0)  (Wies) (W)

At 1 January 2014 N-2-mE-fA-A 112,050,000 64,031,889 43823276  7,048243 1,859,529 - 2,785,048 (217918,622) 13,679,463

Loss for the year EhgE - - - - - - - (495585,052) (49,585,052)
Other comprehensive income ~ EMEM2ELRE :

for the year:
Exchange differences on ENSHOER
translation of foreign b

operations - - - - - - 80,397 - 80,397
Total comprehensive income/ iWiWﬁu/ (B#)

(loss) for the year ok = = = = - - 80,397  (49,585,062) (49,504,655)
Capital reduction s 28 (100,845,000) = - = = = — 100,845,000 =
lssue of shares &7k(p 28 29608750 316,155,450 - - - - - ~ 345,764,200
Share issue expenses e g 28 - (7997869 = = = = = - (7997869
Transfer of share option EREERS

reserve upon the expiry of EREREbE

share options - - - - (54,429) - - 54,429 -
At 31 December 2014 and nZE-[F

at 1 January 2015 JF:HE;[_E&

“E-R%-f-
A 40,813,750 372,189,470* 43,823,276*  7,048,243*  1,805,100* =*  2,865,445* (166,604,145)* 301,941,139
Loss for the year EQER - - - - - - - (7,578,335 (7,578,335)
Other comprehensive income ~ EREMZERE
for the year:
— Changes in fair value - ftHERE
of avallable-for-sale NTERE)
investment, net of tax Rk - - - - - 1,068,660 - - 1,068,660
— Release of exchange - HENBARR
reserve Upon disposal BOER&E
of subsidiaries 32(b) - - - - - - (2,797,029 - (2,797,029)
— Exchange differences — BONERMES
on translation of foreign £
operations - - - - - - (2826M1) - (2826M1)
Total comprehensive income/ iﬂﬂ%mﬁ(m/ )

(loss) for the year - - - 1,068,660 (3,079,700) (7,578,335)  (9,589,375)
Issue of shares ﬁ‘ﬂﬁxf’\ 28 24,000,000 508,000,000 - - 112,000,000 - - - ,000,
Share issue expenses Bh#IER 2 - (5,484,684) - - - - (5,484,684)
Release of capital reserve upon  HEHBAREER

dlisposal of subsidiaries ARG - - (3,646,306) - - - - 3,646,306 -
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1f

t-A=1-H 64,813,750 874,704,786* 40,176,970  7,048,243* 113,805,100  1,068,660*  (214,255)* (170,536,174)* 930,867,080
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZEREEBRERESHBARRER AN 4

HK$866,053,330 (2014: HK$261,127,389) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

& f# #8866,053,330% L(= & — I F :

261,127,389/ 7T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN A —|
,%/T\ (== Iﬁlﬁulb%%
Year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_ZT—hF+-_A=+—HItFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —ET—F
Notes HK$ HK$
Bt BT B TT
(Restated)
(&==7)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax R 75 Al s 18 (4,715,966)  (46,033,127)
Adjustments for: KUATSIERE :
Finance costs BEKA 6 1,900,535 118,608
Share of loss of a joint venture Eh—xREZEQREE 7,854,777 2,154,466
Interest income A B WA 5 (7,579,927) (272,972)
Waivers of other borrowings MEAMEE 5 - (1,883,536)
Depreciation e 7 12,137,073 3,351,508
Amortisation of deferred development 3 AIE [ B R A 42 6
costs 7 1,098,296 10,681,435
Impairment/write-off of deferred EIEF B AR E,
development costs P 55 7 - 4,883,863
Write-off of items of property, Y BE &
plant and equipment R A58 B 7 228,764 —
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEWE - BER
property, plant and equipment, HEEENER
net (Yas)F58 7 285,093 (107,040)
Impairment of trade receivables JE W BR OB (B 7 - 11,869,599
Impairment/write-off of other H R IERE
receivables Hif 58 7 298,159 5,426,590
Write-down of inventories to net WRTFEZRA &R
realisable value, net FEFRE 7 9,322 1,871,685
Write-off of a deposit MsHZ & 7 10,500 —
Write-off of materials i EE A 7 106,625 —
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries o E KB A B Ay Y ek 5 (2,982,161) =
Loss on early repayment of an other REEE—BHAM
borrowing BEREE 7 - 3,852,740
8,651,090 (4,086,181)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD(38m) 966,351 (155,412)

Increase in trade receivables

Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Increase in loan receivables

& W BR R AN

BNFIER - ke REME
YR IR S A

e & FRIE N

(39,578,835)

(380,775,574)
(109,470,000)

(138,254,486)

(73,255,415)

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FERTERZRIE I, CRi ) 338,578 (52,457,132)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables Bt B A FRIB K FEETROR

and accruals #hn, Crl ) 3,858,118 (5,521,239)
Decrease in provision BEm L - (672,700)
Cash used in operations KEEEMTAR S (516,010,272) (274,402,565)
Interest received B FIE 5,172,893 —
Overseas taxes paid BB INE IR (851,794) =
Net cash flows used in operating LE RTINS

activities ik Bt (511,689,173) (274,402,565)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
an\ IEI@/}“JE%

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE_ZT—hF+-A=+—HItFE

2015 2014
—E—RHE —MF
Notes HK$ HK$
B oE BT BT
(Restated)
(#==751)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Disposal of subsidiaries HEH B A A 32(b) (7,303,206) —
Purchases of items of property, plant BEYE BEX
and equipment B (10,462,904) (5,857,356)
Proceeds from disposal of items of LEME - BERE&E
property, plant and equipment 1HH E’Jﬁﬁ@?ﬁ( 2,551,029 952,616
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—RMBAQ 31 (61,049,505)  (19,278,076)
Capital contribution to a joint venture H— %Q%@Tm§$&)\ - (10,000,000)
Increase in an amount due from a B —RE &R FZRIEEM
joint venture (4,330,218) (5,842,767)
Purchases of available-for-sale BEAHLERE
investments (39,544,600) (1,827,000)
Proceeds from disposal of an available-  H& Al HEREH TS
for-sale investment RIE 1,116,900 567,000
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank AR IRITIF 5K
deposit B (3G ) (18,794,078) 6,018,550
Interest received A S 41,324 272,972
Net cash flows used in HEEE TR

investing activities

REMEFE

(137,775,258)

(84,994,061)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMETHNRESRE
ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of shares BT FT1S F0E 28 644,000,000 345,764,200
Share issue expenses [&1n 8178 B 28 (5,484,684) (7,997,869)
New other borrowings EEMEER 18,612,360 —
Repayment of other borrowings* EEEMEE" (27,930,686)  (46,295,631)
New bank loans T RITE 19,065,000 -
Interest and bank charges paid BEF B RIRITHE (1,900,535) (118,608)
Net cash flows from financing activities B & R EIFT1S

e mEFHE 646,361,455 291,352,092

E-Rental Car Company Limited B8 BB ER R A 7
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

an\ IE:%/)H:E'%%

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE_T—hF+-_A=+—HI&FE

2015 2014
—2-EfF —F—MmF
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5 BT BT
(Restated)
(#EE7)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RE&RHELZEY
EQUIVALENTS WD FEE (3,102,976)  (18,044,534)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning E¥138& RIS HEY
of year 8,090,982 26,139,149
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [ER&B)g 2 %%
net 62,449 (3,633)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT HSX&BELRREZEY
END OF YEAR 5,050,455 8,090,982
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERREEEYWER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2
Cash and bank balances B& MIRTT4E 8 23 5,050,455 8,090,982
2 Including cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding BREEANBREEE AREEEMNLTHHERA

liabilities relating to arrangements which are in substance

finance leases.
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Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

E-Rental Car Company Limited (the “Company”)
(formerly known as Perception Digital Holdings Limited)
is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company’s registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
Company’s place of business in Hong Kong is located
at Suites 3101-3105, 31/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre,
108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) was primarily
involved in the provision of car rental services; the
trading of electronic components/materials; the
research, design, development and sale of digital signal
processing (“DSP”) based consumer electronic devices/
platforms, including embedded firmware; the provision
of solutions/services for DSP-based consumer electronic
devices/platforms and financing services.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

AR5 R R MY AL

31 December 2015
—2-AF+-A=t+—H

AAREEER

EHEEMEEERRQAR(XRA2H])
(RIS HBERAERAR D Z—H
RASHETMAINER AT - XA
A)FE 9% E R My HbIE & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands ° AN A RIE R B & 3 B AL 7
BABTELTITB1085 A A L
311 3101-83105 % °

FRARAREMBRARSRENE
S8 DETERFRBETEHERS
BEEETFZMH /MHE UBERER
(IDSP) REREVEEE T4/ T4
(BRI ANBE )R - &R F#E
NIHE : REDSPAERHEBEE T2
M/ BMBBIRT R, RIS IA R 28R
% o

REWBEARNESR

ARBEZWMBRBFBENAT

as follows:
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ to the Company
registration and registered PN
business share capital EiEEE DL
Name B A BRITEE/ Direct Indirect Principal activities
A% B e R A Ef [pikE TEEK
Ace Leader (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100  Provision of financing services
BE(ER)ER AT 0 187 RESBRE
China E-Rental Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100 — Provision of trading of
Company Limited BB 18T electronic components/

materials and intercompany
management services
RHEEFZH/
MHZEHR
REBRHER RS

E-Rental Car Company Limited EfA BB 4FHESR A 7
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2015
—T-mF+-A=t+-H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

1. 2AFAREEERE)

Percentage of

Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ to the Company
registration and registered v YN
business share capital EEEZEI T

Name B3I A BRITLE/ Direct Indirect Principal activities

A% AT R AR 3t B R A Ef Gk FEEK

E-Rental International Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Trading of electronic

Trading Limited B 18T components/materials

BTSH/MHZES

PD Trading (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Research, design

Limited BB 27T development and sale

of DSP-based consumer

electronic devices/platforms,

including embedded firmware;

provision of solutions/services

for DSP-based consumer

electronic devices/platforms;

and trading of electronic

components/materials

% - ®at - AER

HEERDSPHUHEE TEM/

Fa(BERARES)

REERDSPAEBETHEM,/

FAmBRAR/ R

AREFEH/MHEHE S

tRgLAEHEERER People’s Republic RMB5,000,000 = 100 Provision of car rental services

‘A7) (Beiling Tu An Car of China (‘PRC”)/  AR¥5,000,0007T REEE RS
Rental Services Limited)* Mainland China
REARLME
(THE ),/ HhEARkE

* This entity is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned * B AB RS EEEZMA NS

enterprise under PRC law and its statutory financial
statements are not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong
Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young
global network. The English name of this entity referred
to in this note represented management’s best efforts
in translating the Chinese name of this entity as no
English name has been registered or available.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for available-for-
sale investment which has been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2015. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give
the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

2.1

AR5 R R MY AL

31 December 2015
—2-AF+-A=t+—H

RuE
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mEEE

REMBHRREBARRRENE QT
BE_T-—RAFt-_A=T—"HBLLEE
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2015
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of
the subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.
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2.1

2.2

Notes to Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards
for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to
HKAS 19 (2011)

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Annual Improvements Project  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements Project  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle

The adoption of the above revised standards and
interpretation has had no significant financial effect on
the current year’s financial statements.

In addition, the Group has adopted the amendments
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited relating to the
disclosure of financial information with reference to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the
current financial year. The main impact to the financial
statements is on the presentation and disclosure of
certain information in the financial statements.

2.1

2.2
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2015
—T-RF+-A=t+-8

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture’

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception’

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in

Joint Operations’

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
Revenue from Contracts with Customers?
Disclosure Initiative’

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation'

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements'
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle'

Annual Improvements Project

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

s Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its
annual financial statements beginning on or after 1
January 2016 and therefore is not applicable to the
Group

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have a
significant impact on the Group’s results and financial
position.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investment in a joint venture is stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of the joint venture is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in the
joint venture, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of the joint venture
is included as part of the Group’s investment in a joint
venture.

AR5 R R MY AL
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31 December 2015
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its an available-for-sale investment
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

Annual Report 2015 =& — A F £ 1§

24 FESTHTHEBRE )

EBREHREEE

MELEFGEREEENASELE
OREELXBEMAR) R K E S FRM
BE - mWASEABU(ReELBMA
BRI E S B REREE - BIFERR
BEE - RHERRNREERRT—
HIR A ERE -

HEABSEERCELBM(KREES
BRI — 80 b & BT RS
—#Boy - AU EETE B W e 1R

HZEHEXBHBNBET AZED
MEREE - ELBER THENEERE
MHERBEEERMREREELEM
BB DR E o

AFES

(]

K%E%%ﬁiﬂiﬁﬁiﬁﬁiﬁT
HHERE - AFEIDEMHSEBER
AERMETNEFRSPHEEEM
WS EEREMMHER - RFE
AEDENBRLEEEXERAEN
REZREELRENEIEMHANKE
TEMSHERLT  AIREELRED
RAEMNTIHET - TEARBNTIHE
R AEBEEIEN S - BEXEE
MAFEDERTSE2EEREEXA
BEEEMANBRITE(RRMSSEE
KRB ENKELBEMNETE) ©



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(if) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(V) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(viij a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viiiy  the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to

write off the cost of each item of property, plant and

equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful

lives:

Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 33'/,%
office equipment

Machinery and equipment 25%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 25%

Toolings 50%

Motor vehicles 20% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment

have different useful lives, the cost of that item is

allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and

each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,

useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,

and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial

year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Vehicle rental business licence and licence plates

Vehicle rental business licence and licence plates are
accounted for as intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives and are not amortised. They are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset
will generate future economic benefits, the availability
of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products not exceeding three years, commencing from
the date when the products are put into commercial
production or when the intangible assets are available
for use.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks incidental to ownership of assets to the Group,
other than legal title, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of
the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases are included in property, plant
and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Group are classified, at initial
recognition, as loans and receivables and available-for-sale
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification is as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and other
expenses for receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in unlisted equity investments
and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither classified
as held for trading nor designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category
are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market
conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in other income, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss
in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments
are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not,
it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is
no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale
are not reversed through the statement of profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less
than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available
for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Future
interest income continues to be accrued based on
the reduced carrying amount of the asset using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
The interest income is recorded as part of finance
income. Impairment losses on debt instruments are
reversed through the statement of profit or loss if the
subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at
the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group
on certain products are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs
and returns, discounted to their present values as
appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and released to the statement of profit or loss
by way of a reduced deprecation charge.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when

the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(a)

from the sales of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold.

from the rendering services, when the
corresponding services are rendered;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms; and

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents service fees received

in advance of the rendering of the relevant services.

Deferred revenue is released to profit or loss when the

corresponding services have been rendered.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the Group
or the employee are met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits
Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken as at the end of the reporting period
is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following period. An accrual
is made at the end of each reporting period for the
expected future cost of such paid leave earned during
the period by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)
Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities of the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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31 December 2015
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Judgements (continued)
Business combination

On 19 December 2014, the Group acquired the entire
equity interest of Gigantic Wisdom Limited and its
operating subsidiary, It Rz &ZAEHEBREE R
al, (collectively, the “Gigantic Group”) from Nimble
Ring Limited. As at 31 December 2014, the goodwill
arising from the above acquisition was determined on
a provisional basis as the Group was in the process
of completing a valuation to assess the fair values of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
During the current reporting period, management has
finalised the assessment of fair value of the assets
and liabilities of the Gigantic Group at the date of
acquisition. Intangible assets acquired by the Group in
the acquisition of the Gigantic Group include vehicle
rental business licence and licence plates (collectively
referred to as the “Intangible Assets”). The residual
portion of the purchase consideration was allocated as
goodwill, which represents the balance of the purchase
consideration over the fair value of identifiable net
assets acquired by the Group. The respective fair values
of the identifiable intangible assets acquired through the
acquisition of the Gigantic Group have been determined
using the excess earnings method which represented
the discounted present values of the projected annual
excess earnings of each of the Intangible Assets.
The purchase price allocation has involved significant
management judgement and estimation. The Intangible
Assets have indefinite useful lives and are subject to
impairment review and could affect the future results of
the Group. Further information on the valuation basis
of the Intangible Assets and the carrying amounts of
the Intangible Assets are included in notes 2.4 and 14,
respectively, to the financial statements.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Judgements (continued)
Legal structure of an available-for-sale investment

As mentioned in note 35 to the financial statements
below, the Group subscribed 111,111 new ordinary
shares of Prime Elite Ventures Limited (“Prime Elite”),
a company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands, at
a total consideration of US$5 million (approximately
HK$39 million) during the year and owned as to 10%
equity interest of Prime Elite. Prime Elite does not have
equity ownership in a company registered in the PRC
(the “PRC operating company”) which is engaged in
the business of online car rental services in the PRC.
Nevertheless, under certain contractual arrangements
(“Contractual Arrangements”) entered into between a
wholly-foreign owned enterprise of Prime Elite and the
PRC operating company, Prime Elite has obtained the
right of control, economic interests and benefits over
the PRC operating company. Management assessed the
terms and conditions of the Contractual Arrangements
and considered they are legally enforceable in the
PRC, as such, management considered the Group has
obtained certain economic interests and benefits over
the PRC operating company through subscription of
shares in Prime Elite. The 10% equity investment was
accounted for as an available-for-sale investment based
on management’s classification and it is subsequently
measured at fair value in accordance with HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
The carrying amount of the available-for-sale equity
investment as at 31 December 2015 was approximately
HK$40 million. Further details are set out in note 16 to
the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Judgements (continued)
Determination of functional currency

The Group measures foreign currency transactions in
the respective functional currencies of the Company
and its subsidiaries. In determining the functional
currency of each entity of the Group, judgement is
required to determine and consider the currency that
mainly influences sales prices of goods and services
and of the country/jurisdiction whose competitive forces
and regulations mainly determines the sales prices of
goods and services; the currency that mainly influences
labour, materials and other costs of providing goods
or services; the currency in which funds from financing
activities are generated; and the currency in which
receipts from operating activities are usually retained.
The functional currency of each entity of the Group is
determined based on management’s assessment of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates. When the indicators are mixed and the
functional currency is not obvious, management uses
its judgement to determine the functional currency that
most faithfully represents the economic effects of the
underlying transactions, events and conditions.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Judgements (continued)
Income taxes

The Group has exposure to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is involved in
determining the provision for income taxes. Determining
income tax provisions involves judgement on the future
tax treatment of certain transactions and interpretation
of tax rules/tax laws. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions/arrangements and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment
of such transactions/arrangements is reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

Finance lease arrangements

The Group has entered into certain arrangements
(including sale and leaseback arrangements) with a
leasing company to finance its purchases of certain
motor vehicles for its car rental business. The Group
evaluated the terms and conditions of the arrangements
and assessed that the arrangements transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the motor vehicles to the Group and so
accounts for the arrangements as finance leases.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that
a loan/receivable is impaired. To determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group
considers factors such as the probability of insolvency
or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
default or significant delay in payments. Where there
is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and
timing of future cash flows are estimated based on,
inter alia, historical loss experience for assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and/or other relevant
facts and circumstances.

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated
impairment of receivables arising from the inability of its
debtors to make the required payments or if the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred) is less
than the financial assets’ carrying amount. The Group
makes its estimates based on, inter alia, the ageing of
its receivable balances, debtors’ creditworthiness, past
repayment history and historical write-off experience
and/or other relevant facts and circumstances. If the
financial condition of its debtors was to deteriorate so
that the actual impairment loss might be higher than
expected, the Group would be required to revise the
basis/assumptions/estimates of making the allowance.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further
details are given in note 13 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets
are tested for impairment annually and at other times
when such indicator exists. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs to sell is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. Further details are given in note 13 to
the financial statements.

Annual Report 2015 =& — A F £ 1§

B RETHE R &

THEE w80
BB A

rEEEBFETHERGRE  FltA
LA EEMSEENREEL BN 2 F
FREE- - HHEREER  XEEZAM
§+%55E$F$$1j2?55+5k%fﬁé
o WEEREEE IR EAGTEZIR
BMZRE - E—HFBE R AN B
KMTEE 13 R ER M -

HHBEERBE (BEHFEI)

S HMERRANEENEREFEMAIE
Eﬁﬁ%éﬁ%ﬁ”ﬂﬁﬁﬂ@ﬁ%%f’ #5155 F F H
CEFEESFRRABEEAT R LERE
2 HAth IR R E TR BRI o B IERT 7
BEREBIRETEEENEREE
RETREBEAR EEEIRESELES
UREREERAETWE £ - BIHE
WE - mMABESELAEATFERED
ENAKEFABERERNRSE °
ANEERELEXRARDIBRELEELEE
HNAERZHESHAENRNIBEERS
HEBEIIBEEMGERRENEEEM
WK AMETE © WETFERPEER
CBEENGEEENTBHARES
wi&ﬁi?ﬁ@ﬁ& LIE S EA AT
EABHEREReRENE AIEE o
HE—PH BN HERERMES o

rr iﬂlﬁ

=



Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair value of available-for-sale investment

The available-for-sale equity investment has been
valued based on the expected cash flows discounted at
current rates applicable for items with similar terms and
risk characteristics. This valuation requires the Group
to make estimates about expected future cash flows,
credit risk, volatility and discount rates, and hence
they are subject to uncertainty. The fair value of the
available-for-sale investment at 31 December 2015 was
HK$39,987,400 (2014: Nil). Further details are included
in notes 16 to the financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged analyses
of the Group’s inventories, projections of expected
future saleability of goods, changes in technological,
market, economic and business conditions and
management experience and judgement. Based on this
review, write-down of inventories will be made when
the carrying amounts of inventories decline below
their estimated net realisable value. Due to changes in
technological, market and economic environment and
customers’ preference, actual saleability of goods may
be different from estimation and profit or loss could be
affected by differences in this estimation.

AR5 R R MY AL

31 December 2015
—2-AF+-A=t+—H
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Br R R MY AL

31 December 2015
—T-RF+-A=t+-8

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment is
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
economic useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment. Management estimates the useful lives of
the property, plant and equipment to be two to five
years or over the shorter of the lease terms and four
years for leasehold improvements. Changes in the
expected level of usage, technological developments
and/or the period over which future economic benefits
are generated could impact the economic useful lives of
the assets and, therefore, future depreciation charges
could be revised.
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Notes to Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services
and has four reportable operating segments as follows:
(a) Car rental segment — primarily engages in the
provision of car rental services;

Electronic components/materials segment —
primarily engages in the trading of electronic
components/materials;

Consumer electronic devices/platforms and
related solutions/services segment — primarily
engages in the research, design, development
and sale of DSP-based consumer electronic
devices/platforms, including embedded firmware,
and the provision of solutions/services to
customers for their DSP-based consumer
electronic devices/platforms; and

Financing services segment — primarily engages
in money lending business through the provision
of loans.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss),
which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before
tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s loss before tax except that
unallocated interest income, unallocated other income
and gains, unallocated depreciation, unallocated finance
costs as well as corporate and other unallocated
expenses, and share of loss of a joint venture are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude tax recoverable and cash
and cash equivalents, an unlisted available-for-sale
debt investment and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis, as well as an interest in a joint venture.

AR5 R R MY AL

31 December 2015
—2-AF+-A=t+—H
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 S Ak B

31 December 2015
—2-AF+-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4.

INFORMATION (continued)

Segment liabilities exclude certain tax payable and
deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head office
and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.

KEFTHER (@)

DEBEINEREE TRNATAELH
HEERAMEMARDEAERRREXR
& ARtilaEgNEEREMER -

Consumer
electronic devices/
platforms
Electronic and related solutions/
Car rental components/materials services Financing services Total
HEETEN/TA
REfE E754/iH REBEARE/ B SR it
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
C%2-3f "R-PE CE-R§ _E-IE Z¥-1f 3-0F -5 CR-E ZB-R§ CEME
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS
A AT A AT A AT A A1 B A
Segment revenue: A
Sales of goods HEEm - — 240,375,762 193475798 1,746,401 11,590,373 - — 242,122,163 205,066,171
Rendering of services R - — - - 234,782 16,525,212 - 2,341,782 16,525,212
Car rental income ERENA 24612,269 664,481 - - - - - - 24,612,269 064481
Loan interest income ERHEMA - - - - - - 6,232,505 - 6,200,508 -
24,612,069 664,481 240,375,762 193475798 4,088,183 28,115,645 6,232,505 — 275,308,719 222,255,924
Seqment results 4928 B3 G546 10820863 674745 (6959204 (TSTB61) 6,229,696 ~ I8 (30686690
Reconciliation: 85
Unallocated iterest income FARHEMA 4,34 272,072
Unallocated other income and gaing AR MMARUE 7887309 6432614
Unallocated depreciation FOLTE (1,700,648)  (826,236)
Comorate and oher unallocated ~ CERERFIERR
£XDENses (28,794,796) (18,977,889)
Unallocated finance costs FORBANA (28,646)  (93432)
Share of loss of a joint venture El-50807 58 (7,854,777) (2,154,466
Loss before tax BiHEE (4,715,966) (£6,033,127)
Segment assets ABEE 541,791,110 133,002,768 240,101,783 193,195,912 12,270,070 30,367,915 111,835,710 - 905,998,673 356,566,595
Reconciiation: 5
Comorate and other unallocated ~ PEREfKIREE
assets 128,269,492 100,442,119
Total assets ERofE 1,034,268,165 457,008,714
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

B R R MY AL

31 December 2015
—F-AF+t-A=t-8

4, RESFTER @)

Consumer
electronic devices/
platforms
Electronic and related solutions/
Car rental components/materials services Financing services Total
HEETEN/TA
REfE E784/i REB#RAR/BH SRER it
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“%2-3f _R-PE CE-R§ _E-ME Z3-1fF 3-0F C-R-§f CT-E ZB-BF CEME
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS HKS$ HKS
A AT A AT A AT A A A A
(Restated] (Restateq)
(=5 (=51
Segment liabilities 28R 44,942,438 111,875,897 10,909 11,429 34,124,408 36,739,853 - - 79,077,755 148,627,179
Reconciliation: 85
Comorate and other nallocated ~ CERERKIEEE
liabilties 24,323,330 6,440,396
Totalliabilties AR8E 103,401,085 155,067,575
Other segment information: EHATEN
Finance costs BERK 1871889 25176 - - - - - - 8T8 25176
Write-off of tems of property, plant 1%+ B Rk &AE 2
and equipment s - - - - 084 - - - 208764 -
Impairment/urie-off of deferred BRREHARE/Hi
(evelopment costs - - - - - 4883863 - - - 4883863
Impaitment of trade receivables EUE A - - - - - 11,869,599 - - - 11,869,599
Impairment/write-off of a deposit and 4 REMENGIERE
other receivables /i - - - - 308,659 5,426,590 - - 308,65 5,426,590
Write-down of inventories to net BEENRETER
realisable value, net FE 58 - - - - 9322 1871685 - - 9,322 1871685
Wte-of of materials Hith - - 106,625 - - - - - 106,625 -
Depreciation i 9,972,601 263014 - - 463728 2,262,008 - - 10436425 2525212
Amortisaton of deferred ERERRZIA
development costs - - - - 1,098,296 10,681,435 - - 1,098,296 10,681,435
Capital expenditure* ERRR 20,254,806 99,013,429 - = 17,640 = - - 20,212,446 99013429
Capital expenditure consists of additions to intangible ) BEARZBEABEEBREERDE
assets and property, plant and equipment including B Rt BEKRE—FNEA
intangible assets and property, plant and equipment ZEREERDE  BEREZE -

from the acquisition of a subsidiary.
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B 755 S Ak B

31 December 2015
—T-mF+-A=t+-H

Statements

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4.
INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The following tables present revenue from external

customers for the years ended 31 December 2015 and

2014, and certain non-current assets information as at

31 December 2015 and 2014, by geographical areas.

KeEHIER )

wEER

TR RREADEE—
—E-ME+T A=t BLEFEXE
S EFONRE  UERZZE—AFR
—E-NE+-_A=+—HETHERD
BEMEF -

United
European States of Mainland Hong
Union America China Kong Others Total
g
BofmeR ARE mE R A At &t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS
B BT BT BT iy B
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-E-15+-R=1-R
LEE
Revenue from external customers RENPRE 2 Ui 77,508 2,384,095 270,656,903 2,106,812 83,406 275,308,719
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-2-MmE+=R=1-A
LEE
Revenue from external customers RENEP 2 HE 178044 8924261 205532768 6,000,410 1616441 202,55924
As at 31 December 2015 RZZ2-TE+ZA=+-H
Non-current assets ERBEE - - 171,253,803 14,743,182 - 185,996,985
Non-current assets FRHEE
(excluding financial instruments) (PafEeRIR) - - 129,761,773 13,152,466 - 142,914,239
As at 31 December 2014 (restated) ~ R=E-ME+=A=+-8
(&E5)
Non-current assets FREE - — 130447613 16,601,949 ~ 147,049,562
Non-current assets SERPEAE
(excluding financial instruments) (PafEeRIs) - - 126012161 14,881,505 — 140,893,666
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Notes to Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information (continued)

The Group’s revenue information by geographical
areas is based on the destination where the goods are
delivered, except for revenue arising from the rendering
of services, which is based on the locations where the
customers are domiciled/located. The Group’s non-
current assets information by geographical areas is
based on the locations of the assets.

Information about major customers

Revenues of HK$184.7 million (2014: HK$132.4 million)
and HK$55.4 million (2014: HK$60.8 million) were
derived from the electronic components/materials
segment with two customers, which individually
amounted to 10 per cent or more of the Group’s total
revenue for the current and prior years.

AR5 R R MY AL

31 December 2015
—2-AF+-A=t+—H
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B R IR E P B, 15T Y B T A
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BAREEEZFNER
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 S Ak B

31 December 2015
—T-mF+-A=t+-H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5.
GAINS, NET

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods
sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts;
the value of car rental and other services rendered; and
loan interest earned from financing services rendered

Wz~ E WA K s F R

WHEFANKREREREZTHEND
EERNBERFE  REIEHERE
L ¥ B AR 755 A B Bt 2 AR 75 P BR B 2 B K
B o

during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as et « A RIS
follows:
2015 2014
—E-EfF —ET—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Revenue &
Sales of goods SHE & m 242,122,163 205,066,171
Rendering of services Fe AR 7% 2,341,782 16,525,272
Car rental income REAERA 24,612,269 664,481
Loan interest income B B WA 6,232,505 =
275,308,719 222,255,924
Other income and gains, net HaW AR WRFEE
Bank interest income HITHAEHA 41,324 272,972
Other interest income H{th ) 2 Uk A 1,306,098 =
Government subsidies BN fEE - 5,040
Income in relation to certain BEAETHRE 58 &4
procurement/credit/investment ZH 2 WA
arrangements 25,176,977 4,549,078
Gross rental income from a sublease DML HEz He WA BT
arrangement 53,914 733,138
Waivers of other borrowings WEEMEE - 1,883,636
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries S B A a /s 2,982,161 —
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BEKEKEEEB
plant and equipment, net 2 W FE - 107,040
Others EH A 282,697 457,410
29,843,171 8,008,214
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R MY AL

31 December 2015
—F-AF+t-A=t-8

FINANCE COSTS 6. RIEMNAE
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest on bank and other borrowings*  #R1T & Efh & 25 2 * 1,871,889 25,176
Bank charges RITFES 28,646 93,432
1,900,535 118,608

Amount reflecting waivers of interest on other

* RMEzE—ZE—mNF+=-_A=+—8H

borrowings of HK$742,876 for the year ended 31 LEFEREEMBEZNECER

December 2014.

742,876 B TT ©
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B 755 S Ak B

31 December 2015
—T-mF+-A=t+-H

7. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

7. BRBAIEE

AEEBRBABRENR GFART

(crediting): BIA :
2015 2014
—E-FF —=—F
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5 BT BT
Cost of inventories sold S 17 B A AR 230,695,087 189,929,865
Cost of services rendered TR AR S AR A 20,773,196 15,415,572
Depreciation” weE" 12 12,137,073 3,351,508
Research and development costs: #F9S [ B 3E Ak 7K :
Deferred expenditure amortised” — B #ELER " 17 1,098,296 10,681,435
Current year expenditure™ REERSL™ 1,507,783 2,618,224
2,606,079 13,299,659
Minimum lease payments under KEHEE T 2 xEEE
operating leases” e 11,493,726 3,015,593
Auditors’ remuneration ZERT B < 1,608,000 1,100,000
Employee benefit expense EERAMAXZ
(including directors’ (BIEESHH
remuneration (note 8)): (KI5E8)) -
Wages, salaries, allowances, IT& &% 20
bonuses and benefits in kind TEAL R BN = 18,646,029 13,616,486
Termination benefits LI EBEEF 1,811,679 107,352
Pension scheme contributions BN ETEIHE K
(defined contribution (EREptRETE) ™
schemes)™ 807,492 314,048
21,265,200 14,037,886
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B 7% S 2 P A

31 December 2015
—T—hAF+-_A=+—H

LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued) 7. BRBIAIEE®
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBBRBABERBE NG, GEA)UT
(crediting): (continued) BIH : (&)
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mF
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5E BT BT
Foreign exchange differences, net [& X =%8,F58 1,266,001 (160,956)
Government subsidies® NEGE R 1 - (5,040)
Write-off of items of property, Y -~ BB M EIEE
plant and equipment* P 8 228,764 —
Impairment/write-off of deferred EIEF TR ARE
development costs* o 8H * 17 - 4,883,863
Impairment of trade receivables* & W BR ZUR(E * 19 - 11,869,599
Impairment/write-off of other H i R IBRE
receivables* i 88 * 21 298,159 5,426,590
Loss on early repayment of an REEE-HAMEED
other borrowing* (i - 3,852,740
Write-down of inventories to net  UR1F & & Al #37 %(E -
realisable value, net" FEg" 9,322 1,871,685
Write-off of a deposit* WsHiES > 10,500 —
Write-off of materials* GV YRS 106,625 =
Product warranty provision EmiRARE - 8,000
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HE¥% - HE k&R
property, plant and equipment, 1B HMEE ()
net* SREE* 285,093 (107,040)
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31 December 2015
—T-RF+-A=t+-8

7.

LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued)

AN

##

The write-off of items of property, plant and equipment,
the impairment/write-off of deferred development costs,
the impairment of trade receivables, the impairment
of other receivables, write-off of a deposit, the loss
on early repayment of an other borrowing, the write-
off of materials and the net loss/(gain) on disposal of
items of property, plant and equipment are included in
“Other expenses, net” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The amortisation of deferred development costs of
HK$1,098,296 (2014: HK$10,681,435), the net write-
down of inventories to net realisable value of HK$9,322
(2014: HK$1,871,685), the depreciation in respect of
certain of the Group’s motor vehicles of HK$8,647,951
(2014: HK$254,621) and the minimum lease payments
under operating leases in respect of certain of the
Group’s motor vehicles of HK$5,920,428 (2014:
HK$114,549) are included in “Cost of sales” on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
in “Cost of services rendered” disclosed above.

The current year expenditure for research and
development activities charged directly to profit or loss
is included in “Research and development costs” on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Government grants have been received in the prior year
by a subsidiary of the Group established in the PRC for
supporting its research and development activities in
Mainland China.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had no material
forfeited contributions available to reduce its
contributions to its pension schemes in future years
(2014: Nil).

Annual Report 2015 =& — A F £ 1§

7.

BREE B 5 18 (40)

AN

##

W - BB KR EEE R - BT
BB AR R E, M sH - FEUBR BB
B~ i@ FIaRE - MiEke -
REEE-HAMEENER  #HH
MEREEME  BEERRERE D
B8/ () FEEIAGABRR
Y [ AR SOSER ] —H

iR FE A 8% pk AN /Y # 58 & 1,098,296
B t(— T — /M £ :10,681,435
BIL) MEMREEEATZRF
B Al 59,322 (= FT — M F :
1,871,6858 L) NEBE A TE#
M AE T E 58,647,951 (=&
— P04 : 254621787 ) R EAEE
ETERARZELHE THRIEHE
% 55,920,42878 jL( = & — U 4 :
1145498 L) ' BV ALREBER
FEEERAN ] —B R EXTRER
TERA ] o

HERBSEMEROAFEHEEEH
SIIAGREEERT AR R E
XA —18 o

AN ERA BRI P B A R E SR
EERBRA#HEE AL FEETER
HEIRTIE MR o

R-ZBE—RFE+-_A=+—8 ' &&
(] 37 4852 U0 5B K (3R 5 AT £ R L 1
BEEHRKRFEEHNAERCCZE
—PO4F : fE) o



Notes to Financial Statements

B R R MY AL

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the

31 December 2015

—T-hAF+=ZRA=+—H

EE M

BEBSBHERHMERARESR LT
BMATERRE D REBERBEGHE
383(1)(a) * (b) * (c) & ()& &~ 7l (K &
EEFNRERRAE2BWENESF

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the WEEAT -
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefit of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2015 2014
—F-HF —T-HF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Fees e 5,640,000 2,851,841
Other emoluments: Hi e -
Salaries, allowances and benefits Fe o R REMEAR
in kind — 563,403
Pension scheme contributions RIRETEIE K
(defined contribution scheme) (EREMRETE]) - 10,750
- 574,153
5,640,000 3,425,994
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B 755 S Ak B

31 December 2015
—FT—RF+=-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEFMw)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIAFHITEE
The fees paid or payable to independent non- FAENHENBLIENTES
executive directors during the year were as MHEEAT :
follows:
2015 2014
—E-HEF —F—F
HK$ HK$
BT Vv
Mr. Fang Jun FlEEE(RZE—MF
(appointed on 16 July 2014) + A+ NBEEZF) 120,000 55,455
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest =RGEE(RZZT—UF
(appointed on 16 July 2014) +A+/NBEZIT) 120,000 55,455
Mr. Zhao Xianming HERLE(RZZE—MNF
(appointed on 16 July 2014) +tA+SBEZE) 120,000 55,455
Mr. Ng Wai Hung REHAE(R-_ZT—NF
(resigned on 29 August 2014) NAZ T BEE) - 29,167
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen EEHAF(RZZ—HF
(resigned on 29 August 2014) NAZ T BEITE) - 29,167
Ms. Zhou Jing BAfFZT(R=ZZT—WF
(resigned on 29 August 2014) NAZ+ L BEHE) - 29,167
360,000 253,866
There were no other emoluments payable to the FA - I EME B IEBTT
independent non-executive directors during the EENFHN( = —HF - £E) -

year (2014: Nil).
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31 December 2015
—F-AF+t-A=t-8

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEFM =

(b) Executive directors and a (b) BITESRIHTES
non-executive director
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
#4 28K &’
ik ENER HE L5 AT ke
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B iy
2015 “g-1%
Executive directors: BIES
Ms. Deng Shufen Wit 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
Mr. Dai Yumin FEPEL 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
Mr. Gui Bin ERLA 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
Ms. Liu Jiangyuan ATELt 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
4,800,000 - - 4,800,000
Non-executive director: FHTES
Mr. Wang Yongbin (retired on T EE(R-E-1E
26 June 2015) ~NAZTRBEM) 480,000 - - 480,000
5,280,000 - - 5,280,000
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31 December 2015
—E-hFt+ZA=+—H

(b)

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEFM»
Executive directors and a (b) HITESBRFHITESRE)
non-executive director (continued)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
e MR RIR
e ENET FTEIR “MEz
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
BT BT BT BT
2014 “E-M%
Executive directors: 185
Ms. Deng Shufen BASaT(R-5-1F
(appointed on 16 July 2014) tATAREZRR) 554,546 - - 554,546
Mr. Dai Yumin HEgAE(R=E-1F
(appointed on 16 July 2014) tATAREZR) 554,546 = = 554,546
Mr. Gui Bin HEAE(RZ2-1F
(appointed on 16 July 2014) tATABEZR) 554,546 - - 554,546
Ms. Liu Jiangyuan UTREL(R=F—RF
(appointed on 16 July 2014) AT BEZR) 554,546 - - 554,546
Mr. Lee Rabi SHEREE(R-Z-MEN
(resigned on 29 August 2014) AZTNAEE) - 563,403 10,750 574,153
Ms. Liu Yee Nee " BEfLL (N-Z-1%F
(resigned on 29 August 2014) NAZTNBER) (31,453) - - (31,453)
Mr. Mung Wai Ming * SEREE (W-F-1%
(resigned on 29 August 2014) NAZThARHE) (32,392) - - (32,392)
2,154,339 563,403 10,750 2,728,492
Non-executive director: #HTEE
Mr. Wang Yongbin T RE(R-E-1EF
(appointed on 16 July 2014) tAtAREZRT) 443,636 - - 443,636
2,597,975 563,403 10,750 3,172,128

During the year ended 31 December 2014,
Ms. Liu Yee Nee and Mr. Mung Wai Ming
waived their directors’ fees of HK$31,453
and HK$32,392, respectively. Apart from the
foregoing, there was no arrangement under
which a director or the chief executive waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

year.
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. hEBBRSFHNEER

The five highest paid employees during the year ER FEAERSHHEEQIENEES
included four directors (2014: one director, who —T o - REE GOREER
resigned from his position during the prior year), details s e o IR o o,
of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. ) TiwmfﬁM%;%ECJ:X-MT&S

Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining TR R(F-RF TR

one (2014: four) highest paid employees who is neither ARAREFRITBRBNR D5 EE D
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as BRSO
follows:
Group
8
2015 2014
—E-EfF —T-mEF
HK$ HK$
BT ABIT
Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e o RRL - BAR
benefits in kind BEY@EA 1,300,000 3,774,064
Pension scheme contributions (defined BIRFTEIE R (ERE
contribution schemes) HRETE)) 18,000 59,250
1,318,000 3,833,314
The number of non-director highest-paid employees HMN T Y SR EFEERS T EE
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as B AST -
follows:

Number of employees

BEAR
2015 2014
—B-HF —F—F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0% 1,000,000 % 7T - 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 #JTE 1,500,000 % 7T 1 -

E-Rental Car Company Limited H#8 B B4 =GR A 7 @
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10. INCOME TAX

10.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong. Taxes on profits

assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates

of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group

operates.

FriE®i

BEEFERIIREBEE 2T ER
FRm A% 16.5% (ZZ— P4 : 16.5%)
TRERETIR o HAthih = 8 FER B m F) Jh %
REBLEMERNRDEER S RHH X
ETEFIE -

2015 2014
—ZE—EHfF —Z—[F
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Current — Hong Kong HVER — BE
Charge for the year REFEXH 3,282,138 1,121,404
Current — Elsewhere BVHl — Hihib[E 5,304 23,856
Deferred (note 27) ERE (M 5E27) (425,073) 2,406,665
Total tax charge for the year PN gk 2,862,369 3,551,925
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10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss
before tax at statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate,
and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e. the

Financial Statements

B 7% S 2 P A

31 December 2015
—2-AF+-A=t+—H

T8 &)

ERRBRARRRERED M EREM
EREENRARRAEEN R ER
B T A &S 1R A0 AR TR A S B4R B RR B R 5
B2 HBRRAXHEE - LERAKRK(ENE
ERE) BERB ORI

statutory tax rate) to the effective rate, is as follows:

2015 2014
—E-HF —T 4
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss before tax B B A &5 1B (4,715,966)  (46,033,127)
Hong Kong statutory tax rate BREARERE 16.5% 16.5%
Tax credit at the Hong Kong statutory BEBEERETED
tax rate HIEE 2 (778,134) (7,595,466)
Effect of difference in tax rate/tax rule € alA M @ 38 H 7R 7S
for specific jurisdiction or enacted by BEEITTRIMNFE
local tax authority BRI E (101,024) 83,317
Loss attributable to a joint venture —REBNRIELEE 1,296,038 355,487
Income not subject to tax BERBIA (502,170) (489,538)
Expenses not deductible for tax ARIHFL R 2,921,377 2,633,704
Tax losses utilised from previous periods &A@ BRI 2 5 E 18 (148,355) (340,163)
Tax losses not recognised RIERH T IBE 1S 385,736 8,903,439
Others EAh, (211,099) 1,145
Tax charge at the Group’s RASENERBERTED
effective tax rate MIEX 2,862,369 3,551,925

A subsidiary of the Group established in the PRC has
obtained the status of National High-Tech Enterprise
and, accordingly, is entitled to a lower PRC corporate
income tax rate of 15% for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

E-Rental Car

REERFEKZH—RME QTR
BrESRECENMY - MREE=
E—hFER=E—NF+=A=+—H
LEEZE15%MREFRBECEMSH
B -

Company Limited B BB AFHEBEER A A
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11.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT

The calculations of the basic and diluted loss per share
are based on:

11.

BRAREBERRERE AR
HERER

BEREARETEBEENGEIRE

2015 2014
—E-H% -—T-pm&F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss EiE
Loss for the year attributable to ordinary &2 5] E@ARAREREE A
equity holders of the parent R FENEE (7,578,335)  (49,585,052)
Number of shares
B E
2015 2014
—E—-HF —T—F
(Restated)
(#=EZl)
Shares &5

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year

FiH

FRBBRITE BB INE

5,550,858,225 3,183,447,052

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is
based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent of HK$7,578,335 (2014:
HK$49,585,052) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 5,550,858,225 (2014: 3,183,447,052
(restated)) in issue during the year. The basic loss per
share amounts for the years ended 31 December 2015
and 2014 have been adjusted to reflect the bonus
element in the placing of shares of the Company during
the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 in respect of a dilution as
the impact of the potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss
per share amounts presented for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 12. V¥ - BEKRE
EQUIPMENT
Furniture,
fixtures Machinery
and office and Leasehold Motor
equipment equipment  improvements Toolings vehicles Total
G £ER
BOERE BENRE BELE 18 HE &8
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
A A A A A A
(Restated) (Restated)
(&E5) (&E5)
31 December 2015 ZE-TETIAST-H
At 31 December 2014 and R-E-RE+-A=1-BR
1 January 2015: ZE-R5-A-B:
Cost KA 14,049,332 2,061,291 5,716,024 1,483,749 28,629,942 51,940,338
Accumulated depreciation and mpaiment  ZEFERHE (9,603,950) (2,002,566) (2,752,3%9) (1,464,625) (457,712 (16,281,308)
Net carrying amount R 4,445,382 58,725 2,963,629 19,124 2,172,170 35,650,030

At 1 January 2015, net of accumulated W-E-1%5-A-B"

depreciation and impaiment MB2ErERAE 4,445,382 58,725 2,963,629 19,124 28,172,170 35,659,030
Additons #E 30,458 - - 17,640 20,254,806 20,302,904
Write-off i - - (228,764) - - (228,764)
Disposals ik (471,114) - - - (2,358,348) (2,836,122)
Disposal of subsidtaries (note 32(1) HERBAR (20 (429,904) (33,804 - - (116,085) (579,793)
Depreciation provided during the year TEENERR (1,122,415) (24,921) (1,211,900) (26,475) (9,751,362) (12,137,073
Exchangs realignment ER AT (80,910) - (4,665) - (2,224,448) (2,310,029)

At 31 December 2015, net of accumulated ~ MZE-RETZA=1-H:

depreciation and mpaiment NB2EERRE 2,364,837 - 1,518,300 10,269 33,976,733 37,870,159
At 31 December 2015; RZF-TETZA=1-R:

Cost WA 3,304,153 - 3,218,529 1,501,389 39,884,508 47,998,579

Accumulated depreciation and impaiment  ZEERAE (1,029,316) - (1,700,229) (1,491,100) (5,907,775) (10,128,420)

Net carrying amount e 2,364,837 - 1,518,300 10,269 33,076,733 37,870,159

E-Rental Car Company Limited H#8 B B4 =GR A 7 @
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 12. Y% BERRH®
EQU'PMENT (continued)
Furniture,
fixtures Machinery
and office and Leasehold Motor
equipment equipment Improvements Toolings venicles Total
i %2R
AN BERRE HERE I8 hEd %
HKS HKS HKS HKS K$ HKS
BT AT AT AT AT AT
(Restated) (Restated)
(#5)) (#5))
31 December 2014 “3-RETZAZT-H
At 31 December 2013 and W-E-=F+-A=1-BR
at 1 January 2014 ZE-ME-A-B:
Cost B 10,624,625 2,061,291 2,605,245 1,483,749 348,267 17,043,167
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment  ZEAEREE (8,236,811) (1,914,649 (1,637,031) (1,303,454) (116,086) (13,208,031)
Net carrying amount i 2,387,814 146,642 888,214 180,29 2,171 3,835,136
At 1 January 2014, net of accumulated N-E-mE-A-A-
depreciation and impairment MB2EMERRE 2,387,814 146,642 888,214 180,29 8,17 3,835,136
Addtions RE 2,489,004 - 3218529 - 149,828 5,867,356
Disposals il (17,929) - - - (827,647) (845,576)
Acqistion of a subsidary (note 31) WE-FHBRR (W) 1,231,425 - - - 28,059,508 30,190,933
Depreciation provided during the year TEERERR (1,627,383 (87.917) (1,133,362) (161,171) (341,685) (3,361,508
Exchange realignment g (17,549 - 0.762 - = [27.311)
At 31 December 2014, net of accumulated  R=E-ME-A=1-R:
depreciation and impairment IR 2RITERAE 4,445,382 58,725 2,963,629 19,124 28,172,170 35,639,030
At 31 December 2014; R-B-RET-A=1-R:
Cost Rk 14,049,332 2,061,201 5,716,024 1,483,749 28,609,942 51,040,338
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment  ZEFEREE (9,603,950) (2,002,566) (2,752,3%) (1,464,625 (457,772) (16,281,308)
Net carrying amount FAFE 4,445,382 58,725 2,963,629 19,124 28,172,170 35,699,030

As at 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s other
borrowings were secured by the pledge of the Group’s
motor vehicles of approximately HK$21,437,345
(2014: HK$15,815,646 (restated)). As at 31 December
2014, certain of the Group’s other payables were also
secured by the pledge of the Group’s motor vehicles of
approximately HK$8,391,222 (restated)).
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13. GOODWILL 13. B8
2015 2014
—F-1% —FmF
HKS$ HK$
BT BTT
(Restated)
(&g=7)
Cost at 1 January R— A —H 24 26,210,338 —
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 31) WEE—RMB AR (ME31) - 26,210,338
Cost and net carrying amount R+—A=+—82
at 31 December B K BR EHE 26,210,338 26,210,338
Impairment testing of goodwill and BERERSENRER
intangible assets
Goodwill and intangible assets acquired through a 5@%%/\%1&@%5’]%;@&4&%5%5
business combination are allocated to the car rental WHRERERERSESBMNIERME
cash-generating unit for impairment testing. SHIE o

The recoverable amount of the car rental cash—
generating unit has been determined based on a value
in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by management. The growth rate used to extrapolate
the cash flows of the car rental cash-generating unit
beyond the five-year period is 3% (2014: 3%) and the
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is
16% (2014: 12%).

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, a decrease
in the growth rate by 0.5% and an increase in discount
rate by 0.5% would cause the carrying amount of the
cash-generating unit to exceed its recoverable amount
by approximately HK$728,000 and HK$2,818,000,
respectively.

Key assumptions were used in the value in use
calculation of the above cash-generating unit for 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2014. The following
describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted revenue — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the revenue is the average revenue
achieved in the year immediately before the budget
year, increased for expected efficiency improvements
and expected business and market developments.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax
and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

REHERSELSEM RIS B TIR
?F1§H5Jﬁfﬁu‘|’:}mﬁﬁfﬁiuw§}§ EU(U\
EEEMNENTAFHYFEE A EME
TstE)MEE - HEEHIEHERSE
ABEMNEALFHRREREERES
3% (ZZ—JU4F :3%) MBELRETHE
BRI R A16% (—F — P F :
12%)

ARABEERR BREMAD0.5% K
BRI EIBMOS% K ERRGELE
fir 2z BRE B2 Bl E B Al B & 88 49
728,000/8 7T 5 2,818,000/8 7T °

R-_E—RAF+-_A=+—HEK=-F
—NFE+ __A=+—HHN LB EES
ﬁfi@ﬁﬁfﬁfﬁﬂ’]ﬁ%qﬂaﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi@x

o T [E B IR E AR E R BRI M
f/lfﬁmiﬁﬁmhgiﬁ\ AT RIE S EEE
B -

BEHEA — EFRAEBRARANE
ERANBERBEEFAIFEMMERNFY
WA ~ 1= B0 P TR A O R BAGE N TR R
MEHRTHER

BRERE — FAMRRERRBAIRER
o VARBRBNEGHEASELEMD
FrERR -
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. B EE
Vehicle rental
Licence business
plates licence Total
JZEE A
BEE EKIER wE
HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2014 R-ZZE—MFE—HA—H - - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—RMB A A
(note 31) (PzE31) 16,380,000 52,290,000 68,670,000
Cost and net carrying amount at RZZT—ME+=A
31 December 2014 (restated), =+—HB(&E7)) -
1 January 2015 and —E-h%—HF—H
31 December 2015 k—ZE—HF+_A
=t+—HZEAR
REFE 16,380,000 52,290,000 68,670,000
The licence plates and vehicle rental business licence FRERASHWNE 2 EE TR RS
with indefinite useful lives acquired through a business CEHENGEEABEREB AR RS
combination are allocated to the car rental cash- BRERSEASAT BERENRY
generating unit. Details of the impairment testing are S A B RSB S B 15 o
contained in note 13 to the financial statements. h
— S AR S\ = =<
15. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 15. RA—REE QAN ER
Group
%
2015 2014
—E-FHE —E—F
HK$ HK$
BT B IT
Share of net assets/(liabilities) EIREE (AfE)FE (9,243) 7,845,534
Amount due from a joint venture B —RE S FEKIE 10,172,985 =
10,163,742 7,845,534

The amount due from a joint venture included in the
Group’s non-current assets is unsecured, interest-
free and is not expected to be repayable within twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. As at
31 December 2014, the amount due from a joint
venture included in the current assets of the Group of
HK$5,842,767 was unsecured, interest-free and had no
fixed terms of repayment.
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INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

(continued)

Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows:
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15.

R—REELNTINER®)

AEEZARATZANET

Particulars
of issued Place of Percentage of
shares held registration and  Ownership voting Profit
Name BEZORA business interest power sharing Principal activities
&R EERMHE AMREFHE BEEEER  REEHE FEfL R A TEER
Zither Clubhouse Limited"* Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50 50 50 Operations of a
HEEMERAR LEk Bk clubhouse
and a restaurant
SHREELE
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRETHEGMERATZHMBEMR
information in respect of Zither Clubhouse Limited: e
2015 2014
—E-aF —Z—mF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cash and cash equivalents BHekBEEEY 4,219,138 10,774,590
Other current assets HimsEE 2,468,653 982,372
Current assets MENBE 6,687,791 11,756,962
Non-current assets EMBNE E 17,166,408 16,767,879
Current liabilities mEN A& (22,663,349) (12,133,773)
Non-current liability EREBAERE (1,209,336) (700,000)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(AR)FE (18,486) 15,691,068
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in  BEAREBNRESZEATIH 2
the joint venture: M AR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBEFR RN AN 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the investment & 7 REE (9,243) 7,845,534
Revenue Yoz 17,366,862 —
Depreciation e 4,010,129 —
Loss and total comprehensive loss for FREBEREREABERR
the year (15,709,554) (4,308,932)

E-Rental Car Company Limited EfA BB 4FHESR A 7
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16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

16. AHHERE

INVESTMENT
2015 2014
—E-EF —T-mEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current asset FIREBEE
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value  JEETHEZIRE @ HAFE 39,987,400 =
Current asset REBEE
Unlisted debt investment, at fair value FELEMEREE  BRAFE - 1,260,000

During the year, the gross fair value gain in respect of
the Group’s available-for-sale investment recognised
in other comprehensive income amounted to

HK$1,187,400 (2014: Nil).

AEFBEFRNEREME2E W AER
ZAHEBERBEAFEKRIZREL
1,187,400/ T (ZZE—PH4F : /) o

17. DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COSTS 17. EZEB KA
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—OF
HK$ HK$
BT BTT
Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated RN—A—HHKAK
amortisation and impairment Bk R 8 KRR E 2,498,264 18,123,387
Amortisation provided during the year INGEYESR (1,098,296)  (10,681,435)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 32(b)) H S M B AT (MFE32(b)) (1,391,626) —
Impairment/write-off during the year ANEERE, s - (4,883,863)
Exchange realignment PE & S (8,342) (59,825)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H - 2,498,264
At 31 December: Bnt+t=-—A=+—8:
Cost AR - 24,633,134
Accumulated amortisation and RE#H R
impairment RE - (22,134,870)
Net carrying amount BREFAE - 2,498,264
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18.

Notes to Financial Statements

DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COSTS

(continued)

The impairment recognised during the year ended
31 December 2014 mainly reflected the decrease in
the recoverable amounts of certain electronic device
development projects of the Group as assessed by the
directors of the Company, with reference to, inter alia,
the changes in technological, market and economic
environment/developments and the Group’s strategies/
future plans or expectations, and estimated sales
orders of the relevant products, primarily as a result
of a decrease in the future revenue that the Group
expects to derive from these projects. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the related deferred
development costs did not have any material fair value
less costs of disposal or value in use that could be

17.

B 7% S 2 P A

31 December 2015
—T—hAF+-_A=+—H

EER B R A ()

BHE_ZT-—WNF+_A=+—HILFE
NERHRE TERREARRES
SEEPERE) M - miEREERE
S ERRAEBRR, R RS TE
MR B R EmM A HERTE
HEAREESE TEFRMERBERNA
WEEEEMRD  EEARAKEE
HA{E % 578 B BB R 2R M 25 78 B PTORL
DB ARBEZRR  ARELER
BRI B AT E R R FER S XA
B REE A HE -

recovered.
INVENTORIES 18. FE
2015 2014
—E—-FF —ET—FE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Raw materials and components R A K2 BB 14 1,945 333,036
Finished goods BB i 1,291,170 2,146,126
1,293,115 2,479,162

E-Rental Car Company Limited EfA BB 4FHESR A 7
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. FEWERRX

2015 2014
—E-RF —E—F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT

Trade receivables JiE WL BR 5k
Impairment BB

274,834,380 257,308,005
(24,672,546) (44,334,131)

250,161,834 212,973,874

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit except for car rental customers,
where payment in advance is normally required. The
credit period is generally 30 to 90 days or 90 days
after month-end statement, or could be longer under
certain circumstances. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.

Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing, except
for an individual balance of HK$3,625,541 (2014:
HK$7,616,643) as at 31 December 2015, which bears
interest at 1.6% (2014: 1.6%) per month.

Save as disclosed below, the Group generally does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its trade receivable balances.
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, a trade receivable
of HK$7,616,643 and an other receivable of
HK$20,058,594 of the Group were secured by an
item of intellectual property of a customer of the
Group. During the prior year, the Group had taken
the necessary steps to obtain the item of intellectua
property by exercising its rights over the collateral it
held as security. However, the Group was aware of a
civil suit filed by a third party in the United States of
America against this customer during the prior year due
to infringement of certain patents. The United States
International Trade Commission also imposed a limited
exclusive order to this customer during the prior year,
which prohibited the entry of the infringing electronic
devices and products of this customer with utilisation
of such intellectual property in the United States of
America. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
consider minimal future economic benefits could be
generated from this item of intellectual property to
the Group and no value was ascribed to it as at 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2014. The Group
currently does not have any policies or detailed plans
in respect of such item or for using it in its operations.
The Group recognised a full provision of HK$3,625,541
(2014: HK$7,616,643) and HK$18,895,076 (2014:
HK$20,058,594) for the trade receivable and other
receivable, respectively, of this customer during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

19.

AR5 R R MY AL

31 December 2015
—2-AF+-A=t+—H

FEUR BR FR ()

R-E——-—F+-_A=+—8 K&
B—SEWENR7,616,643 BTk —F
H h & YR 7K I8 20,058,594 78 T AN &
B—2XPFPHM—HAMBEREER RN
FEEAN AEEERDAELSR  #
TEREFASEEERERCERR 2
MMMEE@EAZBEE - A ~A5E
REXFE—ZEZFTREFERERE
LPETENEMRNZETFPREREF
N EBHRAERESZESENERAFE
NMZEEFER—EERERS - 2
FZEEFPFAZENBRERNE T8
MMEREAER - QI - XARFRES
RE - ZBABEERRRER/RAEHE
HHRIEEEMMLEENZ R —A
F+-_A=+—HAk=_ZE—NF+=A
=t+—HUEERTEERNEE  ~&
EEAYEFE@EZMEERXEEAR
EBOEABRRSEENE - AEH
RBEEZZT—=%+=ZA=+—81
FERNIRREZEBE PO ERER R
H fth JE U FRIE FE AR 2 R 5 3,625,541
BT(ZZE—F : 7,616,64378 L) &
18,895,076 /8 7L( == — U F : 20,058,594
&TT) o
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B 755 S Ak B

31 December 2015
—T-mF+-A=t+-H

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. EWRRR

RBEMR REEZEHRNAGE
B RUCRFRERE DT -

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and
net of provisions, is as follows:

2015 2014
—E-aF —E
HK$ HK$
BT ABIT
Within 30 days =t+XA 378,142 86,010,534
31 to 60 days =t—XE~TX 732,627 61,306,096
61 to 90 days AT—RKENL+K 341,779 51,551,781
Over 90 days (note) AF+RAEGE) 248,709,286 14,105,463
250,161,834 212,973,874

Note: Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, 2 HEBKREBE R-ZT—RHF+=A

=+—H#)240,000,000 % JT Z i& &
ez EREERRE EEE -

amounts of approximately HK$240 million of the trade
receivables outstanding as of 31 December 2015 were
settled.

FEM PR FUR E R B BN T -

The movements in provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

2015 2014

—E-HF —F—NF

HK$ HKS$

BT B IT

At 1 January n—HA—H 44,334,131 33,400,557
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) BEERRERE(MET) - 11,869,599
Disposal of subsidiaries HENE R A (15,150,632) —
Amount written off as uncollectible B 455 Lk 1B 1 i 8H Y 2 BB (4,373,585) (936,025)
Exchange realignment b B (137,368) -
At 31 December W+=ZRA=+—H 24,672,546 44,334,131
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Notes to Financial Statements

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK$24,672,546 (2014: HK$44,334,131)
with a carrying amount before provision of
HK$32,399,114 (2014: HK$58,050,485). The individually
impaired trade receivables relate to debtors that were in
financial difficulties and/or were in default in payments
and none or only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is
as follows:

19.

AR5 R R MY AL

31 December 2015
—2-AF+-A=t+—H

FEUR BR FR ()

51 Y B U BR TR (B B B SR N BR B
AT BRE (B 424,672,546 8 L(— & — Y
1 44,334,131 % 70 ) &9 (& 5l i 3R R B
B JE L AR 3K B B 1 32,399,114 8 7T ( =
Z — U4 : 58,050,485 78 L) ° Z 5@
B B Rk (B A0 B L AR FR BB A B R &
SR ARIBEBABRM - WA T8
W Bl sk R gEU Bl —#85 A B A R MR RROE -

I $EARAR A 18 Bl 2 L RRLE 2 B Y AR K
ZRRER DTN -

2015 2014

—F-IHF —T—mEF

HK$ HK$

BT 7T

Neither past due nor impaired AR HA Sl R B 2,325 197,475,265
Less than 31 days past due BHLOR=1+—XK 55,770,542 1,086,735
31 to 60 days past due BH=+—XESTX 614,517 410,814
61 to 90 days past due BHA T —RXENLTRK 341,780 189,446
Over 90 days past due (note) mEA AR E (F5E) 185,706,102 95,260
242,435,266 199,257,520

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a number of debtors for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent debtors that have
a good track record/relationship with the Group and/
or are major/strategic debtors of the Group. Based on
past experience/current assessment, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

REBMIRBEZ BRERERNERE
M RSB AGR -

B 78 BB R (F R (B Y FE W AR SR B R £R (3
SERBREEECH ENBILE
BAR/ REEENTE REEBA
B - RBEAEER BATFGE AR
RAEERS AEEEIRYEEANE
RESDEA /A 2EKE - HBF 5L
A ERIE IR E R -
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B 755 S Ak B

31 December 2015
—T-mF+-A=t+-H

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES 20. EWER
2015 2014
—ZE—0F —ZE—mF
HK$ HK$
BT 7T
Loan receivables FEWRE K 111,835,710 —
Loan receivables represent receivables arising from EREREEASE SRR E LR &
financing services of the Group, and are unsecured, WHIE  REXKARZFENERI12E
bear interest at 12% per annum and are repayable B WAER B RS EAAEE -
within 6 months from dates of agreement.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit AEBEVEREBRERERFTEEM
enhancements over its loan receivable balances. ER R EAMERREAY -
An aged analysis of the loan receivables that are not MRS BB R IR AT KB H B W R AR
considered to be impaired as at the end of the reporting BENREEFRNERESITHOT
period, based on the payment due date, is as follows:
2015 2014
—E-IF —Z—mF
HK$ HK$
BT 7T
Neither past due nor impaired 7 4 80 HR SR (B 90,635,710 —
1 to 3 months past due (note) w1 = 3@ A (5F) 21,200,000 =
111,835,710 —
Note: Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the loan Fr BEHKRE BUREREEZHE
receivable was fully settled. & e
Loan receivables that were neither past due nor JEWE RI Em EAg Rk (B - B E K
impaired relate to independent borrowers for whom BERA - B EAREE R o

there was no recent history of default.
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B 7% S 2 P A

31 December 2015

—AF+=A=1—H

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 21. AARE - ZERHMER
OTHER RECEIVABLES TIE
Group
£H
2015 2014
—E—-EEF —E—pO4aE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Prepayments TEFRIB 2,361,659 1,129,075
Deposits e 7,591,607 7,447,472
Other receivables H b p W RIR 468,966,505 106,074,265
Amount due from a controlling FE U — A 15 AR A% R 3Kk
shareholder 2,491,054 —
Amounts due from directors fEUR = = F0E (M 22)
(note 22) 1,508,946 4,000,000
482,919,771 118,650,812

Impairment

R

(18,895,075)

(33,172,049)

464,024,696 85,478,763
Less: Portion classified as W I RIERENEERE D
non-current assets (3,095,346) (6,166,396)
Current portion EVEA &R 460,929,350 79,312,367
Included in deposits amounting to HK$5,490,490 7 815,490,490% (= & — I & :
(2014: HK$4,550,398), of which HK$3,985,860 4,550,398 L )M TF RE H - E
(2014: HK$114,947) is included in current assets and THREMBRARANINRTEEE

HK$1,504,630 (2014: HK$4,435,451) is included in non-
current assets in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position, are non-interest-bearing cash deposits

paid to leasing companies under certain arrangements as

further detailed in note 26(b) to the financial statements

and will be returned upon the expiry of the terms of the

relevant agreements.

23,985,8608 (= & — I 4 :

114,947 % 70 )

PNSELNS

NEMBE E

21,504,630/ (= F — @ -
4,435,451 BT ) R ERETHX

NFHEHERT

7 7 48 B 19 % B HA B

RO BETHBERNASEHRRME

26(b) °
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31 December 2015
—T-RF+-A=t+-8

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 21.

OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in other receivables amounting to
HK$437,995,361 (2014: HK$65,908,219) classified as
current assets in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position, are advances to various independent
suppliers and procurement agents associated with the
provision of car rental services business of the Group.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, these
other receivables were fully settled. Other receivables
are non-interest-bearing, except for an individual
balance of HK$18,895,075 (2014: HK$20,058,594)
which bears interest at 1.6% (2014: 1.6%) per month.
As at 31 December 2014, another individual balance of
HK$10,317,855 bore interest at 14% per annum.

The amount due from a controlling shareholder is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term of
repayment.

The movements in provision for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

BANRE - ZERHAEMBER

FIE (@)

RAKRENGZEHMERAFSEAER
&) & E M 5 81437,995,361 %8 o( = Z
— PO 4F : 65,908,219 T ) By H 1th & Uk
REEF  BARABREASEMEER
BEBRNZANE T HERREBRER
8K RIEHHEBERE - HLEH
bR IHE EZEUEE - Br—2 @5
4 #:18,895,075% jL(= & — Y 4 -
20,058,594 L) BH1.6[E(ZZT—H
F16E)FFEN EftBKHKIEBA R
B -RZFE—NWF+=—A=+—H 5—
SR 4582 10,317,855 /8 TLIR G F 142
AT o

R —2ERBRRZEEREER 2
B R 3 45 B T AR SR

Hith YRR R ERBEFN T

2015 2014

—ZE—IOF —ZE—mF

HK$ HK$

BT AT

At 1 January Kn—A—H 33,172,049 27,830,869
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) BRI EEE

(M43E7) - 5,426,590

Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE QA (14,276,974) —

Exchange realignment b W 38 - (85,410)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 18,895,075 33,172,049
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Notes to Financial Statements

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in the above provision for impairment of other
receivables is a provision for individually impaired other
receivables of HK$18,895,075 (2014: HK$33,172,249)
with a carrying amount before provision of
HK$18,895,075 (2014: HK$33,177,049). The individually
impaired other receivables relate to amounts that are
long outstanding or debtors of the Group that are in
default in payments and the other receivables or a
portion thereof are not expected to be recovered.

Except for financial assets relating to the provision for
impairment of other receivables, none of the above
assets is impaired at the end of the reporting period and
the financial assets relate to deposits and receivables
for which there was no recent history of significant
default or which are due from independent debtors that
have a good relationship with the Group.

21.

B 7% S 2 P A

31 December 2015
—2-AF+-A=t+—H

ANRIE  RERAEMWER

FRIE ()

EAREMEWRIBERERERRE
R A9 H fh FE U 5K IE B & Bl R (E B
1#18,895,075% (= T — M £ :
33,172,249% 7t ) - HEE R R E A&
#18,895,075% (= & — I 4 :
33,177,049 7t ) » & B H 3R B (B /9 E
fth & W FRIR S I AN & B 3 R RIE HY (B 7%
A RFEE A — o G IE A s E o

BBEBEMEYESERERBHTEE
ES RBmEHMKR EREBEEH KRR
B M&EFMBEEENE S MEKFHIA
BRI Y EE B RN EAREE
FRRINBILEBA -
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31 December 2015
—T-mF+-A=t+-H

22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM DIRECTORS 22, EWE=EFNE

Amounts due from directors, disclosed pursuant EWESZSRECRERB A ENE
to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies 383N ()R AR (HKBEESH=ER)
Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of HOIFEIFFEELT ¢
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are
as follows:
Maximum
At outstanding At
31 December during 1 January Security
2015 the year 2015 held
—E-IfF
+=A FRES “E-IF
=+-H REEE —-HA-B Frisg 7
HK$ HK$ HK$
Name ®E B B B
Ms. Deng Shufen RSt 905,368 2,400,000 2,400,000 None %
Mr. Gui Bin HERE 301,789 800,000 800,000 None #&
Ms. Liu Jiangyuan ATERL 301,789 800,000 800,000 None &
1,508,946 4,000,000
The amounts due from directors are unsecured, EREEHBEAEELR REREEX
interest-free and are repayable on demand. B -
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

B 7% S 2 P A

31 December 2015
—2-AF+-A=t+—H

BeERRESBEYUAREE
HER1T 17K

2015 2014

—E-RF —E—F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Cash and bank balances B& MIRTTE & 5,050,455 8,090,982
Time deposits TE HATF 5K 18,794,078 —
23,844,533 8,090,982

Less: Pledged deposits for bank
borrowing (note 26(a))

B RITEETHE
HIRE R (A it 26(a))

(18,794,078) =

Cash and cash equivalents

ReRREEEY

5,050,455 8,090,982

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances, and time deposits of the Group denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$535,907 (2014:
HK$2,101,440) and HK$18,794,078 (2014: Nil),
respectively. The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposit was
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earned interest at the short term
time deposit rate. The bank balances and time deposit
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

RBMEHAR FEEUARETAR
¥DFAENRSRRITEHRURTEHE
5Bl A535,907 Bt (—F — W& -
2,101,440 7t ) & 18,794,078 7% st (—
T—UF  |&) o ARKETITARHER
REMER o A - BEFHBIAREACHN
EERKROIRAEE SERNTEEER
) ANEEEERIBEIRELEINESE
BHRITEARB IR AEMEE o

RITFFRREARTERNEZZHH
KHEBANE - REAEENANSREH
2 EHEHERENF-RE=ZEA
TENZ BB E L MRS HE B1F 3R
FRERERAM S - |RITERNEHRFRD
TFAEHR BTSN A EENIRTT
H o
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31 December 2015
—T-mF+-A=t+-H

24. TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of

24. BAERR

RBEEHR REXZAH - BAEX

the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as HEREE D ATIOT ¢
follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—EF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within 30 days e RN 823,883 426,012
31 to 60 days =t+—XEATX 105,796 265,909
Over 60 days NTRE 33,375,918 34,109,457

34,305,597 34,801,378

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and the
credit terms generally granted by trade creditors are 30

ENEARRE  MEZERALTH
EEH-RBRR=ZTENLTRIAKR

to 90 days or 90 days after month-end statement. AR N
25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. H{thfE{}F1E Kk FEEHFIE

2015 2014
—E—-EF —Z—JOF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(#&==7)
Deferred revenue HEE A 1,037,992 2,132,723
Other payables H A fE S 5B 11,988,449 81,781,718
Accruals JEETFRIB 2,557,253 2,133,674

15,583,694 86,048,115

As at 31 December 2014, except for certain of the
Group’s other payables of HK$6,678,323, which were
secured by the pledge of certain of the Group’s motor
vehicles with net carrying amounts of HK$8,391,222
(restated) at 31 December 2014 (note 12) and were
repayable within one year, other payables are non-
interest-bearing and generally had credit terms of
around 30 to 90 days.

As at 31 December 2015, other payables are non-

interest-bearing and generally have credit terms of
around 30 to 90 days.
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31 December 2015
—F-AF+t-A=t-8

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 26. GTERITRHEMEE
OTHER BORROWINGS
2015 2014
%-1% “E-[F
Contractual Contractual
interest rate Maturity HKS interest rate Maturity HKS
AHEE HEA B AHEER 5488 B
Current Ik
Bank borrowing-secured (note (a)) H{TEE — &M 142%  Ondemand 18,220,550 - - -
GRELE) BER
Other borrowings - secured EMfEE - BEM 6.15%-10.17% 2016 7,879,609 9%-10.17% 2015 8,386,341
(note (0] (& (b))
26,109,159 8,386,341
Non-current L
Other borrowings - secured HipieE - EER 6.15%-10.17% 2017-2018 5404574 9%-10.17% 2016-2017 5,311,104
(note (0] GEAR)
5,404,574 5,311,104
31,513,733 18,697,445
2015 2014
—E—-EfF —E—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Analysed into: DA
Bank and other borrowings repayable: AEENRITREMEE
Within one year or on demand —FRIFEENK 26,109,159 8,386,341
In the second year EF 3,300,963 5,249,309
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=ZE A A
(BIEERME) 2,103,611 61,795

31,513,733 18,697,445

E-Rental Car Company Limited EfA BB 4FHESR A 7
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31 December 2015
—T-RF+-A=t+-8

26.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(@)

A bank borrowing of the Group with a carrying amount
of HK$18,229,550 as at 31 December 2015 contained
a repayment on-demand clause that gave the lender
the right to demand the repayment of the bank
borrowing together with interest accrued thereon at
any time. Accordingly, for the purpose of the above
analysis, the amount was analysed into bank borrowing
repayable within one year as at 31 December 2015.
The amount is secured by a pledged bank deposit of
HK$18,794,078 as at 31 December 2015.

During the year, the Group entered into certain sale
and lease back agreements with third party leasing
companies (the “lessors”), with contract terms
ranging from two to three years. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the underlying transaction
is in substance a means whereby the lessors provide
finance to the Group for the purchases of certain
motor vehicles for its car rental business, with the
corresponding motor vehicles as security. Accordingly,
the Group has accounted for such transaction as
finance lease arrangements as substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the motor
vehicles are transferred to the Group.

Annual Report 2015 =& — A F £ 1§
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BEREEHAE - Bt - 3t LA
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Notes to Financial Statements

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(b) (continued)

At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease
payments under such arrangement and their present

26.

B R R MY AL

31 December 2015
—F-AF+t-A=t-8

AFERITREMER @)

MisE - (&)
(b) (%&)

R=ZZT—RF+=-A=+—8 " BE
BTN AR RRRARERERR

values were as follows: BT -
Present Present
value of value of
Minimum Minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BRAE RERE BEHE =EHEE
E (ES RREE NREE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-IF —T-mF —Z-nf —T-mE
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
B on BT BT
Amounts payable: FER A
Within one year —FR 8,512,805 9,371,579 7,879,609 8,386,341
In the second year FFR 3,539,366 5,469,442 3,300,959 5,249,309
In the third year to fifth years, EZEFEREF
inclusive (BREEEME) 2,153,035 62,760 2,103,615 61,795
Total minimum finance lease RERERE
payments e 58 14,205,206 14,908,781 13,284,183 13,697,445
Future finance charges ARBEER (921,023) (1,206,336)
Total net finance lease payables BRERERZTBTE 13,284,183 13,697,445
Portion classified as current liabilities DA REE EHZH (7,879,609) (8,386,341)
Non-current portion eI 5,404,574 5,311,104
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31 December 2015
—T-mF+-A=t+-H

26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND
BORROWINGS (continued)

Ignoring the effect of any repayment on-demand clause
as detailed in note (a) above and based on the maturity
terms of the bank and other borrowings, the bank and
other borrowings of the Group are repayable:

26.

STERTREMEE @)

i MR AT IR BSOE IR E (R
b KRR () RARRIRTT R E AL &
AEMEH  ARERTREMGEENE
BESES

2015 2014

—ZE-I0F —ZE—mF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within one year —F R 7,879,609 8,386,341

In the second year EF 21,530,509 5,249,309
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FEZEFERF

(REEEMF) 2,103,615 61,795

31,513,733 13,697,445

All interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of
the Group were denominated in Renminbi as at 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2014.
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31 December 2015
—F-AF+t-A=t-8

27. DEFERRED TAX 27. EEBIIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets FR ELEHREEELREENEFH N
during the year are as follows: D
Deferred tax liabilities FEHREEE
Fair value
adjustments Depreciation
arising from Fair value allowance
acquisition  of available- in excess Deferred
ofa for-sale of related development
subsidiary  investment depreciation costs Total
i — R BHER
BAREE2 FHHERE il {4 413
AYERR AN nERE N ok
Notes HKS$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
iz BT BT BT BT BT
(Restated)
(8 =35))
At 1 January 2014 RZE-NE-A—H - - 77,850 2,908,702 2,986,552
Deferred tax charged/ FRRBREZNR /(5
(credited) to the statement N BRI
of profit or loss during the
year* - - 74,518 (2,498,732) (2,424,214)
Acaquisition of a subsidiary WE—-HNBAR 31 17,911,028 = = - 17,911,028
Exchange realignment B 5 3R - - - (8,979) (8,979)
Gross deferred tax libilies ~ WZF—ME+=F
at 31 December 2014 =+-BEE)R
(restated) and at 1 January ~ —ZF—R%F—H—8
2015 MWEEHIRRERR 17,911,028 - 152,368 400,997 18,464,393
Deferred tax credited to the  FRRBER ANE
statement of profit or EHE
loss during the year* (425,073) - (148,355) (178,233) (751,661)
Deferred tax charged FARZERARMR
to the statement of MELHE
comprehensive income
during the year - 118,740 - - 118,740
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 32(b) - - (4,013) (222,764) (226,777)
Exchange realignment 5 AR (9,907) - - - (9,907)
Gross deferred tax liabiliies ~ R=Z—H&+= A
at 31 December 2015 =t—-RMEEHE
AELE 17,476,048 118,740 - - 17,504,788
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27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets

27. EEHRIE (@)
EEHIEEE

Losses available
for offsetting

against future Warranty
taxable profits provision Total
] R 84
BN EE RERE ok
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2014 R-ZZ—MFE—F—H 5,282,221 110,996 5,393,217
Deferred tax charged to the FARERKNKREOELETE"
statement of profit or loss
during the year* (4,719,883) (110,996) (4,830,879)
Exchange realignment ERTIEE L (8,979) - (8,973)
Gross deferred tax assets at RZE-—NE+-A=+—HK
31 December 2014 and at —T-hE—A-HREE
1 January 2015 HIEEERE 553,365 - 553,365
Deferred tax charged to the FARNBRENRAELTE
statement of profit or loss
during the year* (326,588) - (326,588)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRBAR (226,777) - (226,777)
Gross deferred tax assets at 31 RZZE-A%+ZA=+—H
December 2015 MEEH AL ELSE - - =
* Net deferred tax credited to the consolidated * FA - FTAGREEERAEERIESF

statement of profit or loss during the year amounted
to HK$425,073 (2014: net deferred tax charged of
HK$2,406,665) (note 10).

@ Annual Report 2015 =& — A F F iR
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Notes to Financial Statements

27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax assets (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The following is an
analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for
financial reporting purposes:

B 7% S 2 P A

31 December 2015
—2-AF+-A=t+—H

27. EEHRIE (@)

EEHRIRE E (8)

REINME  FTEERBEERAE
ERFEATHBMRRNKRAEE - LTAXN
SEHM BB RE B DT EEEHR A

+ .
ik

2015 2014
—B-EF —F-HF
HK$ HKS$
BT PBIT
(Restated)
(&=&E7)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in 434 B G AR 25 PO RE R A
the consolidated statement BEFIBAEFHE
of financial position 17,594,788 17,911,028

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of approximately HK$112,594,000 (2014:
HK$183,621,000), subject to the agreement by the
Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department, that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits arising in Hong Kong of the companies in
which the losses arose. As at 31 December 2014, the
Group also had tax losses arising in Mainland China of
approximately HK$7,137,000, subject to the approval of
the relevant PRC tax authority, that would expire in one
to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits
arising in Mainland China of the company in which the
losses arose.

AEEBEEBAEEANTEBIBLY
112,594,000% (= & — g 4 :
183,621,000 7T ) (B & BT B HY
B =) AT &R A A EHE SHE A BB R A A
AREBEBEENERBGESN - KT
—mNE+-—A=+—8 A£EEEHPH
ANEEEE M IEE B A 7,137,000 7 7T
BB BB SEENIE) SR —2
AEARNER @ WAl fEHEELEBENR
) 2R 2R AE R B K B 7 A Y PR AR o A o
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27.

28.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets have been recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised based on
management’s forecasted future taxable profits, which
are based on (i) the availability of taxable temporary
differences relating to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity; (i) whether the unused
tax losses resulted from identifiable causes which are
unlikely to recur; and (iii) the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of tax losses of approximately HK$112,594,000 (2014:
HK$187,336,000) as, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, it is currently not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which such
tax losses can be utilised.

27.

EERIE (&)

e BJ BE 7B 2R 20 8 SR A5 i ) LA 35 86 A] K B
AMAHINEREZRE  AEENARDH
BMEEE L ARBAHEARER - AIREE
BEER()BBHERNEE R RER K
BERBWASERVEREZRE () RH
ABEEEEEARETEREELN
AP RA M BB+ R (i) R FE R
| B BT B2 3 A B R AN AR 2 I R R B WA T
B B AE FT TEOAI B0 2R SR M8 SR i ) e R
EFHIREE °

HRARREERABAAERKBEE
FERBRF A AEEEZEHIEER -
0 4 BE A TR B 18 49 112,594,000 7 7T
— T — P4 : 187,336,000 7T ) FE R
EETHIHEE -

SHARE CAPITAL 28. A
Shares iz 5
2015 2014
—B-RfE —TmEF
HK$ HK$
BT 7T
Authorised: AT
20,000,000,000 (2014: 20,000,000,000) 20,000,000,000 f% (==& —/g
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 4 : 20,000,000,000 %)
FRREME0.01 BT L@k 200,000,000 200,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRAR
6,481,375,000 (2014: 4,081,375,000) 6,481,375,000 f% (== —Y
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each % : 4,081,375,000 f% ) &A%
EE0.01 BT T imk 64,813,750 40,813,750
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 28. BRA(m)
A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued FAXRBBEETRAEZGH 2B E W
share capital is as follows: T
Share
Number of premium
shares in issue Issued capital account Total
BRITRGEE BRTRAK R EER @it
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2014 R-Z—mE—HF—H 1,120,500,000 112,050,000 64,031,889 176,081,889
Capital Reduction (note (a)) BRI (KI3E (a)) = (100,845,000) = (100,845,000)
Issue of shares in connection AR EZ(T
with the Open Offer R fn (K33 (b))
(note (b)) 1,344,600,000 13,446,000 53,784,000 67,230,000
Issue of shares in connection FLIRHRE BT
with the Share Subscription 13 (Fi3E (c))
(note (c)) 616,275,000 6,162,750 97,371,450 103,534,200
Issue of shares in connection  FtEZE F18 | 31T
with the Placing | (note (d))  B&f7 (Fii % (d)) 1,000,000,000 10,000,000 165,000,000 175,000,000
2,960,875,000 (71,236,250) 316,155,450 244,919,200
Share issue expenses BHETER - - (7,997,869) (7,997,869)
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-MF+_A
and at 1 January 2015 =+—-BE=F—1%
—A—H 4,081,375,000 40,813,750 372,189,470 413,003,220
Issue of new shares in FEEREEEEITH
connection with the & n (RT3 (e))
Connected Placing
(note (e)) 1,500,000,000 15,000,000 151,000,000 166,000,000
Exercise of share options REERESETERR
in connection with the (W)
Connecting Placing
(note (e)) 400,000,000 4,000,000 212,000,000 216,000,000
Issue of new shares in PECE B I BT
connection with the Placing A& (Fff3E ()
Il (note (f)) 500,000,000 5,000,000 145,000,000 150,000,000
2,400,000,000 24,000,000 508,000,000 532,000,000
Share issue expenses R &TER - - (5,484,684) (5,484,684)
At 31 December 2015 WZZ—hE
+-A=t+—8H 6,481,375,000 64,813,750 874,704,786 939,518,536
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 20 August 2013, the Company issued a circular,
pursuant to which, the Company proposed (i) a capital
reduction to reduce each of the paid-up capital of
the Company from HK$0.1 to HK$0.01 per share by
cancelling paid-up capital of HK$0.09 per share (the
“Capital Reduction”) and the credit arising from the
Capital Reduction be applied towards the cancelling
of the accumulated deficit of the Company; and (ii)
a sub-division to sub-divide each of the authorised
but unissued ordinary shares of the Company with a
par value of HK$0.1 each into 10 unissued ordinary
shares of the Company with a par value of HK$0.01
each (the “Sub-division”). On 20 January 2014, the
Company announced that all the conditions precedent
for the implementation of the Capital Reduction and
Subdivision had been fulfilled and the Capital Reduction
and Sub-division became effective on 20 January 2014
(after market close) (Hong Kong time).

On 3 January 2014, the Company issued a prospectus
pursuant to which, the Company proposed an open
offer to issue 1,344,600,000 ordinary shares of the
Company to its existing shareholders on the basis
of six offer shares for every five existing shares at a
subscription price of HK$0.05 per offer share (the
“Open Offer”). The Open Offer was conditional upon,
among other things, the completion of the Capital
Reduction as mentioned in note (a) above. Pursuant to
an announcement of the Company dated 24 January
2014, the Open Offer became unconditional and the
dealing of the offer shares commenced on 28 January
2014.

On 26 April 2014, the Company entered into
a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) with Sino Merchant Car Rental Limited
(“Sino Merchant”), pursuant to which, the Company
agreed to issue and Sino Merchant agreed to
subscribe for 616,275,000 shares of the Company in
cash at a price of HK$0.168 per share (the “Share
Subscription”). On 9 July 2014, the Company and
Sino Merchant jointly announced that the conditions
precedent to the completion of the Subscription
Agreement had been fulfilled and the completion of the
Subscription Agreement took place on 9 July 2014.

Annual Report 2015 =& — A F £ 1§

28. BRA#)

GEX

(a)

RZZE—=FENA=+8 " K287
Bk B ARAER()H
AR A - SH SRR (1 0.09% T
of: Gl N % NN = F el N =
FR0. B ITEIRE 0.01 BT ([ BRA
Bl 1) K R AR 2N IRk i 2E A A 3 BR
FAREEAR AW KT EAL 0 (i)
RNATEFREEOABITHETER
BT LBRIFAAERLQR10KTK
F{EO0.01 BIHARFITLEIR(IF
M) o RARRMN —_ZT—ME—HF -+
HEMEEKEITIRAHR R IFAA
BT S R+ DA R R AN IRt K2 3 4
ER—_Z—MFE—A_+RHUkKTE)
(BB A -

R-ZT—NMF-—A=H " KAAATIE
—HEER - Bt RNABREET
NFEE - LAE1T1,344,600,000 Ak
ARBEBRTHRAARR - £ES
BREBRBROEESREERD -
BREEBROHHREER0.05ET
(TRBARE]) - ARBEEHAIORR
(E 848 ) I 5T (a) ATt 2 IR AR EIR 72
B AIEE - RIBARRIBHMRZ
T-OFE—-A-THOBARM - 2
BRERREGREREERNER-F
—mOE-—A-+/\BHRKER -

R-ZZT—MFEMA=+/x8 ' KA F
HEMAE AR AT ([FEFHEE )T
VRERE((RBHSE])  BIEARQ
RIEEEZRT  MIRERERER
0.16878 LM B AR & RE A A A
616,275,000 (% f&% {5 ([ B 288 1) -
MRZZE—MELANE - AQF LR
R AE A TERRBEHELEE S
2B SR EEERK - MRE D
HELRBERHEON _E—NELAN
B 7R °
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

As further detailed in an announcement of the Company
dated 15 September 2014, the Company entered into
a placing agreement with a placing agent, pursuant to
which, the placing agent conditionally agreed with the
Company to endeavor on a best effort basis to place
up to 1,000,000,000 placing shares of the Company
at a placing price of HK$0.175 per placing share (the
“Placing 1”). On 20 November 2014, the Company
announced that the conditions of the Placing | had
been fulfilled and the completion of the Placing | took
place on the same day. An aggregate of 1,000,000,000
placing shares of the Company were successfully
placed pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
placing agreement.

On 15 June 2015, pursuant to a placing agreement
dated 26 March 2015, between the Company and a
placing agent, the Company completed a placing of
an aggregate of 1,500,000,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.26 per share, with
grant of 800,000,000 option shares at an exercise price
of HK$0.26 per option share issued to Sino Merchant
(the “Connected Placing”). Sino Merchant is the
controlling shareholder which held approximately 67.4%
of equity interests of the Company immediately after
completion of the placing agreement. Details of the
share placement were contained in the announcements
of the Company dated 26 March 2015 and 15 June
2015 and the circular of the Company dated 28 April
2015. The fair value of share options issued on 15
June 2015 was HK$224,000,000 and such amount was
charged against the Company’s share premium account
in the equity.

During the year, 400,000,000 option shares were
exercised by Sino Merchant at an exercise price
of HK$0.26 per option share. The exercise amount
including the related share option reserve in excess
of the par value of the ordinary shares amounting to
HK$212,000,000 was credited to the share premium
account.

AR5 R R MY AL

31 December 2015
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28. A& (#)
MizE = (48)

(d) BMARBDERAB-FT—MF A
THAZAEMFL - ARFELE
REFTIEEHH Bt A27
EAGRHREEARERERENE
EUEBREERN 01758 T 2 B8
fid & £ % 1,000,000,000 & e & & 15
((RESHEI]) R —MF+—
AZ+B ARFAESMEEEFRIZ
GECEEK MESEERINFAAR
SEAK © 48 7% 1,000,000,000 i A& &
AIBC & B 1D B ARIREC & 17578 2 1R SKAK
NEE o

—E-AFEANATHA BEAX
AHEREERBER=-_ZE—AF=A
—+ARBIYNEEHE  AQFE
REROBTLZEBREKREES
$£1,500,000,000 % & f% FI 1B 0.01 7
TR LR - WIS RERERD
0.26 7% JT 2 77 1% {8 $ tH 800,000,000
IR B AR R (D - BT FEMMEE(E
ERESBE]) EnHEREERES
W ETEA R AR B AN A BIH67.4% %
MR - BRERMHEERFES
HRAQATR_E—RAE=A =1+~
AR—Z—RAFEANA+TEATIENA
HmEARAR_ZE—AFWA=—+N\
HTEERmE - BRER-FT—RF
NA+ AR B KA FEA224,000,000
BIL MZeBEERERREARQF
B9 5 (B AR R 8 o

(e) i

FA

N
N\
AN

4 A - 400,000,000 A% B A% #E % 19
EHERESRBERERMO.26/E
TLZITEBTLAITE - BH T AR
AEZHEBREREBZITESE
212,000,000 7t T3 &1 A B& 2 & &
,EE °
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(f) On 3 August 2015, the Group completed a placing of a
maximum of 500,000,000 new shares to not less than
six placees at a price of HK$0.30 per placing share
(the “Placing II”). Details of the share placement were
contained in the announcements of the Company dated
10 July 2015 and 3 August 2015.

Warrants:

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
issued unlisted warrants to an independent third party
(the “Warrants Subscriber”) as part of the conditions
for the provision of a loan facility of HK$50 million by
the Warrants Subscriber to the Group for a period of
5 years. The warrants entitle the Warrants Subscriber
to subscribe up to HK$16,807,500 in aggregate, in
cash for ordinary shares of the Company at an original
subscription price of HK$0.27 per share, subject to
adjustments, at any time during the period from 31
October 2012 to 30 October 2017.

During the prior years, as a result of the completion of
several open offers and placings of the Company, the
subscription price of the outstanding warrants had been
adjusted to HK$0.12 per share pursuant to the terms of
the instrument relating to the warrants.

During the year, as a result of the completion of the
Connected Placing in June 2015, the subscription
price of the outstanding warrants was further adjusted
to HK$0.11 per share pursuant to the terms of the
instrument relating to the warrants.
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28.

e NE
MizE : (48)

(f) R=ZZFE—RFNA=ZH AEEE
KAaTLRANBEEARLRERS
500,000,000 [ #Ti% 17 * B BE K
LR 15 0.30F m([EEEBEI) -
BOESEZHFBHENAARBHAZ
Z-—hFE+A+ER=-_Z—RENA
ZHZ QMo

RIRERE

HEZZ——-—F+-A=+—HLHF
B AEER—EZBILE=F((RKRE
BRBA BITELMRRESE  ER
REEEFRBEIAAERRE—ERSF
HA 48 %8 50,000,000 7 7T B 3@ & K 2019
G- EERREER TR ESRE
HiER AR =ZE—=—F+A=+—H
E-ZEZ—+F+A=+BEHER - BB
NESERRABESR.27 B T(A T
FAE)RERZ S $£16,807,50078 T 1Y
RARLREAR -

BRAR BB EFETKEORN AR
ERREEE  HERTERREZH
REECRIEA BRIREE XA IER
MABREERR0.12FTT °

FRN BAR-ZE-AFENADTKEE
MEFE  WERTERREZTNRE
BIIREE B R HE B SR A 15 3 —
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29. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants
(including directors, employees and consultants
of the Company and its subsidiaries) who render
services and/or contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include any proposed or existing
director, manager or other employee of the
Group; any shareholder of the Company; any
supplier of goods or services to the Group; any
customer, consultant, business or joint venture
partner, franchisee, contractor, or agent of any
member of the Group; any person or entity
that provides design, research, development
or other support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to any member
of the Group; and any associate of any of the
foregoing persons. The Scheme became effective
on 27 November 2009 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share
options currently permitted to be granted under
the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.
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29. REGEBREZRS

(a) BEREE

REBTRIEEERAEEREHR
RER,/ IREAEEEERREA
BERWAEBRALT(BEART
FEMBLrRNES EE R
BEM) - AR RN R RS
(Tet&@ ) - T2 EGFE AL
BRASEENEMNRE ERRE
B KEgHMES  ARF
EMBIR  NEBEFERER
BHER  AEEEAKERF
MEAEE  BE XH8e%
B BEMNES ARRRK
2 RAKEEMKE A RRM
Rat IR RBEHEMFX
EAER - & BEXHEMR
BREMALTHER  REMF
MATHERBEAL - 78R
—EBEAFT—A-TtLHEE
M BRIFEEAD R AR H
7 BRIAMHSZ AL TF -

RIRETE - BB ER B RTT
EHERERETERXZHEER
RRB AR BETRMOHN10% °
REMEER  ENEE6 &%
SLEEEFAAN AL HBEAERE
BRERERITHRG - TFH8
BARBEETRON1% &
BEEBRERBILRE  BAR
BRERAE EERFHE -
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29. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time or with
an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by
the directors, and commences after a vesting
period of one to three years and ends on a date
which is not later than five years from the date
of offer of the share options or the expiry date of
the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not be
less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of
the Company’s shares; (ii) the closing price of the
Company’s shares listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on the date of offer of the share options; and
(iii) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares listed on the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer.
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29. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, as
a result of the completion of the Open Offer
in January 2014, the exercise price of the
outstanding share options of the Company and
the number of shares that can be subscribed
for upon the exercise of the outstanding
share options were adjusted (individually, the
“Adjustment”) with reference to the provisions of
the Scheme, Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing Rules
and the supplementary guidance issued by the
Stock Exchange on 5 September 2005 regarding
the interpretation of Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing
Rules.

Share options did not confer rights on the
holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’
meetings.

The movements in share options under the
Scheme during the year ended 31 December
2014

B 7% S 2 P A
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29. REGEBREZFE®

(a)

R IR REST &l (50)

HE-_Z-—WF+=-_A=+—H
IEEE BREZZ—HF—H
TERARBE - AR RERTT
FRERENITEERRERTE SR
TR TREBARMDEE
E2RBEERNGX - EmERE
17.03(13) E M RFTR =TT R
FRARBAEMARLEmAA
£517.03(13) kAR MR IESI1E
HAE(E—@E]) -

EBRERAEALTIZARESIRN
BRAE LRENER -

BHE_Z-—WNF+_A=+—H
JJ:EE *ET)fv«aJrélJE%fo“@JﬁD
T e

2014
—E—mF
Weighted
average Number of
exercise price options
IN#EFIIITE
(=] BRES A
HK$
per share
BB T
At 1 January Hn—H—H 0.646 1,853,469
Adjustment Bk 935,260
Expired during the year FAE ™ 0.429 (2,788,729)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H — =

At 31 December 2015, the Company had no
share options outstanding under the Scheme, as
all the share options lapsed on 25 March 2014.

R=®-AF+=A=+-8
42X R AR AR IR 3181 R AT 2
BE - R AR EE R

—mE=A=+HAKMK -
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29. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Share Options under a Supply Chain
Management Agreement

On 11 August 2011, Perception Digital BVI, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a supply chain management
agreement (the “Supply Chain Agreement”)
with Teleepoch Limited (“Teleepoch”), pursuant
to which, Perception Digital BVI, together with
its subsidiaries, will act as the exclusive supply
chain partner of Teleepoch for a term of three
years. In consideration of Teleepoch entering
into the Supply Chain Agreement, the Company
entered into an option agreement (the “Option
Agreement”) with Teleepoch, pursuant to which
the Company granted an option to Teleepoch,
entiting Teleepoch to subscribe for originally a
maximum of 15,500,000 ordinary shares of the
Company (individually, the “Upfront Option”),
representing approximately 2.5% of the then
issued share capital of the Company, at an
original exercise price of HK$0.38 per share.
The Upfront Option was vested on 11 November
2011 and is exercisable in whole or in part during
the period from 11 November 2011 to 10 August
2016.
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29. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Share Options under a Supply Chain
Management Agreement (continued)

In addition to the Upfront Option, the Company
also conditionally granted to Teleepoch an
option to subscribe for 0.285 shares of the
Company at the exercise price of HK$0.38 per
share (the “Performance Option”) for every
HK$1.0 of net profit to the Company generated
from sales orders placed by the clients of
Teleepoch (the “Performance Benchmark”),
subject to originally a maximum of 46,750,000
ordinary shares of the Company, representing
approximately 7.5% of the then issued share
capital of the Company. On each anniversary
date during the term of the Supply Chain
Agreement, a portion of the Performance Option
shall be vested and become exercisable. The
number of shares which Teleepoch shall be
entitled to subscribe for pursuant to such vested
portion of the Performance Option shall be
determined by reference to the Performance
Benchmark for the previous year. Subject to
such vesting condition, the Performance Option
may be exercised in whole or in part at any time
during the period from 11 August 2012 to 10
August 2016.

Both the Upfront Option and the Performance
Option (collectively, the “Options”) were granted
under the general and unconditional mandate
granted to the directors of the Company pursuant
to an ordinary resolution of the Company passed
at the annual general meeting held on 6 May
2011 to allot, issue and deal with up to 20% of
the then issued share capital of the Company.

AR5 R R MY AL

31 December 2015
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29. REGEBREZHE®

HEREEHRER OB
iz #E ()

(b)

BRATERREARAE SN - NA B INA 1K
14 #h 7] Teleepoch 1% H B A% # -
Al gt AN A &) A Teleepoch B & P
BHEE EMERNST1.08
TEM(TRBEE]) @ RITEE
BR038B (I RBEBRME )
REE0.285 R AN A M D+ RIK
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B HERAQARERE BT
BRAHI7.5% Bt FE 88 7 5% /9
FHABER—F2H —HBH
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MEE o 75 3% (8 55 B (& 1 FT iR R
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29. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

29. REGEBREZHE®

Share Options under a Supply Chain (b) HEEEEHBETHE
Management Agreement (continued) PR RE(E)
During the year ended 31 December 2014, as Hz—_ZT—mWFE+=-_BA=+—H
a result of the completion of the Open Offer IEFEE ARZZE—WOF— A%
in January 2014, the exercise price of the RAREEE - MU R 1T B AR
outstanding Options and the number of shares RTTEEE R ATTEE M R ITEEK
that can be subscribed for upon the exercise O FTRENKHBEEL2RE
of the outstanding Options were adjusted AR RS W S 2 Ve S R ([ —
(individually, the “Option Adjustment”) pursuant IBRERE]) -
to the terms of the Option Agreement.
The following Options were outstanding under the FA - TIBRERERBRER
Option Agreement during the year: R ARIETTE
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT-F
Weighted
average Weighted
exercise Number of average Number of
price options exercise price options
InFEFI INHE 1
TEE BREHAE 1I{E(E BRESE
HK$ HK$
per share per share
BRER FRAT
At 1 January W—H—H 0.233 101,519,537 0.351 67,472,775
Option Adjustment B HE A% - 34,046,762
At 31 December R+t-—HA=+—8H 0.233 101,519,537 0.233 101,519,537
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29. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Share Options under a Supply Chain
Management Agreement (continued)

The exercise prices after the Option Adjustment
during the years ended 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2014 and exercise periods of the
Options outstanding as at 31 December 2015
and 31 December 2014 are as follows:

Number of Option after

the Option Adjustment Exercise price*

B 7% S 2 P A

31 December 2015
—T—hAF+-_A=+—H

29. REGEBREZHE®

HEREEHRER OB
iz #E ()

(b)

HE_ZT—hAF+=ZA=+—8H
R—ZZT—HWHF+_A=+—H1
FE - ETBRERRR TR
EBEER-_ZE—AF+=-_A=1+—
Ak—F—MNE+=—A=+—H
AR ETT R AR 2 1T HA A
-

Exercise period

BREAZEN
BREHE TEE> TR
HK$ per share
FE T
25,277,957 0.233 11 November 2011 to 10 August 2016
—T——F+—A+—BE-_Z—X"FENATH
76,241,580" 0.233 11 August 2012 to 10 August 2016"
—E——ENA+—BEZZE—RENAT+RH"
101,519,537

The exercise price of the Options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues,
or other similar changes in the Company’s share
capital.

A The number of the Performance Option and the
period that the Performance Option become
vested and exercisable are subject to the
achievement of the Performance Benchmark.

* il HE 17 HE AR S AT IR 3E 1T S AR
RABRAEMALES
BRENTEERN THE -

2 RERERERE KEBMA
TRRABRENHHAR
EHHRBIERARR o
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29. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Share Options under a Supply Chain
Management Agreement (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 101,519,537 Options outstanding under
the Option Agreement. The exercise in full
of the outstanding Options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company as
at 31 December 2015, result in the issue of
101,519,537 additional ordinary shares of
the Company and additional share capital
of HK$1,015,195 and share premium of
HK$22,638,857 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial
statements, the Company had 101,519,537
Options outstanding with an exercise price of
HK$0.233 per share under the Option Agreement,
after taking into account the aforementioned
adjustment, which represented 1.57% of the
Company’s shares in issue at that date.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
no equity-settled share option expense under HKFRS 2

Share-based Payment was recognised by the Group.
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29. REZGEBREZHE®

(b)

n =

HERBEEHEER OB
Bz #E ()

RIEBR - AR AIBRIKERE
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FRERE - BEARRRZE
—AFE+-_A=+—BHBAK
REHE - W RITEOBAREE
BHATHE  SEREHTAAA
101,519,537 % 58 /I & 38 ik & &8
HNAE AR 1,015,195 7 JT A K2 B (5
i (822,638,857 7 7T (1 Bk 3 17
ERA) o

NZENBRRES LR B E -
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A% # 1% & B101,519,537 19 &
RIOTENERECTEELATR
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Notes to Financial Statements

30. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 55 of the financial statements.

The Group’s capital reserve originally represented (i)
the difference between the nominal value of the shares
of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of
the shares of Perception Digital BVI issued in exchange
therefor pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2000;
(i) the excess of the nominal value of the shares and
the share premium account of Perception Digital BVI
acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2009,
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange therefor; and (iii) the waiver of amounts
due to certain parties related to certain then beneficial
shareholders of the Company.

30.

AR5 R R MY AL

31 December 2015
—2-AF+-A=t+—H

(G4

AR E G BB R R A B
SO DER G 2 e ol
AERBBEN -

NEE R E KRS RIE()FT RS
AR EEEARE _SZEZTFEH
S B EHERRIRMETTH Perception
Digital BVIAR {7 &) H B < & = % ¢ (i)
BE_ZSTZNFHEEEAWRED
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31.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 19 December 2014, the Group acquired the
entire equity interest in Gigantic Group from Nimble
Ring Limited, at a total purchase consideration of
RMB65,000,000 (equivalent to HK$81,400,447). The
Gigantic Group is engaged in the car rental services
business. Further details of the transaction were set out
in an announcement of the Company dated 28 November
2014. The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
strategy to strengthen the Group’s capabilities in both
hardware such as cars and equipment and software
including staff and services with respect to long-term
car rental services. The purchase consideration for the
acquisition was in the form of cash, with RMB16,250,000
(equivalent to HK$20,350,942) paid at the acquisition
date and the remaining RMBA48,750,000 (equivalent to
HK$61,049,505) was settled during the year.

During the year, management has finalised the fair value
assessment of the assets and liabilities of the Gigantic
Group at the date of acquisition. The amounts of
property, plant and equipment and other payables and
goodwill were initially recognised on a provisional basis
in the consolidated financial statements at approximately
HK$27,216,823, HK$12,219,368 and HK$72,383,420
at the date of acquisition in the consolidated statement
of financial position for the year ended 31 December
2014. As a result, adjustments have been made
to reduce the goodwill arising from the acquisition
by HK$46,173,082 and increase the initial carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets, other payables and deferred tax liabilities by
HK$2,974,110, HK$68,670,000, HK$7,560,000 and
HK$17,911,028, respectively. Except for the respective
fair values of intangible assets and property, plant
and equipment which were determined based on the
discounted cash flow analysis and market comparable
approach, the carrying amounts of other assets and
liabilities approximated to their fair values. Accordingly,
the amounts of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, other payables, deferred tax liabilities
and goodwill have been adjusted to HK$30,190,933,
HK$68,670,000, HK$19,779,368, HK$17,911,028
and HK$26,210,338, respectively, as at the date of
acquisition.
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31.

EBRE6

R-ZE—MNE+=-F+1H  AEER
AEBFRAR  WEBEEE 22K
o BKERE AR AR®G65,000,000
TL(HZE 81,400,447 JT ) - B & &
ERERERERS - HERXH2E—
THEBEHINARF AR A - —N
FH+—A=-+N\BZ2RAER - #1752
BAAEBERBEAN—3% 0 AMEAs
EERRIEHESRSEMS  £H05
BENRESEG  ETIERRESEEMGH
HEHKERF - ZWEZEBEREUER
A RREBAHENARE
16,250,000 7L (8 % 720,350,942 %
TT) BB AR 48,750,000 7T (FE R
61,049,505 B TTERFR AT °

FR - EEEBECEHRTREEENKE
BH2EERBBEZAFEFN G - D
¥ BB NEE - EMESRENRE
BERRERREHE T —NFE+ A
=+t RALEFEZEAFBHRRIRF
BEEEEY PR 27,216,823 7%
JC ~ 12,219,368 JT & 72,383,420 7%
JC ° AL - B 1E 3R LA E R R W E
A7 B E 46,173,082 T 0 I 9 B IR
SVE BEEAXE BERFEE- - &
tEMREREERBEEEZY TR
M {B2,974,1107% JT * 68,670,000/
JT  7,560,0008 Jt K 17,911,028
T BREFEEURDE  BERXE
ZEEZATFERBERERESRES TR
MG EETII  EtMEEREEZ
FEEEEAFERE - Bt - W -
BMEERZE BEFVEE HMEMNK
B REEHRBEEEREEZESHEERK
B B 2% 5l #8 2 = 30,190,933 % 7T -
68,670,000 7T - 19,779,3688 T
17,911,028 7T % 26,210,338 78 7T °
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31. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 31.

As the acquisition took place during the year ended 31
December 2014 and no adjustments were made to the
balances as stated at 1 January 2014, the consolidated
statement of financial position at 1 January 2014 is
therefore not presented.

The provisional and finalised fair values of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the Gigantic Group
as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

B 7% S 2 P A

31 December 2015
—T—hAF+-_A=+—H

E3 SN

HRKBEBEZ _T—HF+_-A
=t BLEFEET BHEH _FT—N
F-A—BIRZERIERAE - Bl
BMER_FT-—NF—-A-BAZHRAUB
RAKRAZT

BESRERKEERZAHENEERE
BZEERBEERAFELT

Provisional Finalised
fair value fair value
recognised recognised
ERAEE EREREE
AFEE A¥E
Notes HK$ HK$
M = &I BT
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB REE 12 27,216,823 30,190,933
Intangible assets mEE 14 — 68,670,000
Cash and bank balances e MIRITES 1,072,866 1,072,866
Inventories FE 7,143 7,143
Trade receivables JE U BR 5K 1,084,749 1,084,749
Prepayments, deposits and TBAFHIE - ek
other receivables H b W GRIE 8,850,457 8,850,457
Trade payables FEAT AR (1,997,208) (1,997,208)
Other payables and accruals H At & A 0IB R FE SRR (12,219,368)  (19,779,368)
Interest-bearing other borrowings Hipzt BEE (14,393,077)  (14,393,077)
Tax payable FES IR (605,358 (605,358)
Deferred tax liabilities BT IE B & 27 — (17,911,028)
Total identifiable net assets Al BB EFE A5 9,017,027 55,190,109
Goodwill on acquisition WS PSR 2 13 72,383,420 26,210,338
Total consideration wRE 81,400,447 81,400,447
Satisfied by: ATHIAEER -
Cash Be 20,350,942
Payable to the seller in connection L EE AR
with the acquisition e T B 2 5IA 61,049,505
81,400,447
Net cash outflow arising from the RUNESI R ZFEER
acquisition: i
Cash consideration ReRE 20,350,942
Cash and bank balances acquired ESRIRE RIRTTHAR (1,072,866)
19,278,076
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31. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The directors of the Company consider the acquisition
of the Gigantic Group as an effort to capture the car
rental market opportunities in Mainland China and the
goodwill on acquisition mainly represents the expected
incremental values and potential synergies for the
related development and expansion plans of the Group.

The fair values of the trade receivables and other
receivables of the Gigantic Group at the date of
acquisition approximated to their gross contractual
amounts and the directors of the Company do not
expect any significant acquired receivables to be
uncollectible.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$376,128
for this acquisition. These costs have been expensed
and are included in general and administrative expenses
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
prior year.

Since the acquisition, the Gigantic Group contributed
HK$664,481 to the Group’s revenue and HK$71,568 to
a reduction in the consolidated loss for the year ended
31 December 2014.

Had the above acquisition taken place at the beginning
of the year ended 31 December 2014, the revenue
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
would have been HK$245,071,461 and the loss of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 would
have been HK$48,317,753. The pro forma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of operations of
the Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisitions been completed at the beginning of
the year, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

U

(if)

(i)

During the year, the Group entered into
finance lease arrangements in respect of
property, plant and equipment with a total
capital value at the inception of the leases
of HK$9,840,000 (2014: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2014,
as disclosed in note 31 to the financial
the Group acquired the
entire equity interest in Gigantic Wisdom
Limited and its operating subsidiary, it

BEAEHERREMEAT, for a total
purchase consideration of RMB65,000,000
(equivalent to HK$81,400,447). Part of the
purchase consideration of HK$20,350,942
was paid at the acquisition date and
the remaining purchase consideration of
HK$61,049,505 was included in other
payables and accruals as at 31 December
2014.

statements,

During the year ended 31 December
2014, the Group obtained the waivers
of the remaining outstanding principal
and interest accrued of certain other
borrowings, and, accordingly, the related
pbalances brought forward from the prior
year of HK$1,883,536 was included in
other income and gains in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the prior
year.

AR5 R R MY AL

31 December 2015
—E-hFEt+A=t+—H

. RERERERME
(a) EBFREXRH

(1)

(i)

FR o AEEERDE -
BELEEIYRERE
T HEERRZ8E
N{E 49,840,000 7T( =
TomE:T)

A B 7 ¥R 3K BT SES1FR
BHE HE-_T—HNF
+-—A=+—HILEFEE -
AEEBKRBEESERA A
REGEH B AR RE
ZAEHERREMTRAA
ZEHYER BEER
& & A R #¥65,000,000
7t (48 % 81,400,447
Bir) o RIKE B HIE &
420,350,942 T M
MARABNT 2BEERE
61,049,505 ;T X = &
—mE+=—_A=+—HE
B N B At B A< 3R IE R FE AT
R °

HE-_Z-—WOFE+=A
=+—HLLFE  A5E
ERes THMEEME
EZHBTHAEELAE R
B - WL AT FE A
Bl Z 18 B8 45 #7 1,883,536
BB AEFBEER
Z H MU A R Es e
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31 December 2015
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(continued)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries

32.

mERERERMT @)

(b) HLEWEAF

Perception  Ace Legend
Digital International
Limited Limited
and its and its 2015
subsidiaries  subsidiaries Total
Ace Legend
f1ZEME International
ARARR Limited & —Z-IF
HWE A HKE AR @t
Notes HK$ HK$ HKS$
i BT BT BT
Net assets/(liabilities) disposed of: B HERE/(BE)FHE :
Property, plant and equipment v ER S 12 579,793 - 579,793
Deferred development costs EEFHERA 17 456,947 934,679 1,391,626
Long term deposits REES 161,728 - 161,728
Inventories FE - 108,749 103,749
Trade receivables R R 2,241,250 - 2,241,250
Prepayments, deposits and other ~ TEfIFUE « 24 R H fh el
receivables IR 1,095,961 - 1,095,961
Available-for-sale investment A HERE 868,700 - 868,700
Cash and bank balances Re Rif1TEH 7,290,182 80,722 7,370,904
Trade payables FERTBR R (612,812) (106,455) (719,267)
Other payables and accruals H At A RIB K e T 5RIE (11,172,423)  (1,187,964)  (12,360,387)
Tax payable I HE (851,491) = (851,491)
57,835 (175,269 (117,434)
Release of exchange reserve HEHNB A 7R
upon disposal of subsidiaries e (2,797,029) = (2,797,029)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries KB D Bz dees 5 2,806,884 175,277 2,982,161
67,690 8 67,698
Satisfied by: ATHF A EE
Cash Be 67,690 8 67,698
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(continued)

32.

B 7% S 2 P A

31 December 2015
—T—hAF+-_A=+—H

GERERERMT @)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not
have any significant contingent liabilities.

The Company has given a guarantee to a landlord in
connection with a tenancy agreement entered into by
a subsidiary of the Company during the current year
for the leasing of an office premise. The total future
minimum lease payments under the corresponding non-
cancellable operating lease falling due which will end in
May 2017 amounted to approximately HK$5,817,000
(2014: HK$9,923,000) as at 31 December 2015.

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued) (b) HEMHEBARE
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and HEWBARIZIRE RS EE
cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of Y2 FRE AN ¢
subsidiaries is as follows:
Perception Ace Legend
Digital International
Limited Limited
and its and its 2015
subsidiaries  subsidiaries Total
Ace Legend
4]ZEME International
BRAAR Limited & —Z-IF
HfE AR HHEAR @zt
HK$ HKS HK$
BT BT BT
Cash consideration BeRE 67,690 8 67,698
Cash and bank balances disposed of 2 HEBRE RRITES (7,290,182) (80,722)  (7,370,904)
Net outflow of cash and cash HERBARIZEE R
equivalents in respect of the ReSEMTRL
disposal of subsidiaries (7,222,492) (80,714) (7,303,206)
33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33. FAEE

REBEHRR - AKREALEEAERKA
BfE-

RRARERFER—EFBLER B
B—HOBEARAICHMBRARIREAR
HME—WMAEMEMI L 2HEHZE
MEFFEER R-_ZT—HF+=-A
=+—H  BEEEHEN DA HEEL
&M E B2 Y oK R & K fE WA & k1B
4 %8 /55,817,000 (=T — M 4 -
9,923,00087T) * WKHR=_FE—+tFH
AE|E -
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(a) As lessor

The Group leases its motor vehicles and
subleases its office premises under operating
lease arrangements with leases negotiated for
terms ranging from one to four years while certain
leases can be early terminated by serving five
days to three months’ notice or paying 10% to
30% of total remaining unpaid leases payments.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its customers and tenant
falling due as follows:

4R B

ne =

(a)

SHEZRH

EREHER

AEERELEHELZFHHEE
MAEDE  KEBOEHENF
—ENF - ETHOUTERHKR
BE=@EABMRAL T H
A AE 2 E10% = 30% 1% 12
Rk

RZZE—RFE+=-_A=+—H"
AEBBEREBERRBEFIL
MR S E SR AT H
EEEE S LW A -]
BEMT

Group
56

2015 2014

—E-FHF —=—F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within one year —FR 6,209,191 6,852,566
In the second to fifth years, inclusive =5 _-F&F R

(BIEEREMSE) - 14,913

6,209,191 6,867,479
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(continued)

(b)

As lessee

The Group leases its office premises and certain
of its office equipment and motor vehicles under
operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to ten
years while certain leases can be early terminated
generally by serving fifteen days to two months’
notice or paying 15% to 30% of total remaining
unpaid leases payments.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

B 7% S 2 P A

31 December 2015
—T—hAF+-_A=+—H

34. REHEZTH®)

(b) fERENBF

AEBERELEHELTHHAER
MAEYERETRHAERMEN
RAE  KEENEENT—F
E+F& BETHAHNBREUERER
THXEMEABARS I HF84
THRAZFESH15%ZE30%
% REFIE -

RZE—RF+=_A=+—H80"
AREBRENBEECEHEH
RUAT BRI B R R HEAE

BN -

Group

5
2015 2014
—B-EHF —F-IF
HK$ HK$
BT AT
Within one year —FR 2,460,900 2,710,407

In the second to fifth years, inclusive 25 -FEFHEF

(BREEEME) - 187,451
2,460,900 2,897,858
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31 December 2015
—T-RF+-A=t+-8

35. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments
detailed in note 34(b) above, during the prior year,
the Group entered into a subscription agreement (the
“Agreement”) with Prime Elite. Subject to the fulfilment
of certain closing conditions as stated in the Agreement,
Prime Elite agreed to allot and issue, and the Group
agreed to subscribe for 111,111 new ordinary shares
of Prime Elite at a total consideration of US$5 million
(approximately HK$39 million). As at 31 December
2014, the closing conditions had not yet been fulfilled.

During the year, the transaction was completed and
Prime Elite was owned as to approximately 10% by the
Group. Further details of the Agreement are set out in
an announcement of the Company dated 15 October
2014.

In addition, the Group’s share of the joint venture’s

35.

i

R LA _E BT 3E34(b) Fri 2 &8 & FH & 2 5
SN REFE AEEHEERFTIYVR
BEiHhE((ZMR]) - ZiBE5 25T
B 6 {4 — & 52 B © Prime Elite @ 3 &
BRBEOTMASEERERBH L BR
111,111 0% + # 1K {& /5,000,000 JT
(#939,000,000/ L) e R =ZZT — M F
+TZA=+—8 ' EREGHEREX -

FR - ZRXHE KM ALK EGEA R
HI10% ° & < E— FFBHRAR
AEMA—T—MOF+ATRERZAMH

I EXREIN 2 AEERAEERT]

own capital commitments, which are not included in the TR 2 EREAPENT ¢
above, is as follows:
Group
£8
2015 2014
—E-HF —ET—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Contracted, but not provided for BRI 4B RHEEE 13,250 3,249,000
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in

these financial statements, the Group had the following

transactions with related parties during the year:

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2013,
the Group borrowed HK$12 million from a
related company pursuant to a loan agreement
entered into with the related company, in which,
pbased on information available to the directors
of the Company, a then significant beneficial
shareholder of the Company had then a beneficial
interest in the related company.

The loan from the related company was
unsecured, bore interest at 5% per annum and
was originally repayable on 31 January 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2014,
the Group early repaid a portion of the loan
amounting to HK$11.6 million and the related
company granted the Group a waiver of the
remaining principal and interest accrued for the
period from July 2013 to July 2014 on the loan
amounting to HK$400,000 and HK$600,000,
respectively.

The other income recognised by the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2014 in respect
of the wavier of the remaining principal and
interest accrued for the period from July 2013
to December 2013 on the loan already made
by the Group in the prior year amounted to
HK$700,000.

AR5 R R MY AL

31 December 2015
—2-AF+-A=t+—H

36. BEALXRS

RSV BHmEREMIYAFLNRS
Sh REBEBEBAEALET TR

>

@ #H=EZZ—=F+=-A=+—H
IHFE  AEBEREBEE—MHE
RNAIRI M B E S A 7% 8 B 2
AREEE 12,000,000 7T * MR
f$ RIEEMESHER - &K

NA—BEREAESBRENZ
MEEARTHEEER R °

FENRNERAERR &5
EFFNEFERREEAR_-E
—hF—HA=1+—HEZ

RNEBEEZE-_ZET—NE+-_A=+—

HIEFE AEEEREEERS
311,600,000 L2 — 3D * %
AEAAEMASEERLAR
DRBRZEEE_ZT—=F+
AE=-Z—NELAHBZHT
K& Kk FE 5 5l 400,000 % T &
600,000 7T °

BE_ZT-WEt+-_A=t1t—H
tif'zﬁ’%lﬁfﬁ@\ﬁ’aﬁglﬁ\\
FFEEELEZZERR -F
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31 December 2015
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. EEALRZ @)

(continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of (b) AEEBTEEBEAENIE B
the Group, including amounts paid or payable to EYNSENTFEARREENS
the Company’s directors, is as follows: LERI N

Group

5

2015 2014
—E-F1F —E—4F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Short term employee benefits EHREEEA 6,100,000 6,214,017
Post-employment benefits BB 1213 7 18,000 65,250

Total compensation paid or payable  [AEZEE A Sk

to key management personnel JETH BN 5 4258 6,118,000 6,279,267
Further details of directors’ emoluments are EEFMME—THFBIERTE
included in note 8 to the financial statements. HMARMIFES ©
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31 December 2015
—T—hAF+-_A=+—H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 37. RERETHWEBEIA
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REBEIAR > SEUE T AEMEREEN
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting s -

period are as follows:

Group 3L
Financial assets HBRE
2015 2014
—E-1f —T-[mF
Available- Available-
Loans for-sale Loans for-sale
and financial and financial
receivables asset Total  receivables asset Total
BERR AHHE ERR AfHE
[ ERE] HBEE e R8I MBEE ok
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B BT BT BT BT
Available-for-sale AHRHERE
investment - 39,987,400 39,987,400 - 1,260,000 1,260,000
Trade receivables JEER R 250,161,834 - 250,161,834 212,973,874 — 212,973,874
Loan receivables ERER 111,835,710 111,835,710
Financial assets included 31 AT -
in prepayments, ReREMER
deposits and other TENEHEE
receivables 461,663,037 — 461,663,037 84,339,187 — 84,339,187
Amount due from a ER—RaEDNH
joint venture B 10,172,985 - 10,172,985 5,842,767 - 5,842,767
Pledged bank deposits 2 BHETER 18,794,078 — 18,794,078 = = =
Cash and cash RERREEEY
equivalents 5,050,455 - 5,050,455 8,090,982 - 8,090,982

857,678,099 39,987,400 897,665,499 311,246,810 1,260,000 312,506,810
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 37. BREREZNUBIRW

CATEGORY (continued)

Group £
Financial liabilities HHEERE
2015 2014
—E-—RE —E—mF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REHEK AT BN IEEE
Trade payables FE{FBR 5K 34,305,597 34,801,378
Financial liabilities included in other FI| N EL b {5 FRIE & BT IR
payables and accruals HHWH K aE 6,860,148 75,488,551
Interest-bearing bank and other FTERITREMEER
borrowings 31,513,733 13,697,445
72,679,478 123,987,374
38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 38. IBITENLAFERAFE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL I8 4%
INSTRUMENTS

BREEESEROEAFEZMKITA
S AEBEF B TAZEEENRRFE

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying

amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are T
as follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREIE NERE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —T—UF ZB-HE —ZT—NUF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT PETT BT BIT

MBEE
AHHERE

Financial asset
Available-for-sale

investment 39,987,400 1,260,000 39,987,400 1,260,000
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposit, trade
receivables, trade payables, financial assets included
in deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals, the current
portion of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
and amount due from a joint venture approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014 was assessed to be
insignificant.

The fair value of an unlisted available-for-sale debt
investment as at 31 December 2014 was determined
using market approach based on rate of return provided
by the relevant bank.

The fair value of an unlisted available-for-sale equity
investment as at 31 December 2015 has been estimated
using a discounted cash flow valuation model based
on assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the
directors to make estimates about the expected future
cash flows including expected future dividends and
proceeds on subsequent disposal of the shares. The
directors believe that the estimated fair values resulting
from the valuation technique, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which are recorded in
other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that
they were the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period.

38.
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31 December 2015
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METENLAFERAFE
8 &% s

BEEEBNNE  EEARBRSRAS
HEY  DEWRITER - BERK
FERBRAR « 5t ATR S I E Al B R IR A
MBEE - st AEAMEN IR MBS K
ENP AR  FFRRITREMEERN
o ARBE —REERRZEER
RHARE  SRETAZAFERR
FREEARE

MBEERBENRTFER/RERBRS
CGREZBFREERINFETEERE
BATANBEE -

AR A AR AR AR A st A A

it BERIT R EAME é‘iﬁ ® A K 1=
: R 2| IR EUM T A
B B B I 3 i 4 7 Hﬂﬂ?)( BeREM

SHEIFAIHE DA QS R-_F—F
F+-_A=+t—BR-_Z-—MFE+_H

=+—8 AEEASHHESBTRE
a8 B AR S A R EA

R_ZFE—ME+_-_A=+—8 " 8a#i
EFLTEBRENAFEIERTS
EXENERRRITAR 2 MK ETE -

X

oA %

—E-RF+-A=+—H "  "\#H
S LTRERENIFEIERR
BenEMEREY AN & RN
BRI ETRHZBRME T - %EE
IREERBHARBE S RE(BERE
HIARRA B R BRI EZFRD MG
FBEH AR - EFME - BfEERD

AT 2 bt R FHE(REEM BRI KA
RIRAFEZARES(KREBEEIK

AANR)BAIE - BRARBERRZRNS
EEE-
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 38.
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs

to the valuation of financial instruments together with a

quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2015

and 31 December 2014:
Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input
AR WS ERRAEERARE

As at 31 December

2015
W-®—HE+ZA
=t+-8

Unlisted available-

for-sale equity method for cash flows

investment RemEIRE RHR @ MERE
I EmAHIEE

ERRE

Weighted average
cost of capital
(WACQ)

IniEF I & ARKAR
(hNHEFI9 B ARKA)

Discount for lack of
marketability and
control

FfR = R BT 35 M AE
B9 T 40

As at 31 December
2014

R-Z—N&E+=A
=t+-H

Unlisted available-for- Third party quotation Third party pricing
sale debt investment % = 7 3R (E information

FE EmA] hEHE FE=HERER
BEBRE

Annual Report 2015 =& — A F £ 1§

Discounted cash flow Long term growth rate

BT A
B4 (=)

WATFERATE

B> EATTBEE
EHURRENIT

Sensitivity of fair

value to the input

ZEBZATEZ
BRE

Amount

B

3% 1%

increase/decrease in
growth rate would
result in increase/
decrease in fair value
by HK$3,528,300/
HK$4,704,400

R EI2 A 1%
B EEAFERM
B 3,528,300 7T
/4,704,400 7T

21% 1%

increase/decrease in
WACC would result
in decrease/increase
in fair value by
HK$5,880,500

Ik 9 B AR A3
i mA 1% 15 E B
NEERD N
5,880,50075 7T

36% 1%

increase/decrease
in discount would
result in decrease/
increase in fair value
by HK$1,167,100

Pransgam, m A 1% 15 &
BAFER A, 1N
1,167,100 57T
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The discount for lack of marketability represents the
amounts of premiums and discounts determined by the
Group that market participants would take into account
when pricing the investments.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

38. WHTAMNAFERLQFE

=)

AHEN TR ERARERATS2
HEERKREEERSZBARERT

EERE o

DNFEER

TRINKAEERBETAZ AVEFE

B4R :

URFPHEIBHEE -

Fair value measurement using

RAUT AN EATE

Quoted prices  Significant

in active observable

Significant
unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BAUEE EBEAFTAEHEE
REBTEHN WARE BAHE
REE—R) (B=4) (F=8) Fob
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2015 R-Z-H5%+=A
=+-H
Available-for-sale investment: AEEHERE
Unlisted equity investment FEMERRE - — 39,987,400 39,987,400
As at 31 December 2014 R-E-NE+ZA
Er=lg
Available-for-sale investments: AHEERE
Unlisted debt investment FEMBEBRE - - 1,260,000 1,260,000
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—T-mF+-A=t+-H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 38.

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

METENLAFERATFE
8 &% s)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level FRNE=ZFZ2AFEFEEFHMOT :
3 during the year are as follows:
2015 2014
—E-HE —ZT—mF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Available-for-sale investments — unlisted: FAIfEHERE — FE L ¢
At 1 January n—A—H 1,260,000 —
Purchases A 39,544,600 1,827,000
Disposals & (1,116,900) (567,000)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 32(b)) HE—XKWB AT
(FfzE32(b)) (868,700) —
Total gains recognised in other REMEEKRARERZ
comprehensive income Pl 1,187,400 —
Exchange realignment [ N A% (19,000)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 39,987,400 1,260,000
Liabilities measured at fair value LAFEFEZERE

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured

at fair value as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December

2014.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers

into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and

financial liabilities (2014: Nil).
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, pledged
bank deposit and cash and cash equivalents. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance/
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables, financial assets included in deposits
and other receivables, an amount due from a joint
venture, an available-for-sale investment, trade payables
and financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, which mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,
the Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to the interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of the Group with fixed interest rates. The
Group currently does not have any fair value interest
rate hedging policy. However, management will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group was also exposed
to the risk of changes in market interest rate related to
the Group’s available-for-sale investment with a floating
interest rate. The Group did not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge its interest rate risk. Further
details of the available-for-sale investment are set out in
note 16 to the financial statements.

39.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures.
Such exposures primarily arise from revenue and
other income generated, and cost and expenses
incurred by operating units in currencies other than
the Group’s operating units’ functional currencies.
For the Group’s operating units’ that have the United
States dollar (“US$”) as their functional currency,
their foreign currency transactions during the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, and the units’
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies as at the end of the reporting period were
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars. As the Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”) is pegged to the US$ within a
narrow band, the Group does not expect any significant
movements in the US$/HK$ exchange rate. Accordingly,
management considers that the Group’s foreign
currency risk exposure for US$ is not significant.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the RMB exchange rate, with all other

38.

MBEREEE
(%)

ERBE

S L B

AEBEHRZEERR - ZFRBR TS
TEARUASELEEMINEEEIA
SMEBEENEEENMG RS RE
i U A A B2 BT E AR RO AR AR e S PR ©
HRAKENAXT(IER DESEY
RREMNEESM  HRBE-_Z—1
FR-E-MET-_A=1T—BHLFE
INER 5 - AR E B RZ B LA
SINEFTENEREERAR HEEN
BB e aRET((BR ) BETE
KENREANZE  AKEFEFETL
ATHEXTEHREAEAEZS - B
It BEEERSAEE R ITTIMNE R B
WAREKX °

TREMERARKERSIE A g8 &
B EEMEHRBTEIBRT Y
REBRRE R BHAEE(ERE

variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax HMBTERZATFEES) B RED
(due to changes in the fair value of the pledge bank T o
deposit).
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
RMB in loss
rate before tax
ARBER BR7 Al B 18
®i, ORd) 18 Omd)
% HK$
% BT
2015 —E-HF
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against {8 7T 3 A R E
the RMB 5.0 (989,704)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens i i A REHE
against the RMB (5.0) 939,704
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Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group primarily trades on credit with recognised
and creditworthy third parties or with customers
with long term/strategic relationships. The receivable
balances of the Group are monitored by senior
management on an ongoing basis. Since the Group
primarily trades on credit with recognised and
creditworthy third parties or with customers with
long term/strategic relationships, save as disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, there is normally
no requirement for collateral.

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which
comprise trade receivables, loan receivables, financial
assets included in deposits and other receivables, an
amount due from a joint venture, an available-for-sale
investment, pledged bank deposit, and cash and cash
equivalents, arises from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty, by geographical region and by industry
sector. At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had certain concentrations of credit risk as 22.4%
(2014: 62.2%) and 53.3% (2014: 92.7%) of the Group’s
trade receivables, loan receivables and other receivables
were due from the Group’s largest customer/debtors
and five largest customers/debtors, respectively.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
and loan receivables are disclosed in notes 19 and 20
to the financial statements, respectively.

38.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risks to a shortage of funds by
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities
and financial assets and projected cash flows from
operations. The Group’s objective is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings. The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash
and cash equivalents and cash flows from operations to
meet its liquidity requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities

38.

MERREEBFEREE

(&)
REE SRR

AEBEEZEEVBRABRMBEEN
B EHARRIAREBOFBERR S REME
REETRBRNER AKEEHES
ERFERRITREMBEERESESH
BUNBETEZ2HNTE - AEENAE
CRERAMRSLASFEMURE
LSHRERE  UWENHRHESTE -

A THIARERHRERRREA LR

as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

PR RO T BB ERHAR -

2015
—E-RE
On demand
or less than 1to
1 year 5 years Total
EEREER
DPR—F —ZEHE e
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Trade payables FE 1 BR 5K 34,305,597 - 34,305,597
Financial liabilities included %Il A E i 15 5118 &
in other payables and FERTSRIA R B 75
accruals BE 6,860,148 - 6,860,148
Interest-bearing bank and  FFERITREAMEE (&)
other borrowings (note) 26,742,355 5,692,401 32,434,756
67,908,100 5,692,401 73,600,501

Annual Report 2015 =& — A F £ 1§



Notes to Financial Statements

B %55 R Ak B A

31 December 2015
—T—hAF+-_A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. IKEMREEBEERBER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) ()
Liquidity risk (continued) RBESRER(E)
2014
—ZE—OF
On demand
or less than 1 to
1 year 5 years Tota
DR —F —Z=hF 4t
HK$ HK$ HK$
B IT BT BT
Trade payables FE 1 BR 5K 34,801,378 — 34,801,378
Financial liabilities included %I A E fih &~ 7038 &%
in other payables and o FEET RRIRHY B 7
accruals =K1 77,621,274 — 77,621,274
Interest-bearing bank and st BSRITREMEE
other borrowings 9,371,579 5,532,202 14,903,781
121,794,231 5,532,202 127,326,433

Note:

Included in the above interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of the Group was a term loan with a carrying
amount as at 31 December 2015 of HK$18,229,550, the
loan agreement of which contained a repayment on-demand
clause giving the bank the right to call in the loan at any time.
Accordingly, for the purpose of the above maturity profile,
the contractual undiscounted payments of such loan of the
Group in the amount of HK$18,229,550 was classified as “on
demand” as at 31 December 2015.

FEE -

FHAEEMNEERTREMEENR -
—AFE+-_A=+—HEK®EEA 18,229,550
BITHNEHER  EHERBEAESRE
SKEBRIEH - BIRIT AR ZREE M
BE - Bt RERFHBERMES  R=F
—AF+-A=1+—R0 AEEHNZSEE
ZAHRITBFE18,229,5508 7T * B2
MIEMRESER] -
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Notes to Financial Statements

Br R R MY AL

31 December 2015
—T-RF+-A=t+-8

Annual Report 2015 ==

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

In accordance with the terms of the interest-bearing
bank borrowing which contained a repayment
on-demand clause, the maturity profile of the loan
as at 31 December 2015, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments and ignoring the effect of any
repayment on-demand clause, is as follows:

39.

MBEREEE
(%)

ERBE

REE S @ (E)

RREARERERIERN A BRITE

BigEF R—=—aAF+=-_A=+—8H
mﬁéﬁiﬁﬁmﬁ&M%Eﬁﬁgx
BRIERN 25 a0 25 853 Bk
SUENR

Less than
1 year 1 to 5 years Total
DPR—F —ZERF et
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2015 RZT—AF+=-A=+—H 258,860 18,317,491 18,576,351
Capital management EXER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or

processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

—HFEFH

FEBEAREENTIZARARRELRE
BARNRBSELEEELER B
FEREARLLE  UAXFHEEBEREER
=R REE -

AEEREEERENECREBEE
MERFHREEENEBALINAFE -
REFHAEEARNGEE  AKEAAK
REEEARL BTN - AEEILE
EAISNERIEINE) B AR Z K -

BHE-_FT-A5+-A=+—-B K=
—E¢+_H:+—E¢¢Ev§@§
AEE R - BERILFFL W) -



Notes to Financial Statements

40. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial
statements, due to the implementation of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the
current year, the presentation and disclosures of certain
items and balances in the financial statements have
been revised to comply with the new requirements.
Accordingly, certain comparative amounts have been
restated to conform with the current year’s presentation
and disclosures. In addition, the comparative
consolidated statement of financial position has been
re-presented due to the purchase price allocation for
a business combination as disclosed in note 31 to the
financial statements.

40.

B 7% S 2 P A

31 December 2015
—2-AF+-A=t+—H

e A

MNP MAM 2. 2P — Rt
HRAFEEEEE QA EDI(5F 622
B) ETHEREHKNBBHREZZ
FIRBECAERIERT ABTHARE
o BETHERSRLEEIATAAF
BZ2 BT o o - B 7
WM FTIREE - AR BLRISEMLE
HBEEEZ AR SLLRES MR
REBHED -
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31 December 2015
—T-mF+-A=t+-H

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 41. XA TWBERRIER
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

BRAARARBEHRNTBARKED

Information about the statement of financial position of

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as BRI
follows:
2015 2014
—E—-FHF —F—-F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FIREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB R 11,250 —
Interests in subsidiaries A E A R A RS 57 65
Amount due from a joint venture B —RE &R E)IE 4,386,958 —
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 4,398,265 65
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments TE{T /IR 591,543 36,727
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE U BT 8 A B 5K08 924,575,408 301,565,525
Amount due from a joint venture B —RE &R a5 IE - 5,728,464
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkRESEEY 2,573,045 3,188,006
Total current assets mENE E A 927,739,996 310,518,722
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries RN PNGIE L] 40 40
Other payables and accruals H b & 5 OB K B AT OB 198,614 198,614
Total current liabilities M B ERE 198,654 198,654
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEZE 927,541,342 310,320,068
NET ASSETS BEFE 931,939,607 310,320,133
EQUITY =
Issued capital B TR AN 64,813,750 40,813,750
Reserves ki 867,125,857 269,506,383
Total equity B 931,939,607 310,320,133
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41.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

Notes to Financial Statements

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Note:

(a)

B R R MY AL

31 December 2015
—F-AF+t-A=t-8

1. ARTNBBRRE @

B 5E -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: (a) RARZHEHERENT ¢
Share Share
premium Capital Warrant option Accumulated
account reserve reserve reserve losses Total
iR ER EXRE RRERRE  BRERE Byt st
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B B B
At 1 January 2014 RZE-EF—A—-H 64,031,889 10,177,239 7,048,243 1,859,529  (181,320,773)  (98,203,873)
Loss and total comprehensive EERERNZEERAS
loss for the year - - - - (41,292,325)  (41,292,325)
Capital reduction HIRRA = = = — 100,845,000 100,845,000
Issue of shares Eikin 316,155,450 - - - — 816,155,450
Share issue expenses g (7,997,869) = = = = (7,997,869)
Transfer of share option BRERREER
reserve upon the expiry of  EERRIERAE
share options - - - (54,429) 54,429 -
At 31 December 2014 and ~ R=Z—MF
at 1 January 2015 +ZA=+-Ak
“Z-R%-A-A 372,189,470 10,177,239 7,048,243 1,805,100 (121,713,669) 269,506,383
Loss and total comprehensive EEREN2ERHEEE
loss for the year - - - - (16,895,842)  (16,895,842)
Issue of shares BRG 508,000,000 - - 112,000,000 — 620,000,000
Share issue expenses RIAETER (5,484,684) - - - - (5484,684)
At 31 December 2015 R=F-RF+=A
=t-A 874,704,786 10,177,239 7,048,243 113,805,100 (138,609,511) 867,125,857

The Company’s capital reserve represents (i) the
excess of the net asset value of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2009,
over the nominal value of the Company’s share issued
in exchange therefor; and (i) the waiver of amounts
due to certain parties related to certain then beneficial

shareholders of the Company.

KRB 2EAFBEONRE-FTN
FHEEEARBOHBERRZEE
FFER AR B E R BT 8
VR + B (if) FE A R B A B A R )
ETEREaRRARENE T AL
R o
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B 755 S Ak B

31 December 2015
—T-mF+-A=t+-H

41.

42.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(continued)
Note: (continued)
(a) A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

(continued)

The share option reserve comprised the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payment in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to
the share premium account when the related options
are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits/
accumulated losses should be related options expire or
be forfeited.

The warrant reserve is in connection with the warrants
subscribed which were yet to be exercised as further
detailed in note 28 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related warrants were exercised, or
be transferred to retained profits/accumulated losses
should the related warrant expire.

The board of directors does not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014: Nil).

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2016.
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42.

GEX

mEe

(&)

RRAZFEHENT : (&)

BRERBERECEOERARITED
BREODTE FRUBHRERN
2.4 8 B A B £ XX 1 SRIE Y & R H IR
R ERMBRERETRE ZE2H
REEERMNEER  SFRBRE
BB (ERE - BIEBERB R, R
FHER ©

RBBREERE S R EERBEE RN
TENRBRER - E£—LFBFLR
MK ME28 2EFHRKER
ETE AR EEBERNEE
IR EEERREEDS - AERE
REEF,REHEAE -

EESTREBINEBE_T—RF
+— A=t BALEEZEAKRE
—E—PF ) o

B 3% SRR AV L

HERRER T —R"F=A-+0AH
BEESHAE NI -



A summary of the Group’s results for the last five financial
years and the assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31

Five-Year Financial Summary

December 2015, 2014, 2013, 2012 and 2011 as extracted £ .

from the published audited financial statements is set out
below. The summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.

— =

BHmERH—FED -

IFYHEE

TXHIAEERBEARAETRFENEERER
AEBR_ZT—LF —_T—MOF  _T—=
T——FR_F——F+=—HA=+—H
MEENBENHEZ  BEERDEHEEE T
BICRIZM MR - N EW T ERZH

Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-ALEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-1F —T-F —T—=F “T—F —T——F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
RESULTS £
REVENUE Yr2s 275,308,719 222,255,924 200,022,317 340,869,541 533,406,703
Cost of sales HEKA (251,468,283) (205,345,437) (179,396,792) (315,323,262) (486,958,388)
Gross profit EH 23,840,436 16,910,487 20,625,525 25,546,279 46,448,315
Other income and gains, net ~ EfA &Kz F 58 29,843,171 8,008,214 1,067,008 1,358,878 8,748,028
Research and development RERFELA
costs (1,507,783)  (2,618,224)  (5,125,959)  (23,678,720)  (8,321,705)
Selling and distribution $HE R P AR
eXpenses (6,526,902)  (14,613,513)  (12,729,657)  (16,188,543)  (13,923,258)
General and administrative —RRITHBER
eXpenses (39,680,435)  (25,413,974)  (19,385,288)  (39,304,434)  (45,467,014)
Other expenses, net HitnfR % 558 (929,141)  (26,033,043)  (42,893,891)  (37,187,744)  (7,435,420)
Finance costs BERA (1,900,535) (118,608)  (6,853,092)  (8,556,469)  (5,434,911)
Share of loss of a joint venture EE—RAZ R AIEE (7,854,777)  (2,154,466) = = =
LOSS BEFORE TAX BREi AR (4,715,966)  (46,033,127)  (65,295,354)  (98,010,753)  (25,385,965)
Income tax credit/(expense)  FTEHE R,/ (FI%) (2,862,369)  (3,551,925) 64,217 1,364,311 3,397,094
LOSS FOR THE YEAR ERNER (7,578,335)  (49,585,052)  (65,231,137)  (96,646,442)  (21,988,871)
Attributable to: AT & H L
Owners of the parent HAREAA (7,578,335)  (49,585,052)  (65,231,137)  (96,646,442)  (21,988,871)
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Five-Year Financial Summary

I FYHEE

As at 31 December

R+=BR=+-H

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-1F —T-mF —T—=F —T——F —T——F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT

(Restated)

(&=5)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES &EREE

TOTAL ASSETS BEBE 1,034,268,165 457,008,714 154,972,453 252,744,106 375,347,282
TOTAL LIABILITIES BELE (103,401,085) (155,067,575) (141,292,990) (243,950,572) (276,729,895)
930,867,080 301,941,139 13,679,463 8,793,534 98,617,387
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